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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

1. INTRODUCTION
11. Background of RSSB
In accordance with the Law n®04/2015 of 11/03/2015 modifying and complementing Law n° 45/2010 of

14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda Social Security Boatd (RSSB) and Law n° 003/2016 of 30/03/2016
establishing.and governing maternity leave benefits scheme; the faws détermining mission, organization
and functioning of Rwanda Social Security Board, the Board has.a fegal personality, administrative and
financial autonomy and is governed in accordance with laws governing organs of Public Institutions in
Rwanda. According to article number 4 of the Law n° 45/2010 of 14/12/2010, RSSB has the: following.
responsibilities: _
1. To manage and promote pension, medical irisurance, insurance on occupatienal hazards, insurance
on maternity leave, the anticipated old age pension-and other necessary schernes;
2. to register- employers, employees, beneficiaries and self- insured persons in various schemes
managed by RSSB; _
to collect-and manage contributions as provided by laws;
to receive and manage donations; '
to pay benefits fot orto beneficiaries;
_ to make investments in a¢cordance with laws;
. to contribute to the elaboration of social security policy;
to advise the Government on matters relating to social Security;
to establish relations and collaborate with other regional or international institutions with similar
~ missions; _
10. to-contihue providing medical care for retirees who have monthly pension. benefits.

0000 N R W

1.2.  Supervising authority of RSSB
RSSB is supervised by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning.
1.3.  Manageméeit organs of RSSB

1.3.1. Board of Directors

The Board of directots is responsible for -pro‘vidin_g. governance and oversight over the management-of
RSSB. The composition of the Board of Directors as at 30" Juie 2019 was as follows::

NAMES . i POSITION

Mr TURAHIRWA Ephraim ' _ Chairperson

Ms KANYANGEYO Agnes : Vice Chairperson ~ |
Mr KABERA Godfrey ' 1 Director

Dr. NZAYIRAMBAHO Manasseh - ! Director -
‘Ms KARAKE Doreen N C i Director ]
Ms KAYITARE TENGERA Francoise | Director

Ms DUSHIMIRE Alice o Director

1.3.2. General Directorate

The day to day running of RSSB- is entrusted to the management team headed by the Directoir General.
The Director General is assisted by two (2) Deputies: Deputy Director General in charge of Benefits and
Deputy Director General in charge of Fund Management. Officers who served on the General
Directorate for the year ended 30" Jutie 2019 were as-follows:

NAMES Ty POSITION e _ _
Mr. GATERA Jonathan Director General, Rwanda Social Security Board (left 18" October
o 2018) o
‘Mr TUSABE Richard | Director General, Rwanda Social Security Board
(Joined 19" October2018) '
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| NAMES

| POSITION

"Mr. SEBABI John Bosco

Deputy Director General in charge- of Fund Management (left 18"
“October2018)

Mr. RWAKUNDA Christian

Deputy Director Genetal in charge of Fund Management (Jomed
19" October 2018)

Dr. HAKIBA ITULINDE Solange

Deputy Director General in ehatge of Benet‘ ts

Mt. RULISA Aléxis

‘Head of CBHI Department

Dr. RURANGANWA Diane

“Head of Medical Depaitment

“Mr. MUNYANDEKWE. Oswald

“Mr. GASANA KWIZERA Eric

“Head of Pension and Occupatlonal Hazards department
Head of Investment Department '

Mr. MURINDABIGWI Innocent

‘Head of Finance and Contributions Department

Current officers serving on the General Directorate-are as follows:

NAMES : POSITION
Mr TUSABE Rlehard ;‘ Director General, Rwanda Social Secunty Board (Left 26" Feb
o 12020)
Mr. RUGEMANSHURO Regis | Director General, Rwanda Social. Security Board (Joined 27" Feb
. o 12020)
MrRWAKUNDA Christian | Deputy Director General in charge of Fund Management (Left 26™
o  Feb 2020)
Mr GACANDAGA Jean Marie Depity Director General in charge of Fund Management (Joined

27" Feb 2020)

Dr. HAKIBA ITULINDE Solange

Deputy Director General il charge of Beneﬁts

Mr RULISA Alexis Head of CBHI Department
Dr RURANGANWA Diane Head of Medical Department
Mr MUNYANDEKWE Oswald | Head of Pension and Occupatlonal Hazards department '
Mr GASANA KWIZERA Eric Head of Investment Department
Mr MURINDABIGWI Innocent | Head of Finance and Contributions- Department
1.4.  Registered office
Rwanda Social Security Board Headquarters
RSSB Building
Plot 1003 Ubumwe Cell,

African Union Bouilevard
Kiyovu, Nyarugenge
POBOX 250/6655 Kigali
Email: Info@rssb.rw
Toll Free line 4044

1.5. Auditors:
The. Auditor Gernieral

Office of the Auditor General for State Finances
Kimihurura avenue du Lac Muhazi NEC, OAG, RRA Complex

B.P 1020,
Kigali- Rwanda
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1.6.  Bankers

Bank of Kigali Limited
PO Box 175

Kigali, Rwanda.

1 & M Bank Rwanda Limited
POBox 354
Kigali, Rwanda

National Bank of Rwanda
P O Box 531
Kigali, Rwanda

Bank Populaire du Rwanda Limited
POBox 1348
Kigali, Rwanda

Ecobank Rwanda Limited
P O Box 3268
Kigali, Rwanda

KCB Rwanda Limited
P-O Box 5620
Kigali, Rwanda.

Ungiika Bank Plc Rwanda
P.O'BOX: 6417 Kigali.
Kigali, Rwanda.

Letshego Rwanda Limited
P.O. Box 4062
Kigali, Rwanda

1.7.  Our Vision, Mission and Core Values

Our VlSlOll

GT Bank (Rwanda) Limited
P O Box 331
Kigali, Rwanda

Access Bank (Rwanda) Limited
PO Box 2059
Kigali, Rwanda

Zigama Credit and Saving Society
P O Box 4772
Kigali, Rwanda

Development Bank'of Rwanda Limited

P.O Box 1341

Kigali, Rwanda

Cogébanque Limited
P.O. Box 5230
Kigali, Rwanda

Equity Bank Rwanda Limited
P O Box 494
Kigali, Rwanda

AB Bank Rwanda’ Limited
P.O Box 671,
Kigali, Rwanda.

Bank of Africa
P.0O. Box 265,

Kigali-Rwanda

“To envision a comprehenswe social security system that addresses the' social security needs of all

Rwandans™

Our Mission

“To- provide high quality social securlty services, ensure efficient collection, benefits provision,

management and investmient of members’ “funds.”

Qur Core (Cnrporate) Values

In trying to achieve ‘our’ vision and mission, we serve with empathy, creativity, . integrity and

determination by following the ICARE principles:

Integrity
Collaboration
Accouritability
Respect
Excellence

LA
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2019 which discloses the state of affairs of Rwanda Social Security- Board (RSSB).

1.8.  Establishment

RSSB was established and is governed by Law N° 04/2015 of 11/03/2015, law modifying. and
complementing Law n° 45/2010 of 14/ 12/2010 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) and
determining its mission, organization and functioning. RSSB was established after a review of Law No.
60/2008 of 10/09/2008 determining the responsibilities, organization and functioning of Rwanda Social
Security’ Board and Law No 27/2007 of 27/06/2007 determining the responsibilities, organization and
functioning of a health insurance scheme for employees,

1.9.  Principal activities

In accordance with Law N° 04/2015 of 11/03/2015, RSSB was -established with four schemes,

e Under the pension scheme, RSSB collects contributions from employers and employees in Rwanda
and provides benefits to pensioners, invalids and other beneficiaries.

e Under thie medical scheme, RSSB provides medical insurance services.

e Under CBHI scheme, RSSB provides community-based hedlth insurance. scheme and by the same
law the CBHI has been operating from July 2015.
e Tnder Maternity Leave Benefits Scheme, RSSB provides maternity leave insurance services and has
been operating since 1% November 2016.
¢ A new regulation —- Prime Minister Order No.58 of 4/04/2018 - Determining the administrator of the
Long term savings scheme appointed RSSB as the administrator of the Long term saving.scheme.
Aceordingly, this regulation introduces-a new stheme to RSSB.

Membership of the defined benefit fund

‘a) Total members at 30 June 2019 2018
Contribiting members 553,876 472,560
Pensioners 41,474 39,761
Deferred mietnbers 846,907 778,706
1,442,257 1,291,027
b) Céitiibuting members
At start of year 472,560 465,480
Joiners 106,503 95,232
579,063 561,712
Liess;.
Retired (with penision or lump sum}) (3,365) (2;490)
secessions (withdraw} (21 ,_822")’ (_85,6625
Atend of year 553,876 472,560
¢) Pensioners '
Af start of the year 39,761 39,157
Contributing members who retired with pension 1,975 1,679
Widows ot widowers’ pension and orphans becoming payable 2,500 2,358
Members who got Tump sum 1,390 811
45,626 44,005
Less: Deéaths and other secessionists 4,152 '4,2421 _
Atend of year 41,474 39,761
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Membership of the Workers® Medical Insurance

Active members 2019

Affiliates 148,499

Dependents 298,897
147,396

Membership of the Community-Based Health Insurance — CBHI

Population coverage. 2019
Coverage raie 78.5%
7
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2. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) comprising the statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2019, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in Member funds and
reserves and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages
9 to 130, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (except as noted 4 (2) —
basis of accounting) and in the manner required by the provisions of the Law n° 04/2015 of
11/03/2015 modifying and complementing Law n°® 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda Social
Security Board (RSSB).

The Directors’ responsibility includes the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in
the preparation of financial statements, overseeing and endorsing the designing, implementing
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error: selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances and is also responsible for safe guarding the assets of the Board.

The Directors have made an assessment of the ability of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) to
continue as going concern and have no reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern in
the year ahead from the date of this statement.

In our opinion, the financial statements of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) for the year ended
30 June 2019 give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of Rwanda Social Security
Board (RSSB). We further accept responsibility for maintenance of accounting records that may
be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements and ensuring adequate system of internal
controls to safeguard assets of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB).

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) for thyf?{ended 30 June 2019,
on pages 9 to 130, were approved by the Board of Directors on ... !q’/?%{&iu and
signed on its behalf by: !

/ - .
RUGEMANSHURO Regis TURAHIRWA Ephraim

Chairman — Board of Directors

%/ﬁlﬁ(/zuzo

[
Director General

...... zz.?[/f%/:........zozo
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3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1. Statement of comprehensive income

Dealings with ménbers

Contributions

Benefits paid

Nét additions from dealiiigs with- members

Returns-on investments

Investiment.incore:
‘Change in fair value of financial assets-at fair value through
profit or loss

‘Write back

Realized (loss)/gain on disposal of assets

Less? investment rmanagement'- expenses.

Net returns on investments

Other income

Expenditures

Staff costs

Administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization charge
Other experises

‘Total expenses

Net income for the year

Notes:

u

13

14

16

17
I8

20

2019 2018

Frw Frw
180,935,180,102  161,735,301,838
{104,007,225,047) {86.367,709.290)

76.927,955,055

'54.539,512,775  49,347,646,767
(802,805,615)  14,726,841,980
1,343,020,000  12,128,247,524

521,315,909 (29,290,488)

(1,500,531.135)  (1.449.575,097}

75.367.592.548

54,100.511,934

74,723.870.686

| 6.936.467,000 1,389.616.976:
(9,984,152,789)  (9,479,506,786}
(5,894,509,261)  (5,467,847,141)
(1,427,601,020)  (1,477,192,739)
(3.689,131,582)  (2.871.413.547)
(20,995.394,652)  (19.295.960.213)

‘The notes.on pages. 14 to 130 form an integral pait of these financial statements.
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3.2. Statement of financial position

2019 2018

Notes Frw Frw
Assets
Property and equipment 21 11.391,187.456 12,569,956,653
Intangible assets 22 591,673,261 105,282,333
Investment properties 23 125,796,258,507 109,070,094,904
Investment properties in the process of construction 24 5,306,978,580 903,540,000
Assets held for sale 25 454,499,522 454,499,522
Equity investments 26 416,006,601,877 353,670,210,767
Government bonds 27 - 2.401,098,014
Corporate bonds 28 & 2.536,177,884
Treasury bonds 29 88,442.016,687 54,515,524,557
Treasury bills 30 120,223,639,189 65,323,752,069
Commercial papers 31 16,145,013,966 26,441,789,083
Loan and advances to third parties 32 41,258,643,925 18.638,963,650
Mortgage loans 33 146,536,580 306,012,689
Inventory 34 295,857,330 221,326,758
Advances to contractors 35 9.204,715,837 8,060,211,085
Dividend and other income receivable 36 4,582,859.670 3,455.870,701
Other assets 37 16,327.440,352 14,255,995,226
Deposits with financial institutions 38 231,301,573,671 233,583,524,743
Cash and bank balances 39 84.657.351.700 120,787.212.258
Total assets 1,172,132,848,110 1.027,301,042.896
Less: Liabilities
Amounts retained on construction contracts 631,467.529 692,311,405
Benefits payable 19.860,146,318 20,760,941,123
Other payables 40 31,557.537.333 23.980.211.348
Total liabilities 52.049.151.180 45.433.463.876
Net assets available for benefits 1,120,083,696,930  981,867,579,020
Represented by:
Capital 41 1,232,464,149 1,232,464,149
Accumulated member funds and Retained earnings 42 580.859.156,000 513,646.997,188
Revaluation reserve 43 4,505,687.609 4,505,687,609
Fair value reserve 44 16,900,173,094 17.702,978,709
Statutory reserves 45 516.586.216.078 444,779.451.363

Total reserves

RUGE URO Regis
Director.General

The notes on pages 14 to 130 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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3.3. Staiement of a..»:..mnm in members’ funds and reserves

Capital Occupational Pension reserves Accumulated Fair value Revaluation Total
kazard reserves member funds reserve reserve
and retained
. earnings
‘Frw Friy Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
At 1 July 2017 1,232,464,149  31;893,887,144  349,805409,521 462,017,011,884  (8,154,501,965) 4,505,687,609  841,299,958,342
Prior year adjustments - . . - 1 - - 1
Net income for the year - 11.060,686,134 52.019,468,566  43247484,622  25,857480,674 - 132,185,119,996
Government subsidy - - - 8,382,500,681 - - $,382,500,681
At 30 June 2018 1,232,464,143  42,954,573278  401,824,878,087 513,646,997,188  17,702,978,709  4,503,687,609  981,867,579,020
Prior year adjustments. - - - N . - - (7)
Net income for the year - 12,944,811,359 58,861,953,354  45,965,580,239 (802,805,615) - 116,969,539,337
Government subsidy - - - 21,246,578,580 - - 21,246,578,580
As at 30 June 2019 1232,464,149  55.809.384,637  460,686,831,441  580,859,156,000  16,900,173,094  4,505,687,609 1,120,083,696,930_
Thié notes on pages. 14 to-130 forin an integral part of these financial statements.
[ o | ro e [ = _ r [ = r r £
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3.4. Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities:

‘Increase in-net assets for the year

Adjissted for:
Depreciation and amortization
Investment income

Realized (gain)/loss on disposal of assets (equity investments,
PPE, Asséts held for sale and Investment properties)

Changg in fair value of equity investments

“Write off

Write back of prior fair value loss
Adjustment of opening balances
Operating income for changes in working ¢ca pital

In¢rease in advance to contractors

Increase in Dividend and other income receivable

(Iacreasé)/Decrease in other assets

Increase in inventory

(Décrease)/Increase in medical/maternity claims payable
Increase/(Decrease) in other payable

Decrease in contract retentions.

Net cash flows from operating activities.

Cash flows used in investing activities:

Dividend income réceived

Rent received

Other interest income: received (current accounts and
mertgage loans)

Purchases for investment property under construction
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible asset

Purchase of investmerit properties

Purchase of equity investments.

Proceeds.from disposal of Equity irivestments

Receipt from settiement of Government Bond (Intérest and
principal)

Receipts from settlement of Corporate bonds (Initerest and
principal)

Receipts from Treasury bond - coupon interest income

received

Reieipts frotn Tredsury bill maturities (Interest and principal)
Receipts from Commercial papers maturities (principal and
interest)

Investment. i Treasury bonds

Investment in Treasury bills

2019
Frw

116,969,539,337

1,427,601,020
(54,539,512,774)
(521.315,909)
802,805,615,

0
(1,343,020,000)
4
62,796,097,343

(1,144,504,752)
(1,639.674,662)
(74,530,572)
(900,794,805)
7,577,325.985
(60.843:376)
66,553,074,661

4,117,889,102
4,536,131,890

4,803,259,482

(4,403,438,580)
(98,567,167)
(669,204,138)
(5,861,415,342)
(62,362,485,468)

2,795,280238
2,806,250,000

13,476,512.745
171,613,000,000

39,988,057,500

(39,510,330,217)

(219,899,097.957).

2018

132,185,119,997

1,477,192,739
(49,347,646,767)

29,290,488

(14,726,841,980)
22,628,298
(12,128,247,524)
448.411,852
_57,959,907_,102

(4,793,986,061)
(2,918,510:905)
855,310,770
(39,131,322)
5,818,636,658
(10,342,246,692)

124,512,344
46,415,467,206

4,013,615,907
3,126,639,334

5,108,907,374

(5,835,118.388)
{722,073,141)
(45,771,072)
(706,879,621)
(42,695,835,683)
5,452,962,430

24,928,060,476
381,823,749
12,578,230:469
123,134,400,000

(7,899,094,297)
(136,907,261,675).

12
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Investment in Commercial papers
Receipts from settletent of loans and advances to third
parties.

-Additional loans arid advances if'o'-third parties during the year

Tnerease/{Deerease) in mortgages
'Placement of term-deposits during the year
Settlement of term deposits during the year
{Increase)/Decrease in-call deposit
Proceeds from disposal

‘Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from finan¢ing activities:
.Government subsidies for CBHI scheme
Net'cash from financing activities.

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalentsat 1 July
Cash and cash equivalenits at 30 Jupe

2019
Frw

(37,828,057,500)

4,476,898,298
(26,246,578,573)
159,476,109
(195,752;341,603)
218,421,665,640

1,507.581.742

(123,929,513,799)

21.246,578.580
21,246,578,580

(36,129,860;558)
120.787.212.258
§4,657.351.700

The notes on pages: 14 to 130 form an‘integial part of these financial statéments.

2018
Frw
(25,612:470,000)

9,184,419,349

(8,382,500,681)
208,699,256

177,000,000,000)

1207,337,235,963
(6,459,495,460)
(16,785,717,938)

8.382,500,681
8,382,500,681
38,012,249,949

82.774,962.309
120.787:212 258

13
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4. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.  Reporting entity

Rwanda. Social Security Board was established by Law n® 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda
Social Security Board (RSSB) as modified and-complemented by Law n° 04/2015 of 11/03/2015 and Law
1° 003/2016 of 30/03/2016 establishing and governing maternity leave benefits scheme; The Board runs
the following schemes under one management:

s Pension scheme

»  Medical scheme

»  Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme
».  Matemnity Leave scheme

A new regulation — Prime Minister Order No.58 of 4/04/2018 - Detérmining the’ administrator of the Long
term savings scheme appointed RSSB as the administrator of the Long term saving scheme. Accordingly,
this regulation introduces a new scheme to RSSB. Further disclosure on this scheme ‘is'made in note 8.3.5.

2. Basis.of accounting

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards. (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Staridards Board (IASB). Theseare-
separate financial statements and are not consolidated, as would be required by IFRS 10: Consolidated
Finiancial Statements, in respect of the investees over which the Board exercises countrol. ‘The directors, in
their judgment bélieve that despite this. deviation, the financial statements provide reliable and useful
information to its stakeholders.

Under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10, a parent entity that is-an Investment entity is-exempt from consolidation if
that entity measures interests it subsidiaries at fair through profit or loss. Paragraph 27 of IFRS 10 reqitires
a parent entity to determine if it is an investment entity. An-investment entity is an entity that:

1) Obtidins funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investor(s) with
investment management services;.

2) Commits to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment iricome, or both; and

3) Measutes and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Accordingly, the directors have determined RSSB to be an investment entity as its mandate includes the

management of funds on behalf of contributing members to erisure thie following;

1) Collects and invests funds contributed by fund members providing investment management services
over investments madé o behalf of contributing members with aim of ensuring that long term fund
.obligations to contributing members are met a5 and when they fall due.

2)- Commits io contributing members fo invest funds solely for retums. from capital appréciation or both

3) And measures the performance of ‘substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

The directors have thus chosen to apply the exemption from consolidation under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10

and to account for RSSB interests in entities that qualify to be subsidiaries at fair value through profit or

loss. 5

In addition, u_nder--p_al_'agraph 18 of TAS 28, when an investmeént in an associate or a joint venture is held by,

or is held indirectty through, an entity that is:a venture capital organisation, ot a mutual fund, unit trust and

similar entities including investment-liked insurance funds, the entity may elect to measure investments in

14
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those associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. RSSB as:
an investment entity has elected to measure its associates and joint ventures at fair vatue through profitor
loss:

The companies in which'the Board has interests/shareholding and asummary of their key financial data are
disclosed in note. 26 to these financial statements. .

Further still, RSSB has not adopted IFRS 9-in the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
therefore. these finaricial statements do not comply with the rc:’qu‘_iremeh_ts of this standard: IFRS9 is a new
accounting standard which was effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

3. Basis for measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for some financial assets

including equity investments designated at fair value through profit-or loss, investment properties, property
and equipment and assets held for sale that have been measured at fair value.

4. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Rwanda francs (Frw}, which is the Board’s functiorial currency
and all values-are presented as whole nuinbers, except where otherwise indicated.

5. Use.of judgements and estimatés

In preparing these financial statéments, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of the Board’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income -and expenses. Actual results may differ from. ihese estimates. Estimates and underlying
_assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

6. Significant accounting policies

_Signiﬁcant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

a) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated into Rwanda francs at the exchange rate’
fuling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 'fore_i'gn-currer‘icies at.the
réporting date ate translated into Rwandan francs at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetaty
assets and liabilities denomiinated in foreigr currencies that aré measured.at fair value are translated to
Rwandan francs at the date when the fair value was determined. Foreign cutrency gains ‘and losses arising
from tianslation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the year.

b) Revenue recognition

Révenue'is recognised to the extent that it is probable. that the economic benefits will flow to the Board and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured-
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable; taking into agcount contractuatly ‘defined terms.
of payment. The following specific recognition criteria must aJso be.met before revenue: is recognized.

(i} Interestincome

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest- income. or expense is recorded using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments:or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where: appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset-or liability.
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(i) Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividends is established.

(ifi) Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognized in the statement of comp‘rehensi've‘ on the straight
line basis over the term of the property lease..

(iv) Other income )
Other income comprises gains less losses related to:trading assets and liabilities, and.includes gains. from
disposal of Board’s assets and:all.realised and unrealised foreign exchange differences.

©) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

IFRS 9 was effective 1 January 2018 and has changed the classification of fihancial instruments and
imipairment model for financial assets from incurred loss model to-expected credit loss model. However,
the Board has not adopted IFRS 9 in preparation -of these financial statements. The ‘acctunting policies
applied for financial instrurients.are as-detailed below: '

(i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Finaricial assets within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value ttirough profit or
loss, loans and receivables; held-td-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as: appropriate. The Board determines:
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. AH financial assets are recognised initially at.
fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
fransaction costs. The Board’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, loans and advances, deposits with: commercial banks, investmenis in government and:
corporate bonds and equity investments.

- Subsequient measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit.or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or. loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in surplus
or deficit. These include equity investments designated at fair vahie through profit or loss by the Board.
Financial dgssets held for trading

Finanicial assets held for trading include securities held for trading which are equity investrents held by
investment managers. Financial assets held for trading are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with changes in fair ‘valiie récognised in surplus or deficit. These include equity investments
designated as held for trading by the Board.

Loans-and advarices

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial dssets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market. After initial measurenient, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amoftised cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR), less impairment. Amortised costis calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees-or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR arhortisation is.included in interést income in the statement of comprehensive income:
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The losses arising from impairment are recognised in impairment losses in the statement of comprehensive
income. These include loans and advances te Government entities and staff loans and advances.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with-fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as
held-to-maturity when the Board has the positive ‘intention and ability to hold them to maturity. After
initial measurement, held-to-maturity investrnents are miéasured at amortised cost using the. effective
interest method, less impairment. Amortised cost is. calculated by taking into account any discount  or
premium on dcquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in interest income in the statement of comprehensive income. These include treasury .bonds,
tréasury bills, corporate, bonds, commercial papers and terni deposits with financial institutions.

Other receivables

Other receivables are carried at amortised cost which approximates the original invoice amount less
provision made for impairment losses.. An allowance for impairment of other recetvables. is established
when there is objective evidence that the Board will not be able to collect all amounts due according to, the
original terms of receivables.

De-recognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a-Board. of similar financial
dssets) is derecognised when:

e Therightsto receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

e The Board has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed .an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without- material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Board has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Board has néither transferred nor retained ‘substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Board has iransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered inte a pass-
‘through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the: risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent-of the Board’s continuing
ivelvement in the asset. In that case, the Board also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the ‘associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Board has retained.

ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Board assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence thata financial asset or a
group of financial assets is-impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is. deemed to be.
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has.
occurted after the initial r'eCOg_niti'on' of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event”) and that loss, event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group’ of financial assets that.can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default.or delinquency in interest or prinicipal payments, the.
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data
indicate that there is.a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as-changes in arreats or
econormic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Firiancial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Board first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists- individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
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fihaneial assets that are not individually significant. If the Board determines that no objective evidence of
imipairment existsfor.an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or riot, it includes the
asset in.a group of financial assets with similar eredit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are- individually assessed for impairment and for which -an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in'a collective assessment of impairinent.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been-incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as- the difference between the asseis’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future expected credit lossés that have not yet been incurred): The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at ‘the financial asset’s. original effective interest rate. If a'loan has a
variable interest.rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.. )

“The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allfowance account-and the amount of the
loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. Interest income: continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying.
amount and is accrued using the rate:of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
‘measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part-of finance income in the statement,
‘of comprehensive income. Loans togéther with the ‘associated allowance are. written off when there is no-
realistic prospect-of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has beeri transferred to the Board
If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairmerit loss increases or decreases because of an
event. occirring -after the. impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment '10ss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is recovered in the future, the
recovery is credited to other income in thie:statement of comprehensive. income:

iiiy Financial liabilitiés

Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Board-measures financial liabilities at initial recognition at fair value, plus, in the.
case-of a financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss such ds loans or borrowings, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability.

Subsequent medsurement

Subsequieritly after initial recognition, financial liabilities aré measured at amortised cost using the effective.
interest method. excluding financial liabilities through profit or loss, financial liabilities that arise when a
transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for de-recognition or when the continuing improvement
approach. applies, financial guarantee contracts as defined in pargraph 9 of TAS 39, commitments to
provide a loan at below market interest rate and financial liabilifies that are designated -as hedge items
which aré subject to hedge accounting requirements. Financial liabilities have been subsequently measured
as follows:

Medical payables

Medical payables include payables of medical claims by registered medical service providets and:are
subsequently measured af amortised cost. Gains and losses on de-recognition and amortisation are
recognised in surplus or deficit..

Maternity leave payables

Materi'riity payables include payables to employers reimbursing them for employer social security
contributions for the third month of maternity leave granted to employees and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Gains-and losses-on.de-recognition and amortisation are recognised in surplus or deficit.

Amounts rétained on construction contracts
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These are. contractual amounts retained on paymerits to construction suppliers. They are reimbursable to
contractors after the final handover of construction projects to the Board subject fo terms and conditions
regarding uncorrected defects during the defects liability period.

Other accounts payvable

Other accounts payable are carried at amortised cost, which approximates the consideration to be paid in
the future for goods and services received.

De-recognition

A financial liability is"derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires:

d) ‘Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts :and there is. an intention to settle
oon a net basis, or realise the assét and settle the liability simultaneously.

¢) Fairvalueof financial instruments

The Board measures financial instruments such as financial assets, ‘and non- financial assets such as
investment properties, at fair’ value :at each reporting: date. Fair value related disclosures for financial

instrumierits and non-financial assets that are measured- af fair value or where fair values are disclosed, are-
summarized in the following notes:

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions - Note 7

s  Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy —Note 7

¢  Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) — Note 7

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is. détermined

.'by reference-to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction of transaction costs

For-financial instruments not traded in an active market, fhie fair value is determined: using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis or other valuation models:

» Equity Investments

Under IAS 27:-Separate Financial Statements, when separate financial statements are prepared,.an entity
accounts for investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures either at:

— Cost

— In accordance with IAS 39/IFRS 9,or

— Using the equity method described in IAS 32

The classification for the respective investments have been done in accordance with IAS39/IFRS 9. The.
measurement of fair value was determined in accordance with IFRS 13: Fair value measurement.-

For the purpose of these financial staterents, thie Board has measiired all equity investments (except those
that are publicly listed and equity investments in preference shares) using the net asset valuation method

restricted to the shareholding of RSSB in the respective investments. The directors believe that.this basis of
valuation provides the most relevant estimate of the worth of these investments.
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f) Property.and equipment

Initial recognition and measurement

Property and equipment is initially recognised at cost. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
aftributable to the acquisition of the asset. The:cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable:to- bringing the asset to a working condition for its
intended use, and-the costs.of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located. Purchased software that is integral to. the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part of that equipment.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and _'ejquipméﬁt'i's-‘recogn'i:zed'in 'the cairying value of the
item-if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Board and.
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying value of the replaced part is de-recognised. The cost of day
to day servicing of the property and equipment {s recognized inthe profit or loss as incurréd.

Subsequent measurement

IAS 16 permits an accounting entity t0-choose the cost or revaluation model as its accounting policy for
subsequent measurement of propeity and equipment.- The accounting standard requires the accounting
entity to apply-the chosen model consistently across a class of property and equipment. The Board has
cliosen the revaluation model for the-¢lass of land and buildings and the cost model for the rest of the
classes of property and equipiment i.e. office equipment, motor. vehicles, furniture and fittings, computers,
laboratory and kitchen equipment. '

- Revaluation model

Land.and buildings are subsequently measured at revalued amounts. 1t is the policy -of_ the Board to revalue
assets under the class of land and buildings every five years to determine their fair values (revalued
amounts): Revalued amounts of assets determined at revaluation are-compared to carrying values: and are
writtén up or down to match revalued amounts. Accordingly, the resultant, revaluationt surplus of deficit. is
recognised as part of other comprehensive income during-the year of revaluation and accumulated under
the. revaluation reserve. Assets are- then subsequently measured at revalued amounts less accumulated
depreciation until the next revaluation or until de-récognition of the asset.

- Cost model

Other classes of assets. excluding land and building are measured subsequently at cost less aceurnulated
depreciation. '

Depreciation expense

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of compteherisive income: and calculated to write off the
cost/revalued amounts of the property and equipment ori a straight line basis over the-expected useful lives
of the -assets concerned. Land is not depreciated. The estimated depreciation rates for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Depreciation rate
Buildings B S | 5% '
S e S _— e
Motor vehicles ' i e . H 5%
Furﬁi;ﬁre and ﬁtt_ih_gé N . o ' a T 10%
Computers T T TTTTITTTTTE333%
Kitchen equipment T L T O
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l Depreciation rate.

Labo'ratofyequiprncnt' o T A - ’ 5504

H

Managemetit and directors review the depreciation methods, residual value and useful life of an asset at the
year end and any change considered to be appropriate is recorded in surplus or deficit as a change in
estimates.

De-recognition

Assets are'de-recognised through dispoesal at sale or Board approved write off, Gains and losses on disposal
‘of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the: proceeds from disposal with the-
carrying value of property and equipment and recognized net within other income in profit ot loss, At
disposal of revalued assets, the revaluation -surplus of revalued assets is transferreéd from:the revaluation
reserve toretained earnings.

'g) Intangible assets

Recognition-and measurement

Intangible assets: acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at.cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible -assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairmerit
Josses. Intangible asséts with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may. be impaired.

Amortisation

The aimortisation-period: and. the amortisation method for -an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life orthe expected pattern of
consumption of future: economic benefits embodied in the asset are aceounted for by changing the
amortisation. period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as. changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is récogpised in the'statement of comprehensive
income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. There are no. intangible
assets with indéfinite useful lives. Tntangible assets are amortised at a rate of 50%. '

De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition-of an intangible.asset are measured as the difference between the:
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the -asset and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised.

h) TInvestment properties

Initial recognition

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, The.carrying amount
includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at:the time that cost is incurred if the
recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day servieing of an investment property..
Subsequient measurement.

Subsequent to.initial tecognition, investment properties are stated at. fair value, which teflects market
conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properti¢s are ificluded in surplus or deficit in the period in which they arise. Fair values are evaluated
every after five years by an accredited external, independent valuation expert.

21




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 '

De-recognition

Investmeént propérfies. are derecognised when gither they have been-disposed. of or when the investment
property is-permanently withdrawn from use and no-future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
The. difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is. recognised in
surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition. '
Transfers are made to or from investment propetty only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investinent property to owneér-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair
value at the date ‘of change in use. When the use of property changes. from owner occupied-to investment
property, the property is re-measured at fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any. gain arising
on revaluation is recognized through other comprehensive income.. Any loss arising on revaluation is
recognized through the surplus or deficit.

i}  Inventories

Inventoiies- are measured at the lower of cost-and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based on
first-in-first out (FIFO) principle and includes the expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventory, and
other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the erdinary course of business, less the estimated cost
of completion and selling expenses or the replacement cost as appropriate.

j) Impairment of ‘non-financial assets

The carrying amounts -of the Board’s non-financial assets other than investment properties and inventories
and are reviewed at each reporting date to. determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such
condition exists, the asset’s receverable amount is estimated and an impairmeént loss recognised in surplus
or deficit whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ifs recoverable amount.

An-asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an @sset’s.or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less
costs to sell and its. value in use-and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been ‘a change in the estimates used to determine: the
tecoverable amount and impairment loss i$ reversed only to the extent that the assets’ carrying amount that.
would have been determined net of depreciation or amortization if no impairment loss was recognized.

k) Provisions

A provision. is recognised if, 4s a result of a past event, the Board has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably ‘and it is probable that an qutflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are deterniined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments. of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. '

Where the Board expects a provision to be- reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursenient is virtually eertain.

I) Tax

Ttic Boaid is exempt from corporate income tax-under Article 46 of law No.14/2018 of 13/04/2018.
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value:added tax except:

s where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or rendering of sérvices is not recoverable

_ﬁfom_the_ _tax'_f_;ti__oﬁ. authority, in which case the value added tax is recoghised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset-or as part of the expense item as applicable; and
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e feceivables and payables that are stated with the amount of value added tax included

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, orpayable to, ‘the taxation authority is included as
part of accounts receivables or account payables in the staterhent of financial position.

m) Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured ‘at amortised cost subsequent.-to initial recognition. For the
purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash and bank that are

available on demand as at the reporting date.

n) Capital work-in-progress
The ongoing construction/installation of capital projects are recorded at the cost to date or valuation and

are-only transferred into. the relevant assets. categories once completed and commissioned. No ‘depreciation

is compuited on-capital work-in-progress as these assets are not yet available for use. However, an expected
impairment loss on capital work-in-progtess is recognized immediately in surplus -or deficit. Currently,
capital work in progress consists of Investment properties underconstruction.

0) Members’ funds

The Boa‘r_d is funded through contributions from members and investment income. Contributions are
accounted for as. follows:

(i) Contributions from members

‘Contributions from employees remitted by the employers are recognized on a cash basis. Contributions due

but not vet received at the end. of the financial year are not.accrued but accounted for and recognized in

subsequent years when received.

(i) Benefit payments to members

Bénefits to members are accounted for on a cash basis. Benefit payments made. but not collécted by
members are written back in the-cash book and no liability thereof recognized in the financial statements.
p) Leases

Leases; where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership ar¢ transferred to the Board are.

_classified as finance leases. Thie leagsed assets are measured initially at'an amount equal to the Tower of their

fair value and thie present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
assets aré accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
q) Statutory reserves

The statutory resefves are set up under article 11 of law number 06/2004 of 22 March 2004 moditying and
¢completing law of 22/08/1974. The article stipulates that the. National Social Security Institutions provide
the following reserves for both the.occupational hazards and pensions:branchies. '

Pension’s branch statutory reserve
This comprises the working capital and technical reserves as explained below;

Working capital reserve is equivalent to a quarter of the total expenses of the pension’s branch previous
year. Technical reserve should not be lower than the total expenses of the branch for the last three years.

Oc’cuparfo:zal Hazards branch siatutory reserve.

This comprises the- occupational hazards technical, security and working capital reserves as explained
below;

Technical reserve must be equal to twelve times the total amount of occupational hazards paid during the
year. Security resetve is equal to a quarter of the expenses incurred during the. last three years Working
capital reserve should be'equal to a quarter-of the expenses of the previous year.
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i)  New standards or amendments for 2019 and forthcoming requirements
New curfently efféctive requirements

The following standards or amendments issued by thé International Accounting Standatds Board (TASB)
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and have been applied by the
Board in the preparation of these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019.

‘New amendments or interpretation o o Effective_da'te'-

» IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customiers

« [FRS9 Financial Instruments ' o o _ . -

o Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions {Amendinents to
IFRS 2) R N o . _

) ﬁ*‘lgéy%lg IFRS 9 Financial Instruments-with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amenidments: t0= 1 January 2018
Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40) . e

s Annual Im'pr'ov:ménts“'ld [FRSs 20142016 Cycle — various standards (Amendments to
IFRS 1 aid IAS 28) _ _ . _ o

s [IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactionsand Advance Consideration

RSSB has chosen not to adopt IFRS 9.in'the preparation of these financial statements. RSSB has decided
to adopt and implement IFRS 9 in the preparation of the financial statements for the year ending 30 June
2020. The othier accounting standards do riot have a significant impact on these financial statements.

“Fhe impact of other standards is not expected to be significant.
Ferthcoming requiréments

A number of new standards, amendiments to standards and interpretations are effective. for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2019, and have riot been applied in preparing these financial statements.
Those which may be reievant to the Board are.set out beiow. The Board does not plan to adopt. these
standards early. These will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory or/ and effective.

New standards or amezdments _ _ _ N _ ‘Effective date
IFRS 16 Leases ' o '
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments.

Prepayment features with Négat’i'\fe_Compepgaﬁbn (_Amendments to IFRS' 9y

Lbng—term-i'meréét in Associates and Joint Ventures '__("A_mcnc_iments to .I_AS_'Z;B__)’ h I January 2019

Plan Amef_n_dme'n't, Curtailiment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19) _ .
Annual improvement to TFRSs 2015-2017 cycle {Amendments to. IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12}
‘and IAS 23)

.Amei}d_mehts_ to References to Concepfuhl'l?fameworki in IFRS standards.

Définition of a Busihéss (Atﬁ'cnclment_s.to_ iF_RS'. 3) _ _ - - 1 January 2020

‘Definition-of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and 1AS 8) o |

IERS 17 Insurance contracts S o  1anuary 2021

‘Sale or antributiorf_l_ of Assets between an investor and its Associate or Joint Venture | Available for early

(Amendments'to IFRS 10 and [AS'8) -adoption —
effective date

deferted

indefinitely.
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The stanidards above are béing assessed by the Board and with the exception of IFRS 16, no material
impact is expected on the Board’s financial statements in the period of initial -application ‘of these
standards.

TFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was published in January 2016. Jt sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for-both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer {‘lessee’). and -the
supplier (‘lessor’). IFRS 16 replaces: the ‘previous leases Standard, IAS 17 Leases, and- related
Initerpretations i.e. IFRIC 4, SIC 15 and SIC 27.

Th_e-standard"-introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises
a right-of- use asset representing its. right to-use the underlying asset and lease liability représenting: its
obligation to make. lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short term. leases and leases of
low value items, Lessor accounting femains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify
leases as finance and operating leases.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early -adoption
permitted only if the entity also adopts IFRS 15.

The Board is required to adopt IFRS 16 Leases from 1 July 2019. The Boaird has dssessed that. the-
estimated impact that initial application of [FRS 16 will have on its financial statements, as described
below. '

i)  Leases in which the Board (RSSB) is a lessee
The Board will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases for premises occupied by some
of the RSSH branches.across Rwanda. '

Previously, the Board recogrised the operating lease expense on a straight line basis. over the term of the:
lease, and recognised assets and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing difference between the
-actual lease payments and the expense recognised. The nature of expenses related to those leases will now
change because the Board will recognise’ a depreciation charge for the right of use assets and interest
-expense-on lease liabilities.

ji)  Leases in‘which the Board (RSSB) is a lessor

The Board holds a number of leases as a lessor for premises it lets to the publi¢ located ‘at its various
investment properties in Rwanda. No significant impact is expected on these leases for which the Board is
a lessor.

i) Transition

The Board plans to apply IFRS 16 initially on 1 July 2019, using the modified retrospective approach:
Therefore the cumulative effect of -adopting IFRS 16 will be recognised -as .an adjustment to opening;
balance of retained earnings as at 1 July 2019, with no restatement ‘of comparative. information. The Board
plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on transition. This means that
it will apply IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into before I July 2019 and identified as leases in accotdance
with IAS 17 and IFRIC 14.

7. Determination of fair value

Faii value measurement

Fait-values of cash.and deposits with commercial- banks, trade receivables, loans and advances and other
payables reasonably approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments and/or because they carry interest rates that reasoriably approximate to market rates.
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The, carrying amounts of equity securities held for trading and at fair value through profit of loss are. the
same as-their fair values since the instruments-are presented at fair value.

Valuation hierarchy

IFRS 13 requires a three tiered disclosure for-all fi nancial assets and financial liabilities that are carried in
the books of entities at fair value. This fair value disclosure is divided into three levels as follows:

Level 1 — quoted prices (_unadJusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. e.g. quoted equiity
securities.

Level 2 — inputs other than quéted prices included withini Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability
eithiér directly (e.g, prices) ot indirectly (e.g. derived from prices).

Levél 3 — inputs for the: asset or liability that are not based ‘on observable market data. These items aré not,
Level 1 products:and contain at least one significant input parameter which could not be price tested from
any of the methods described for Level 2 products. Examples are products where. correlation is-a significant
input parameter and products where there is severe illiquidity in'the markets for a ‘prolonged period of time.

a)  Valudtion models

The Board measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of
inputs used in making the measurements..

Lével T — inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted market prices included within level 1that are observable either-
directly(like prices) or indirectly ( derived prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted
market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments. in
‘miarkets that dre considered less. active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable from market data.

For the purpose of these financial statements, the Board has measured all equity investments (¢xcept those
thiat are publicly listed and &quity investments in preference shares) using the net asset valuation method
restricted to the sharéholding of RSSB in the respeéctive investments. The directors believe that this basis-of
valuation provides the most relevant estimate of the worth of these investments.

b} Valuation Framework

The Board has established clear guidelines on how fair value is 1o be determined for all assets and
liabitities measured at fair value, These guldelmes are included in the board’s operational manuals, The
fair value of both financial/non-financial assets and fair values have been determined for measurement
and/or diselosure purposes based on the methods below;

i) fnvestment'p}‘opertfes

The Board uses an external indépendent valuation company with recognized, professmnal qualification
experience and. values the Board’s investment properties after-every five years (previously on-an annual
basis). The fair values are based on the market conditions being the price that would be received to sell an
asset in an orderly trafisaction between market participants on the ‘measurement date. In the absence of an
active price in ah active market, the values are: prépared by considering the. aggregate of the estimated
cash flows expected to be teceived from- renting out the property. The yield that reflects the specific risks
inherent in the net cash flows then is applied to the net annual cash. flows to arrive at the property
valuation,
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fi) . Investment in debt and equity securities

The fair value of finaricial ‘assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity-invesiments and
available for sale is determined by refererice to their quoted bid price at the repoiting date if available; the
fait value for non-quoted equity instruments has been determined using the net asset value methodology
and ‘the fair valie of held to maturity investments: is ‘determined using the discounted cash flow

methodology.

(iii)  Trade and other receivables
The: fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows;

discounted at the market rate of interest. at the reporting date. The fair value of trade and other receivables
is determinéd at-initial recognition.

) Assets measured at fair-value

The table below shows the assets measured at fair value and their relevant fair hierarchy.

As at.30 June 2019

Property and équipment
Investment properties
Asset held for sale
Equity investments
Total

Asat 30 June 2018

"Property and equipmient.
Investménit propertics.
Assets held for sale:
Equity investments
Total

Levell Level 2 Amount not Total as per
measured at statement of.
fair value financial position:
Frw Frw Frw Frw
- 10,797,227,793 593.959.663 11,391.187,456
- 125,796.238,507 ~ 125,796,258;507
- 454,499,522, - 454,499,522
101,582,746,586. 241,129.413,661 73,204.441,630 416,006,601,877
191,582,746,586 378,177,399,485 73,868;401.291 553,648,547,362
Level 1 Level 2 Amount not Total as per-
measured at fair statement of
value financial position-
Frw Frw Firnw Frw
- 11,596,850,738 973,105,915 12,569,956,653
- 109,070,094,904. - 109,070,094,904
- 454,499,522 - 454,499,522
76,451,906,550 232,002,015,804 45,216,288413  353,670,210,767
76,451,906,550. '353,123,460,968 46','_189',394,323 475,764,761,846
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d)  Financial assets and liabilifies not measured at fair value

The table below sets out the carrying values-of financial assets and liabilities not measured ‘at fair value;

30 June 2019
Scheines Pension Medical CBHIL Maternity Total
leave
Frw Frw Frw Firw Frw
Financial assets
Equity investments, 64.910.077,538 8,384,364,091 - - 73,204441,630
Treasury bonds $1,739,355,258 6,702,661,429 - - 88,442,016,687
Treasury bills 76,108,492,910  40,286,278.145 - 3,828:868,134  120,223,639,189
Comimercial papers 16,145,013,966 - - - 16,145,013,966
Loan and advances to. o _ - o
third parties- 5.935,605982  35,323,037.943 - - 41,258,643,925,
Mortgage loans 146,536,580 - - - 146.536,580
Advancesto contractors. 9,194,995.837 2,880,000 6,600,000 240,000 9,204,715,837
Dividend reccivible 4,488,574,825 94,284,845 - - 4,582,859,670
Other assets 5,193,975,017 7,057,855,548  2,974,038,164 201,571.623  16,327,440,352
Deposits with financial o o B -
institutions 129;770,370,78%°  101,531,202.883 - 1231,301,573,671
Casly and bank balances 38,259.934,982 20.877.732.927  6506947.307 10012737184 84:657.351.700
Total 431,896,822,402  230,160,297,811 9,487,585,471  14,043,416941  685,584,233,207 |
Finauncial liabilities -
Amounts .retai'ned_ on o _ o
conétriction contracts 572,284,214, 59,183,315 - - 631,467,529
‘Medical benefits payable - 5,367.117,082  14,199,193;773 293,835,463 19,860;146.318
‘Other payables 12.217,145,504 2,374,005,873  16,472,772,226 493,613,730 31,557,537.333
Total 12,789,429,718 7,800,306,270 _ 30,671,965,99% 787,449,193 52,049,151,180
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30 June 2018
Sehomes Pension ‘Medical CBHI' Ma;'cm'ity_ Total
: leave. )

Frw Few Frw Fiw Frw

Financial assets. .

Equity investrients - 45,216,288413 - - 45,216,288.413

Government bonds 2.401,098,014 - - - '2\4(._)].:09550].4

Cotporaté bonds 2,536,177.884 - - - 2.536,177,884

Treasury bonds 44,778.824.665 9.736,699.892 - - 54,515,524,557

Treasury bills 41,357,127,468 23,966,624,601 - - 65,323,752,069

Commercial papets. 26:441,789:083 - - - 26/441,789,083

Loan and advances 1o, 6.638,963,650  12,000,000.0600 - - 18638963650

1hitd parties o ]

Advances to 7.981,132,216 75,614,095 3,378,155 86,619 8,060,211,083

-contractors o o .

Dividend and other 3,328.253.747 ]-2?;55']._,775- 65,179 - 3,455.870,701

income receivable _ S o

QOther.assets 4,044,719.734 :6;’892,1 61,337 1,038,702,266- 280,411,889 14,255,995.226

Deposits with 140,544 402 437 93,039,122,306 - - 233?5_83',_5 24.743

financial institutions. _ _

Cash and bank 63,293,412 .961 46,738,354,691 2,002,091.212  6,733,353,394 120,787.212.258

balances

‘Tatal 343,651.9 14,548 23 ?,7'92;41 7110 33,044;236__,31"2 0:033,851,902 595,522,420,372

Financial

liabilities . » .

Amounts retained on (206,958,279} (485,333,126) - - (652,311,405)

construction contracts _ _

Medical benefits - {4,335,704,616) (16,262,179,181)  (163,057,326)  (20,760,941.123)

payable o

(ther payables (£1,387,149,560) (1,829,836,719) (9.962,882,824)  (800,342,245)  (23,980,211,348)

Total {11,594,107,839) ({6,650,894,461) (26,225,062,005) (963,399,571} (45,433,463.876)
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8. Operating segments

8.1. Basis for Segmentation.

Rwanda Social Sécu_r’i't_y Board has the following five schemes as shown:

Reportable segments Operations.
Pension " 1 Contributions from employers and employees in Rwanda and
) provides benefits to pensioners, invalids.and other benefi c1anes
Medical "1 Provides medical insurance services. N
‘Community Based Health 1 Provides community-based health i insurance scheme
Anitiative
Maternity | Provides matemlty leave 1 msurance serwces

Heza)

Long term savmgs scheme (EjD

' 'Asmstmg the public to- accunulate- savmgs fora chgmf' ed and secure

retivement. Ejo Heza is an inclusive scheme which targets both
salaried and non-salaried workers

Although the schemes are overseen by the same management team, they have different objectives and are

managed separately within the Board’s management and internal reporting structure.

8.2, Contribution to performance

2018/2019 .Pensi'on_ ... Medical i CBHI Matermty _
Contributions 2% 26% i 18% %
‘Benefits Paid 27% 25% _ _ 47% ) M
Return on 66% 32% . 1% : 1%
Investment __ o N T S
Assets 73% 25% % | 1%
20172018 Pension ‘Medical . ! CBHI M_a’tern_ity
Contributions 4 S W% 19% . %
Benefits Paid _ 25% 26% 48% . 1%
Assets T4% 25% 0% 1%
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8.3. Information abeut reportable segments

8.3.1.Statement of comprehensive income per scheme

Denlings with.
members

Contributions:

Benefits paid

Net additians
from dealings:

‘with members

Returns en
invistnients

Investment
income

Change:in fair
valug of
financial assets
at fair vatue
through profit
or loss

Write back

Realized gain

on disposal:ol
assels

Less:
investment

..Bwn.ﬁm.m_.:m:—.

expenses

Net returns

on

investments

Other income

Note

10-

1

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme Moaternity Leave Scheme Total

2019 2018 . 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 1018 2019 2018
Few Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
SAF70,069259  R3IAANTOSRO  46A31ASI620 42248625559 33383072084 30082818834 6749967130 6059777866  180.935,180.102  (61.735301838
(27.509617425)  (21;537.323,822)  (25.918181,403)  (22230013,298)  (48.683;513,028). (41,765.245,302) (1,811.813,191)  (B35.126,868) .(104,007,225.047) (86,367.709;290)
mmud,ﬁrﬁ» 61,806,755,767 10,512,970.226  20,018,612,261 :.muce.&p&é, {11,682436478)  4.938,053939  5,224,650,998 76,927,955,055  75,367,592.548
38076216369 331912641437 15420,732434 15,062,978,974 451,718,039 216,559,018 500845933 155467346 54539512775 - 48.347,646.767
(2,768 370,125) 11435,735.480° 1,965.564,510 3.291,106,500 - - - - (802.805,613)  14.726,341,980
1,343,020.000 12261675836 - 26,567,791 - (155,999.745) - (3,996,358} 1,343.020,000 12128247524
51 ._..ac,.mmo (91,919 560 2.834,178 2725694 6,494,990 59 843,067 236,181 60311 321,315.809 (29,290 488)
(1281,331.251)  {1,259,193.669) (214,199,384} (190,381,428) - - . - (1,500,531.135)  (1,449,575.097)
'35,881,285,553  56258,939,524 17,169,931,238 18,192,997,531 458,213,029 120,402,332 591,082,114 151,531,299 54,100,511,934 - ﬂ._._du._mé._.w%
1.591,820,604 1,074285,820 338,535,400 58,006,802 505,932,899 357,005,519 178,97 228 835 6.936,467,000 138961697
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Note

Expenditure.

Statf costs 17

Administrative 18
expenses

Depreciation

and

dmoriization

charge

Other

20

expenses

Totzl

‘exfienses

Net ibcome
Tor the period

Pension Sehemé Meilical Schieme CBHI Scheme Maternity Leave Scheme Todal.
2019 2018 2002 2018 2019 018 2019 8 219 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Vrw Frw. Frw Frw
{1.896,852218) (2,844 842,677) (23967438577  (2.844.842673)  (5490,888023)-  (3,695,075941) {199.668,685)  (94,745495) (9,984,152,789)  (4,479.506,786)
(1.07760%,593)  (1,570,226,800)  (1,245.809.754) (1,531,003 883) (2:295316.877) (123:840419)  (71,299.572) (5,894,500,261) G.‘SHES_.,_.:
(195,712,230} {271.618243) (929,775,585} (992,315.211) (292,777,835} (209:325 446} {9.335,370) (3,933,839} {1,427,601.020)  (1477,192,739)
(868,141 976) {435 975,160)  (2,671,189,370)  (2;265.459,085) {145:929 334} (165,729,823) {3,870,902) (4,249,479} [3:689,131,582y  (2,871,413,547)
4,038,316.018) {5,122,662.889)  (7.243,518,566)  (7,633,620,852y  (9:376,735,692)  .(G,365.448,087) (336,824,376} (174,228.3B5)  (20,995,394,652) (19,295,960.213)
100212.161,973. 194,017318.222 30,777,918,298 30,635,995,74F  (19.213,030,708)  (17.670,376,714)  5,192489,774 520%18L747 116969539337  132,185,119.997
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8.3.2. Statement of financial position per scheme

Assels

Property-and
equipment
ntangible.
assets
[nvestmient

. properties
Investment
properiies in
Emﬁ&ﬂmmw.o_. :
construction
Assetsheld for
sale

Equity
“investments

Gavernmenl
bands

Corporate
mo:nw

Treasury.
bornds-

Treasuty bifls
Commercial
papers,
Loan-and
advances to
thiiid parties
Mortgage -
loans
Inventory’
Advances to
na:ﬂanﬁcﬂ.
Dividend
recervable

Note

21

22

23

24

26

27

28:

28

30

M

32

33

34

.36

Pension Schemie.

2019

Fra-

1,116,847.223,
266:927,096

112,578,688,247
5,306,978,580

454 499,522

373,977475,219

81,739,355.258
76108492910

16,145.013.966
5935605982

146,536,580
56,212,892
9,194,595,837

4.488,574,825

2018
Frw
1,345.951.288
31588701

96.920,218 856
903,540,000.

454499522
313,952,893,422
2401098014
2.536,177,884
44,778,824 665

41357127 468

26.441,789.083
6.638.963 650

“306,012,689
66398028
'7981,132216

3.328.253,747

Medical Schieme

271,587,722

13217,570.260

42,029,126,658

6:702 661,420

40.286.278,1435

35323037943

71 005,759

2,880,060

94,284,845

2018

Frw

10,856,503.048.

31,584,703

12,149.876,048

39,717,317,345

9:736,499,802

23 966,624,601

£2,000,000,000

66,308,028

75614095

127,551,773

CBHL Scherie
2019 2018,
Frw Frw
310,549,870: 359,937,739
51,204,195 41207214
162,721,531 86,317.436
6,600,060 3378,155
65,179

Maternity Léave Scheme

2012

Frw

9 876,505,

1,864,248

3828 868,134

5.217,148

240,000

2018

Frw

7.564;578

002,715

2,213,268

86,615

Total

2019 2018

Frw Frw
11:391,187,456, 12.569:956,653
591,673.261. 105,282,333
125796258507  109.070,094.904
5,306,978.580 903,540,000
454,499,522 454,499,523
416,006, 601877  353,670.210,767
0 2401098614

()} 2.536,177.,884
88.442.016,687 54.515,3524,557
120223,639;189 65,523.752,069
16,145,013 966 26,441,789,083
41,258,643 925 18,638,963,650
146,536,580 306,012,689
“295.857330 221,326,758
G204,715.837 £.060,211,085-
4,582.8591670 3.455.870,701
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Other assets

Deposits with
finanicia
institutions

Cash and bank:
balances

Total assets.

Less:
Linbilities
Current
fiabilities
Amounts.
retained on

-consiruction
contracts.

Medicaland
Maternity
benefits
payable

Olher payables

Net assefs
available for
benelits

_ﬂm__._wnme:ﬁw
by

Capfial

Accumulated
‘member funds
-and retained
earnings

Revaluation
FeRerve

“Fair value
1eserve

Note

37

38

39

41

43

44

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme- Mateérnity Leave Scheime Tatal
2019 2013 2019 1018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019, 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw Fiw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
5.193,075.017 4044719734, 7957855548 6,892,161,337 2.974,038,164 1,038,702,266 01,571,623 2280,311,889 16.327,440:352. 14,255,995.226
129,770,370;788. 140544402437 101.531,202,883  93,039,122.306 - - - - 231,301 573:671 233,583,524,743
38,250,934,282 65293412961 29877732927  46.738,354,691 6.506,947307 2002891,212  10912737,184 6753353394 84,657351.700.  120,787.212.258.
$60,734.484224 759327000365 .287,325,137.977  255397,807,869 10,012,151 .067 3,531,699,201 14061074842 0044,535461  1,172,132,848.010  1127,301,042.896
572284314 206,958,279 59,183,315 485,353,126 - - - . 631 467,528 692,341,403
0 - 5367,117,082 4335704616 14,199,193,773  16.262,179,181 293,835,463 163,057,326 19.860,146,318 20.760.941,123
12217:145.504  11387.149,560 2,374 005.873 1,820,836,719  16.472.77%,226 9,962,882,824 493613730 300342245 31557537333 23,080,211,348
12,789,429,718  11594,107,839 7,800,306,270 6,650,894,461  30,671.965999  26,225,062,005 787,449,193 963,399,571 52,049,131,180. 45,433,463,876
847045054506  TATTILBOZSI6 279524831707 245746913408 (20,659814.937)  (22,693,362,804) 13173625649  B0ELI35890 1120083696930  981867,579.020
53.393,658 '53.393,658 1,179,070.491 1,179,070 491 - - - 1232.464,149, 1232464, 149
326527199150 295353431958 261718146133 232905792344 (20659.814932)  (22,693362,804) 13273625649  -80B1,135800  "580,859,156,000 513,646,597,188
253735415 253735415 4,251,952,194 4.251,952,594 - - - - 4,505,627 609 4,505,687.609
4,524,510,205 7292880330 12375662889  10,410,098.379 - - . B 16,900,173,094 17,7072 978,709
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Statutory
TESErves

Total rescrves

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme Maternity Léave Schieme Tatil
2019 2018 019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018, 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw- Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw. Frw Trw
$16586,216078 - 444779451 365" - - - . - - 516586216078  444,779.451,365.
847045054506 747732892526 279.524831,707 248746913408 (20,659.814,932)  (22.693.362.804)  13273,625,640 8081135890  1.120,083.696,930 _ 981.867,579.020
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8.3.3. Statements of changes in members’ funds and reserves

As at 30 June 2019
Statement
reference
Pension scheme 8.3.3:1
Medical scheme 8332
CBHI scheme 8333
..ZEQEQ leave 8334
scheme
‘Total
As at 30 June 2018
Statement
veference
Pension scheme m.m‘m..._
Medical schemic: 8.33.2
CBH]) scheme: 8333
Maternity leave 8,334
scheme
Total
[ = =

.Gaw..:m_

Occupational  Pension reserves Accumulated Fair value Revaluation Taotal
hazard memiber funds reserve reserve

rEServes and retained

earnings
Tirw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
53393658 55.899,384,637  460,686.831.441  326,527,19%,149  4,524.510,205 253735415  847,945,054,506
1,179,070.491 - ~ 261718146133  12,375.662.:389  4,251.952,194 279,524,831,707
- - - (20,659.814.932) - - (2065981493
- - - 13273625649 - - 13,273,625,649.
1,232,464,149° '55,899,384,637  460,686,831,441  580,859,155,929 16,500,173.094  4,505.687,609 1,120,083,696,930
Capital  Occupational  Pension reserves Accuniulated Faitvalue  Revaluation Total

‘hazaird member funds reserve. reseive
reserves -and retained
earnings )
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw’ Frw- Frw
33,393,658  42954,573,278  401.824.878,087  295.353431,757 7,292,880,330 253,735,413 147,732,892.526
1,179,070,491 - - 232905792344 10.410,098,379 4251952194 248,746,913,408
- - - (22,693,362,804) - - Hm.w,awm.uau,.m:&.
- - - 8,081.135,390 - - 8,081,135,896
1,232,464,149  42,954,573,278  401.824,878.,087  513.646.997.187 17,702,978,709  4,505.687,609 981,867,579,020
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8.3.3.1. Statement of member’s fund and reserves — Pension scheme

Atl July 2017
Adjustment for
prior year
[herease in net
assets for the'year
At 30 June 2018
Adjustment for.
prior year
Increase in net
assets for the year
At 30-June 2019

Capital  Occupational  Pengsion reseryes Total Statufory Accumulated Fair value Revaluation Totals.
Mazard Reserves members’ fund Teserve reserve
Teserves and retained
carnings
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frv Frw Frw Frw
53,393,658 31893887144  349.805409,521  381,699,296,665  266,982:642.404 (15.273,493,844) 253,735415  633,715,574,298
- - - - 7 - 7
- 11,060,686,134 52,019,468,566 6£3,080,154,700 28,370,789,347 22,566,374,174 - 114.017,31 8.222
53393658  42,954,573.278.  401,824,878,087  444,779,451365  295353,431,757  7.292,880,330 353.735415  747,132.892.526.
- - - - 7 - - 7
12/944811,359  58.861,953,354 71,806,764,713  31,173,767,385  (2,768,370.125) - 100,212,161,973
33,393,658  55,899,384,637 #60,686,831,441 516,586,216,078. 326,527,199,14% . 4,524,510,205 253,735415  847,945,654,506
37
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8.3.3.2. Statement of member’s fund and reserves — Medical scheme

Capital Retained earnings Fair Value Résérve Revaluation Resérve Total

Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw

At 1 July 2018 1,179,070.491 205,560,903.030 7.118,991.879 4,251,952,194 218.110,917,594
Net- incofe for the year - 27.344,889,242 3.791,106,500 - 3(1,635.995.742
Adjustment for prior year - 72 - - 72
At 30 June 2618 . L1 qcbu@,nau 23 N.,mz-m_uum_.uha 14.410,098,379 4,251,952,1%4 248,746,913.408
Adjustmént for prior-year - 1 - - 1
Net incomie for the year - 28.812.353.788 1,965.564,510 - 30,777.918,298
At30 Jime 2019 _ 1,179.070.491 261,718,146,133 12,375,662,889 1251,952,194 279,524,831,707

At1d uly 2017

Loss for the year
Adjustment foi priov year
mncmm&am..maa Government
At30 June3018

Loss for the year

Subsidies from Government
At 30 June 2019

8.3.3.4. Statéement of member’s fund and reserves — Maternity leave scheme’

At 1.July 2017

Net m.:no.q._._n forthe year
Adjustment for prior year
At 30 June 2018

Net income for the year
Adjustiment for prior ycar
At 30 June 2019

8.3.3.3. Statement of member’s fund and reserves —- CBHI scheme

Retained earnings

Frw
{13:405,436,714)
(17.670,376,714)

(579

8.382,500,681

(22,693,362,804)
(19,213,030,708)
21,246,578,580

{20,659,814,932)

Retainei carnings

Frw
2,878,953, 164
5,202,182.747

21

8,081,135,899
5.192.489,774
(15)

13273625649
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8.3.4.Statement of cash flows per sclieme

Increase in net
assets for the
year

Adjusted for:

Depizciation and

amerlization
vesdiment
income

Realized pain on
disposal of assetd.
(equity

Jinvesiments,

PPE, Assets held:

for sale and

Invéstment
firoperties)
nwmzmn_ in.fair-
value.of equity

“invéstments.

“Write om...

‘Write back

Other .
adjusiments of

opening balances

Operating
income for
charges in
‘working capital

(Increase)/Decre-

ase in advance to
confractors

{Increase YDecre-
“ase in Dividend
-and othier indome

receivable’

Pensian Scheme Medical Scheme CBH! Scheme: Maternity leave Scheme’ Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 208 2019 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frv Fiw Frw Frw, Frw Frw Frw Fiw
100,212,161973 I 30777018208 30635995742 (19213030708) (17670376714 5,192,489.774 5202182747 116,969,539.337  132,185,119.997
198712230 271618243 929 775,585 992,315,211 292,777 835 209,325,446 9,335,370, 3,933.839 1.427.601,020 JATTI9TI0
{38,076,216 369) (33912,641,437).  {15420:732.434)  (15,062,978.974) (451.718,039) (216,559,010} (590,845,933 ({55467.346) (54539512774 (49,347,646 767)
511,750,560 91,919,560 (2,834,178} (2,725.694Y (6,494 990) (59,843,067 1236,181) 460,311 (521,315,909) 29,250,488
2:768.370,125 (11,435.735480)  {1,965,564,510)  (3,291,106,500} - - - - .mﬁ..%maw {14.726,841.580)
- 22,628 298 - - - - - - - 23628308
(1,343,020,000) {12,261 675,436} - (26,567,791 - 155,599,745, 3,996,338 {1,343,020,000) {12,128,247.524)
93173304 522,913,763, S0809758 26,567,792 (1353,524.717) (97.073,345) (8,470,307} {3:996.358) 54 448,411,852
63.338,430,703: 87316345332 14369384536 13271499785 (19,513990,619) (17,678,526,946) 4,602,272,723  5,050,588930 62,796,097,343 57,959,907,102
(1,213,863 621) (4,787.922,706) 72,734,005 (2,598.581) (3,221,845} (3:378,155) (153381} {86,519 {]:144,504,752) {4,793,986.061)
- (2,570.687.235) - -52,241,508 - (65.179) - - . (2,818:510,905)
(738.157,653) (1,568,578.925)  {1,045,086:556) 2,121,040 843 {1935,270:71%) 904,880,280 2078840266  (602,031.428) (1,639,674 662) 835,310,770
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{Increase)/Decre-
asein inventory

IncreasefDecrea
-s€} in _
mcdical/maternit
y claims
payables
[ncreases(Decrea
sel.in other.
payables

.manﬂuwnkcnnﬂﬁ.

3¢} ift contract

retentions

Net cash flows

‘from operating.
.mnzi:nm

‘Cash flows used in investing activities:

Dividend income
received:

-Rent received

Oftlier interest.

income received

{cument -

accounts, call
‘depositand

morigage loans)

Purchases for

-frivestment
_property under
-conslruction

Purchase of
properly and
cyuipment
Purchase of
intangible asset

Purchase of .
investment
properties

Purchas¢ of
equity

Pension .mmr.aan. Medical Schenie CBHI Scheme Maternily leave Scheme “Totat
209 2018 019, 2018 209 2018 2019 2M8. 219 ms
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
(11,739,308} (4.607,731) {11,739,398) {76,404,095) (15,261,216} (3,703,882) (391,310} (74,530,572) (35,131,322)
- - 1031412466 486,642,654 (2062 985408) 5,554 535235 130,778,137 (222;541,231) (900,794,205) 5.818,636:658
826 995 044 (2858022 781h) 544,160,154 (2.880,214,723) 6300880402 {5,126,149,050) (306,728,515). 522,339 86l TTSTTIS985  {10,342,246,662)
365325935 (130,838,744} (426,169.811) 326,400 - - - - (60,843,876} (124,512,344}
_.m.uuﬁ.“.u._.m...ﬁ.t 44988355544 14541,836,153  13,043,198.489 (17,081.983.284)  (16,363,965,031) 6,500;305,348  4,747,878,203 66,553,074,661 46,415,467,206
3,658.553.512 3,637.115,594 459,335:590 376,500,309 : - - - 4,117,889,102. 4 013,615,967
1,662.412461. 2,510,790,240 2,.873,719429 615,849,004 - - - - -4,536,131,890 3,126:630,334
3.937,563.644 3510.659,592 - 1,226 221,426 451718038 216;559.010 413977799 155467.346 4.803,259.482 5,108.907.374
{4,443.438,580) (5:835,118 388) - - - - - - (4 403,438 580) (5,835,118,388)
(23.938:020 (198,944,022} {20,132,236) (198.944.022) (50361,373) (317,553.6529) (4:135,538) (6,631 467 (98,567,167) (7220731413
(797.734,339) (13;731,322) (303,878952) {13,731,322) (67.590,857) (17.850.718) . (457711 (669.204,138% (45,771,072}
(4,793,721.130 (F06.879.621)  (1,067,694.212) - - - - - {5,861.415,342) {706,879,611)
(62,562,485 468} (i2.457.795 244) - (238040439 - B - - (52.362,485068)  (42,695.835.683)
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invesiments

Proceeds-from
disposal af°
Equity”
investmerits .
Reeeipt from
settiement-of
Government
Baond {Interest
and principal}

‘Receipts fram

settlement of
Corporate bonds
{Intérast.and
principal)

‘Receipts:from
Treasury bond -
coupor interest
income received
Réceipts from
Treasury bilt
maturities
{Interest and
principal)

Receipts-from

.Commercial
‘papers matunties”

{principal and
interest)

Inyestment in

“Treasury bongs.

Investment-in
Treasury tills

Investmentan

‘Cammergial
papers

Receipis from

“setfement.of

loans-and .
advandes (o third
partics

"Pension Scheme

2059

m._..s.

2,795,2800,238

2.806,250,000

9491322234

123,293,200,000

39.988,057,300

(39.510.330.217)

(153,955,695443)

(37,828 057.500)

1.553,357.668

2018

Frw

-5,452.962.430

24928 060 476

381 823,749

8.627414,044

66,612,H00,000

(7:899,094.207)

{101,639,581,895)

(25,612,470,000)

201.918,668:00

Medical Scheme CRHI Scheme.
2019 2H8. 2019 20i8.
Frw Frw Frw Frw
3.985,190,511 - -

51.971 500,600 26,522 400,000 - -
(65,943,402,514)  (35.267.679,780) - -
2,9723,540,630 $.382.500.681 - -

Maternity leave Scheme”

2019 2018
Trw Frw
(3,652,000,000) -

Tatal.
2009 2018,
e Frw
; 5 452,962,430
2.795.280.238° 24,928,060.476
2,806:250.000 381,823,740
13476,512.745. 12,578,230.469
171613000000 123,134 400,000

39,988,057 500

@Pwa.,uwc.m._ Tt a..%c.._.uﬁnﬁv
(219,899,007957) (136,907,261 675)

(37,828,057,500)

4,476 898208

(25.612:470 000)

9.184.419.349
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Additional lvans
and advances to
third parties
during the year'
Sellement of
mortgage loans
Flacément of
tern deposits
during the year

:Settlement.of

term deposits
during the year

{Inctease)/Decre
ase m call

-deposit

Protéeds from
disposal of PPE-
-and Investment
properties

Neteashused in

-investing
Activities,

Oumw“_._”ci._._..oz_ :zusn?w.nnn?.m:nm

-Net-cash lrem

financing
activities

Net incréase if
cash and cash
equivalents

" Cashdnd cash

equivalents at |
duty

Cash arid cash
equivalents ak

30 June-

Pension Scheme. Medical Scheme CBHI.Scheme Maternity leave Schemié- Total
20i9 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 29 2018 2019 2018
Few Frw Frw Eiw Frw Frw- Frw: .H_,;. Frw Frw
R - (26246,578573)  (8.382,500,681) . . - < (26,246,578,573) (#,382.500.680)
159,476,109 208,699,256 - - - - - 159476,109 208,699,256
(116,752,381.603)  (108.000:000,000)  (79,000,000,000)  {69.000,000,000) - - - - {195.752,341,603)  (177,000.000,600)
139,458.857,408 123636,231,146 78962808233 84301004817 - - - - 218421665640  207.337.233963
- 16,459.495 464) - . - - - - - (6,459,495.460)
1.498,016,393 20,242,847 2834,178 3010798 6,494,990 2470778 236,81 63,351 1,507,581,742 25787773
(89,625,395,123) (29,095,192.203)  (3LAOZASTHNT) 12277407306 340,260,799 (116374,559)  {3,241,921,558) 148441,518  (123929,513,79%)  (16,785.717,938)
- - - - 21.246,578,580 8.382.500,681 - - 71,246,578,580 $.382,500,681
- - - - 21246;578.580 8,382,500,681 - - 21,246,578,580 -8,382,500,681
(27,033 478,679) 15893,163.341  (16,860,621,764) 25320605795 4504856005  (8097,838.909) 3259383790 4;896.319.722 (36,179.860,558) 38,012.749.94%
65,.263,412,961 46738354691 Z1417,748.896 2,002,091212  10,099,930,121 6753,353,394  1,857,033,672 120,787,212258 B2,74:962,309
38,259,934,282 65293412961  29877,732917  46,738,354,601 6,506,947,307 2,002,001,212  10012,737,184  6,753,353,394 84,657,351,700 120,787,212,258
42
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8.3.5.Long term savings scheme (Ejo Heza)

Long Term mmc_:m Scheme (Ejo Heza) was established by the Government of Rwanda through the. Minisiry of Finance under the Law No 29/2017
of 29 June 2017. Tt is a défined conttibution scheme, established on voluntary basis by openirig 4 savings account with a scheme administrator, the
Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB).

A new regulation— Prime Miister Order No. 58 of 4/04/2018 - Determining the administrator of the- Long term savings scheme appointed RSSB
as the administrator of the Long term saving scheme.

The scheme was being run as a project and RSSB is the process of integrating the scheme fully info. RSSB’s structure. This transition process was
still ongoing as at 30' June 2019 and therefore the financial performance and position of the scheme have not been included in these financial
statements.
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9, Contributions

Sub-Note 2019, 2018

Frw Frw:

Pénsion scheme 9.1 94,370,989,239 83,344,079,589
Médical scheme 9.2 46,431,151,629 42,748,625,559
Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme 93 33,383,072,084 30,082,818,824
Matemity leave scheme 94 6,749,967,130 6,059,777,866

180,935,180;102 161,733,301,838

9.1. Contributions — Pension scheme

In accordance with Law. No 45/2010° concerning .thé responsibilities, organization and fiinctioning -of the
Rwanda Social Security Board, pension coniributions are determined ‘at 8% of-an employee’s gross salary
(exclusive of transport allowance), of which 5% is paid by the employer and 3% is paid by the employee, Of the.
amounts. paid by the employer, 2% relates to employee occupational hazards while 3% goes towards the
employee’s pension.

2019 2018

Frw Frw

Pensien And Occupational Hazard Contributions 91.,014,317,347 80,749,761,765
Pension And Qccupational Hazard Contribution Pénaities 2,043,045,929 1,619;392,033
Pension and Occupational Hazard Contribution arrears 1,313,625,983 974,925,791
94,370,989,259 83,344,079,589.

9.2. Contributions — Medical scheme

In accordance with Law, No 45/2010 conceérning the responsibilities, organization and functioning of the
Rwanda Social Secutity Board, both employee and employer medical contributions are determined at 7.5% of'an
individual’s basic salary.

2019 2018

Frw Frw

Public Medical Contributions: 36,654,678,638 34,127,599,085
Private Medical Contributions 9,315,996,493 7,771,199,009
"Pensioners Medical Contributions 460,476,598 349,827 465
46,431,151,629 42,248,625,559

9.3. Contributions — CBHI scheme

In accordarice with Law N° 03/2015 0'1“302}’03!20 15 governing the organization of the community-based health
insurance scheme determined the sources of property intetided for the community-based health insurance scheme’
as follows:. '

1. Members coritributions shall be determined by an-Order of the Minister in charge of community-based health.
insurance scheme (Article 6 of the Law N°03/2015 of 02/03/2015).

2. Government contribution equivalent to thirteen per cent (13%) of the-domestic annual budget of the Ministry
of Health;

3. Contribution of subscription fées from every public and private health insurance entities operating in
Rwanda;

4. Donation, grant and bequest.
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CBHI contributions received by RSSB-during the year wete as follows:

Government:Contributions
Members Contributions
Insurance contribution

9.4. Contributions — Maternity leave scheme

2019 2019

Frw Frw
8,192,779,449 5.588,943.504
20,935,800,526 21,027.439,88]
4.254,492,109 3:466,435,439
33,383,072,084 30,082,818,824

Pursuant to Law N*003/2016 of 30/03/2016 establishing and governing maternity leave benefits scheme. The
‘contribution for maternity leave benefits is equal to zero point six percent (0.6%) of the salary to which.the:
cortribufion is subscribed. The employer and the employee each contributes zero poinit three percent (0.3%) of

thé salary té which the contribution is subscribed.

'10.. Benefits paid

Sub-Note
Pension scheme. 10.1
Medical scheme 102
Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme 10.3

Maternity leave scheme.

16.1. Benefits paid — Pension scheme

Benefits paid to pensioners

Benefits paid to deceased members® beneﬁ_éiaries
Sub-total benefits paid

Incapacity benefits

Other occupational hazards

Subtotal - Occupational hazard paid

Grand total benefits paid

10.2. Benefits paid — Medical scheme

Medical services from partner hospitals, health centres and clinics
Pharmacy costs

10.3. Benefits paid — CBHI scheme

CBHI pharmacy costs
CBHI medical services

2019

Frw
27,593,617,425
25,918,181,403
48,683,513,028

2018

Frw
21,537,323,822
22,230,013,298
41,765,245,302

1,811,913,191 835,126,368

104,007,225,047 86,367,709,290
2019 2018
Frw Frw
21,304,288,760 16,824,940,626
5,270,240,879 3,837,328,109
26,574,529.639 20,662,268,735
345,434,350 237,854,374
673,653,436 637,200,713
'1,019,087,786 875,055,087

27,593,617,425 21,537,323,822

2019 2018

Frw: Frw

17,588,906,506 16,559,022,032
8,329,274,897 5,670.991,266

25,918,181,403 22,230,013,298

2019 2018

Frw. Frw

25,176,466,751
23,507,046.277

14,448,016,113
'27,317,229.189

48,683,513,028

41,765;245,302
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11. Tiivestment income

Dividend

fnoome

Rental
“income

Interest
-income;

Treasury
bills-

Term
deposits:
awith
financia

institation

Comimercial

papers

Governmient

borids

Corporate

bonds

“Treasury
bonds

“Mortgagé

loans.

Current
“accounts

Sub

note

1.3

Pension Scheime Mediéal Schenie CBHI Maternity Leave. Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2019 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw: Frw Frw Frw: Frw Frw Frw
5,660438,732  3637,115.598. 792,921,118 376:500,309 0 - - 6453359850  4,013.615.907
1.662,412.461  2,510,790,240 568,613,813 615,849,094 0 X < 2231026274 3.126,639.334
4088869999 2254394634 2,348,051,030 1,172,489,590 0 176,868,134 0 6613,789,163 3426884224
11.932,484,156  14,825315,656  8454,885.809  10,311,729,053 I} 0 0. 20387372965  25.137,044,709
3,188,670.427 820,319,083 0 0, 0 0 3,188,670,427 £29,319.083
304,182,224 1,301,989,614 0. [ 0 394,182224  1,301,989,614
270,072,116 308,638,749 - - 0 0 270,072,116 308,638,749
6,941,522,610  5,125.428,009 951,152,048 -1.360,189,502 0 0 7892674658  6485617.51]
50,914,899 66,117,587 - - 0 0 50,014,899 66,117,587
3.886,648,745 3053532267 2.305,105.616 1226221426 451,718,039 216,559,010 413977799 155,467,346  T057.450,199  4,651,780,049
38,076,216,369  33.912,641,437.  15420,732,434  15062,978,974 451,718,039 216,559,010 590845933 155467,346  54.539,512,775  49,347,646,767
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11.1. Dividend income

Local investments
Bank of Kigali-
Bralirwa.

Crystal Telecom.
Ruliba Clays Limited
1&M Bank

Edge Mostels
Cogebanque

_zmpnmzm Industries Limited

Ryvanda Investment Group Limiled

Sub-total (1)

Foreign investments

‘Safaricom Limited

'KCB

PTA Bank
AFREXIM Bank
Sub-total (2)

Grand total (1-+2)

Pension Scheme Medical Schicime Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018.
Frw Frw “Frw Frw Frw Frw
3,698,275,711 2,914,624,985 04,284,845 106,944,120 3,792.560,356. 3,021,569,103
112,303,400 76,570,500 46,223,100 31,515,750 158,526,500 108,086,250
366,299,114 - - . 366,299,114 0
22,232,486 9,224,365 - . 22,232,486 9,224,365
58,007,120 50,622,630 - . 58,007,120 50,622,630
. 50,027,523 - - - 50,027,523
. - 306,168,370 - 306,168,370 0
760,000,000 - - - 760,000,000 0
. - - - - 0
5,017,117,831 3,101,0706,003 446,676,315 138,459,870 5,463,794,146  3,239,529.873
160,267,951 134,328,270 - . 160,267,951 134,228,270
- 114.397,596 - - 114,397,596
438,994:490 287,419,729 346.244,803 238,040,439 785,239,293 525,460,168
44,058,460 - - - 44,058,460 0
643,320,901 536,045,593 346,244,803 238,040,439 989,565,704 774,886,034:
5,660.438,732 3,637,115.598 792,921,118 376,500,309 6,453.359,850 4,613.615.907
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11.2. Rental income

Kacyirn Executive Apartments.

Grand Pension Plaza’
Other Rental income
Nyanza Pension Plaza
Karongi Pension Plaza
Musanze Pension Plaza
Rwamagana Pension Plaza
Crystal Plaza

Doctors’ plaza

Towerl.

Tower 11

Pension mn_.nn.n Enm.mnu_.m.n__mam Total
2019 2018 2019 218 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw. Frw Frw
535,007,653 710,371,741 0 0 535,007,653 710,371,741
734,544,970 1,342,058,949 0 0 734,544,970 1,342,058,949
20,904,112 13,339,995 0 0 20,904,112 13,339,995
74,015,284 85,270,548 0 0 74,015,284 85,270,548
134,062,958 118,674,718 0 0 134,062,958 118,674,718
77,142,320 99,587,160 0. 0 77,142,320 99,587,160
1,545,026 12,391,545 0 0 1,545,026 12,391,545
85,190,138 129,095,584 0 0 85,190,138 129,095,584
0 0 23,346,920 36,515,194 23,346,920 36,515,194
0 0 545,266,893 579,333,900 545,266,893 579,333,900
1,662,412,461 2,510,790,240 568,613,813 615,849,094 2,231,026,274 3,126,639,334
48
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11.3. Interest income on term deposits with financial institutions

Interest income onlong térm deposit
Development Bank of Rwanda (BRD)
AB Bank

Bank of Kigali

Bank Populaire du Rwanda (Atlas Mara)

Commetcial Bank of Africa (Rwanda)
Zigama CSS

sub-total (1)

Interest income on short term deposits
Access Bank Limited

Banque Populaire S:A

Coge banque

Bank of Kigali Lirmited
Ecobank Rwanda Limited

KCB Rwanda Limitéd

1&M Bank Rwanda Limited
Zigama CS$

MQEQ Barik Limitéd

Unguka Bank -

AB Bank

LETSHEGO

Bank of Africa

Sub-total (2)

Interest income on call deposit
KCB Rivanda: Limited
Sub-total (3)

Grand total (1+2+3)

Pension Scheme Medieal Scheme “Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
2,007,748,566  2,651,912,877 2,322,749,653  2357,678,219  4,330,498219  5009,591,096
75,945,205 - - . 75,945205 -
49,602,740 - . - 49,602,740 -
55,191,781 - - - 55,191,781 -
83,808,219 - - - 83,808,219 -
133,301,370 - - - 133,301,370 -
2,405,597,881  2,651,912,877 2,332,749,653  2,357,678,219  4,728,347,534  5,009,591,096.
(4,120) - - 86,194,514 {4,120y 86,194;514
893,315,130:  1,293,054,793 1454479484  1,620,958,906  2,347,794,614  2,914,013,699
1,678,299,448  2,472,234,871 931,958,926  1,413,547.944  2,610,258,374  3,885,782,815
3,483,284,133.  3,729,232,464  1,477.645.930  1,409,367,798  4,960,930,063  5,138,600,262
252,575,344 564,410,959 166,849,316 365,123,285 419,424,660 929,534,244
1,035,505,894  1,338,074,915 753,821,902 851,506,849  1,789,327,796  2,189,581,764
- 703,613,744 214,794,521 289,561,644 214,794,521 993,175,388.
490,178,085 889,041,000, 298,054,793 899,999,997 788,232,878 1,789,041,087
509,468,276. 328,892,055  577.493,192 614,275,635  1,086.961,468 943,167,690
- - 193,479,449 403,514,262 193,479,449 403,514,262
94,931,508 96,589,040 - - 94,931,508 96,589,040
171,404,590 133,372,396 - - 171,404,590 133,372,396
314,136,987 233,876,714 63,561,643 - 377,698,630 233,876,714
8,923,005,275  11,782,393,041  6,132,139,156  7,954,050,834  15,055,234,431 19,736,443,875
603,791,000 391,009,738 - - 603,791,000 391,009,738
603,791,000 391,009,738 : - 603,791,000 391,009,738
11,932,484,156  14,825315,656  8,454,888.809  10,311,729,053  20,387,372,965  25,137,044,709
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12. Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Subsidiaries

Ultimate Developers Limited (UDL)

Akagera Game Lodge SA (AGL)

SONARWA Lifé Assurance Limited

Rwanda Foreign Ho _&.s.w Invesiment .nd..:..um:w (RFIHO)
Edge Hostéls Limited

SONARWA General Tnsurance Limited

RNIT Iterambere Limited

Joint venture

Building Materials Investiment-subsidiaries
(RULIBA and. m,POC :

Associates

Rwanda Development Rank (BRD)

Uttimate Coneepts Limited

Inyange. Industries

Bank of Kigali (BK)

Cogebanque

Crystal Telecom

Hotizon SOPYRWA Limited

Rwanda Enterprisé Invéstment Company (REIC)
CIMERWA Limited

mmmﬁ_.:.vaiunn TInvestment Corporation .M.m.m._.@
Othier equ 3.. investments

Rwangda Investment Group (RIG)

Pension Schemé

2019

{2,346.736,500)
(285,570.112)

17.587.958
328,345,279
(199,662,190}
155,761,519

(305.746.000)

(1,779;389,000)

959,115,598
(2,156,215,600)

162, 106,000+

52,043,278
10,835,276
(159,117,028)

125,289,662

2018

Frw

9.921,788,500
(245,914,250}

(3.000,000,0600)-

(1,412,384.751)
{101,560,918)
725,075,813
72,491,824

926,500
(6,656.022.590)

1,118:597, 200

8.630,705,000

{1.783,166,000)
(79.699,887),
(6,806,358
'189,590.342

(37.524,591)

Medical Scheme

2019

Frw

7.013,823

(92,686.800)
484,036,751

(1 59,116,983)

37.586.899

2018

Frw.

(611,421,041}

316,679,900
1,433,006,875

189,588,716

(11.257.377)

‘Fotal
2019 1018
Frw Frw
(2,346,736,500)  9.921,788.500
(285,570,112) (245,914,250
- (3,000,000,000)
25.201,781  (2:023;,805,792)
328345279 (101.560,918)
(199.662,190) 723,075,813
155,761,519 72,491,824
(505,746,000 926,500
(1,779:389.000)  (6.656,022.590)
959215,598  '1,118,597.200
(2,248:902,400)  8,947,384,900.
484,036,751 1,433,006,875
162,106,000  {1,783,166,000)
52,043,278 (79,699,887)
10,835,276 (6,806,358)
(318;234.011) 379,§79.05%:
162,876,561 (48,781.968)
50
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Pension Schieme. Medical Scheme Total
2019 2618 2019 ”.Nm_._m 2619 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Prime Economic Zone Limited 547,571,505 383,894,954 - - 547,577,503 383,804,054
New Forest Rwanda Limited (NFCR) 133,097,900 149,696, 100 . 133,097,900 149,696,100
Rwanda Stock Exchange:(RSE} 997,445 (6,257,932) - - 997,445 (6,257,932)
Eastern and Southern Trade Developmient Bank o . o o . . o . . o . .
(formerly PTA -Bank) ’ 2,00:2,042,204 '2,169,266,447  1,629.918,742  1,765,851,826 3,631,960.946 3,935,118,273
Brasserie Ft Limonaderie Du Rwinda (BRALIRWA) (61 ,Nm.m.h.oou. ucmwwmu“.cdo ﬁmum._.mb.cs 126,063,000 (86,469,000) 432,345,000
[&M Bank (58,881,600} 9.813,600 - - {58.881,600) 9,813,600
New Forest Company Holidings Uk (Lid) (39.919,210). (137.852,178) - - (39.919210)  (137;832,178)
African Export-lmport Bank (AFREXIM Bank) 412,639,546 174,782,799 - - 412.639,346 174,782,799
Safaricom (83,415,653) 1,189,799,389 - - {83.415,655) 1,189.799.38%
Otleh Networks Rwanda Limited (KT Rwanda} -
Interest'on preferénce shares . - - 83,424,678 82,594,602 83,424,078 82.594.602
(2,768,370,125)  11,435,735480  1,965564,510 3,391,106,500  (802,805,615)  14,726,841,980
For explanations of significant changes in fair values of equity investments refet to note 26.
13. Write back
Pension Schemie Medical Scheme: CBII Tetal
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Firw Frw  Frw Frw Friv Frw Frw Frw Frw Trw
Fair e.wEm.:oz. - 10,000,000,000 - - - - - - - 10;600,000,000
loss - Ultimate
Develapers
Limited .
Fair valuafion - 1,130:638,694 - - - - - - - 1,130,638.694
loss - Edge
_Hostels Limited ) . ) o o . . . o
Otherpriocyear  1,343,020.000  1,131,037,142 - 26.567,791 - (155,999,745) - (3.996,358)  1,343,020.000 997,608,830
adjusiments
Total 1,343,020,000  12,261,675,836 - 26,567,791 - (155,999,745) - (3.996,358)  1,343020,000 12,128247.524
31
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14. Realised gain/(loss) on disposal of assets

Pension Schemé Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme ?—ﬁnﬂnm.@ feave Total
Scheme
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019. 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Disposl of o . epn o o s . . . e .
administrative asses (7.072.126)  (26,709,239) 561,378  1,615494 1,286,490 59,843,067 46781 60311 (5,177,477} 34,809,633
Disposal of : 496947017 (65210321 2273800 1.110200  5.208.500 - 189400 - 50461717 (64,100,121)
mnvestment ﬂaﬁnﬂn—nw - . !
_w“wmmwm_ of Batsinda 21,875,669 . - - - - - - 21,875,669 -
“Total 511,750,560 (91,919,560)  2.834,178 2,725,694 6494990 59843067 236,181 60,311 521,315,909  (29,290.488)
15. Investment management expenses’
Pension Scheme Medical Scheme Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw. Frw Frw
Kacyiru executive-apartments 281,338,314 272.334,000 - - 281,338,314 272,334,000
Kacyiru Estate: 18,750,000 51.250,000: - - 18750000 51,250,000
Grand Petision Plaza 463,699,312 491,809,884 - - 463,699,312 491,809,884
Nyanza Pension Plaza 70,185, 420; B0,517.772 - - 70,185,420 B0:517,772
Karongi Pension Plaza 88,431,110 80/592 64 - - 88,431,110 80,592,641
Musanze Pension Plaza 101,363,431 71,435,085 - - 101,963,431 71,435,085
Rwarmagana.Pension Plaza 74,273,398 74,398 366 . - 74,273,398 74:398,366
EX-CVL buildings 49,156,020, 50,602,931 + - 49,156,020 50,602,931
Management fees Tower Il and Doctor's plaza . - 219,199 8%4. 190,381,428 219,195,884 190,381,428
Other investment managément.expenses 133,534,246, 106,252,990 - - 133,534,246 106:252 990
1,281,331,251 1,259,193,669 219,199,884 190,381,428 1,500,531,135 __ 1449,575,097
52
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16. Other income

Issue of clearing

certificales
Issue of card
duplicates
Exchiange raté
gain

Penalties
received
CBHI Sales of
Medical and-
Members. Cards
Grants from
Government’
Total

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CHBI Scheme Maternity Leave Total
o b A . - " vauuﬂ_._..m.
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Firw Frw Frw Frw Frw ¥rw Frw Frw Frw Frw
119,330,063 96,807.485 3,504,922 19,497.382 3:819.752°  8.948236- 138855 217014 126,793,592  125:470,217
824,327 - 20828331 - 1,079,220 - 39242 . 22,771,115 -
1471666219 977,106,198 314,202,147 7461919 45,935 - - 1785868366, 984,614,052
- 20,500 - 30,695.864 - - - - - 30,716,364
. 351,637 - 351,637 1033927 248,101,348 - 1,721 1,033,927 248,816,343
- - - -~ 5,000,000,000 . - - 5.000,000,000 -
1,591.820,604  1,074,285.820 338535400 58,006,802  5,005932,809 257,695,519 178,897 228,835  6,936,467,000  1,389,616,976
33
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17. Staff costs

.Pension S¢heme Medical Scheme CHBHI ernity Ledave Taotal
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019, 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frwv Erw

Basic salaries 1287770800 1923403601  1,626,660379 1923403601  3,727,763368 2498780517 135555032 64071296 6777751579  6.409,659,015
Overtime, 3329383 61,286,640 4,205,536 61,286,640 9,637,687 79,672,632 350,462 2,042,888 17,523,068 204,288,300
Pay in Jicu of - - - - . - . )
leave
Technical 7,334,428, 17029911 9,264,541 17,029,911 31231240 22,140,055 772.046 567,664 “38.602,255 56,767,541
alléwances .
Responsibitity 12,112,440 17,641,968 15,299,924 17,641,968 35,062:327 22934558 1,274:994 588,066 63,749,685 58,806,560
allowances
‘Social security 75,747,119 115.818.049 95,680,571 115,818,048 319,267,975 150,463,182 7973381 3838030, 398,669,046 385,957,309
‘contributions
Medical 92965483 136310914, 117430,084 136,3109013 269,110,609 176,159,007 9,785,840 4,516,898  489.392,016 453,297,732
insurance
contributions
Maternity 4,538,985 6,939,363 5,733,455 6,939,363 13,139,167 9,021,172 477,788 331,313 23,889,395 23,131.21)
Leave.
contributions
Transport 151,937,087 218,690,928 191920;531 718690927 439,617,883 284228583 15993378 7287913  T99668.879 726898351
allowances .
House 174924506 251466583 220957270 251466582 506360411 326545102 18413106 8372951 920,655,293 837,851,218
allowances
Notice and 4:460,831 - 5,634,732 - 12,912,904 469,560 23,478,007 -
dismissal-costs
Retirenient 407,541 4,138,523 514,788 4,138,523 1,179,724 5,380,080 42,899 137,950 2,144,952 13,795,076
benefits
Funeral 133,000 $86,500 168,000" 886,500 385,000 1,152,450 ‘14,000 29,550 700.000 2,955,000
“charges .
Medical - - - . . . . . N
expenses;
Training and 42,886,456 39,489,097, 54,892,366 39.489.067 124,145,006 51335826 4514366 1,316,303 226,438,194 131,630,323
internship
.mx—un:mﬂm
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Pension Scheme Medical Schemie CBHI Maternity Leave ‘Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2008 2019 2018 2019 2018

Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Fiw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Persomnel - 900,000 - 900,000 - 1,170,000 - 30,000 - 3.000,000
social
activities
Employee 950,000, . 1,200,000 - 2,750,000 - 100,000 - 5,000,000
benefits i
kind
Othier Social - - - - - - - - - -
CXPenscs
Other 24,537,831 35,670,461 30,995,155 35,670,461 71,030,563 46370600 2582929  1.189.016 129,146,478 118,901.538
‘Allpwances &, . .
Indeminitics’
Persorinel 4.725.243 8,163,810 5,968,728 8,163,810 13,678,335 10,612,953 497.394 372,127 24,869,700 27,212,700
sport activities .
Other benefits 5,875,792 4,845,460 7,422,053 4,845,460 17,008,895 6:299,094 618,530 161,500 30925270 16,151,514
Death 721,818 2,160,869 911,771 7,160,869 2,089,474 2,809,130 75,981 72,030 3,759,044 7,202,898
indeémnitics
Membership 1,491,486 - 1,883,983 - 4,317,460 - 156,999 - 7,849:928 .
tecs
Total 1,896,852,219  2844.342,677  2,396,743.857  2344,842,673  5490,888,028  3.695,075941 199,668,685 94745495  9.984,152,789°  9.479,506,786
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18. Administrative expenses

Water and
Electricity

Fucl and lubricants
Office supplics
Other:supplics
Offict supplies
Computer supplies’

Transpdrtaiion
cosis .m._u—..
deploynient of staff
ot local missions

Ttansportation
costs for

deployment of staff-

on forgign missions

Staff transfer fees

Transportation
costs for casual
workers

Transportation
cosls for materials
and furniture

Building repairs
and maintenance:

Vehicle repairs and
maintenance

Repairs and’
Maintenance for
cquipment and
furniture

Pension Scheme -

20153

Frw

31,437,655

8.168,372

38.380.788

63,107.096.

1490,173
27.268,631

126,914,973

3,598,500

61,218,345

74,613

5,775,234

4661709

9,673,249

2018
Frw

34,871,518

11464265

"95.494,632
58,817.794

2.021,355°

20426983

211,346,094

4,276,874

90,000°

188,080,812

1.373,988

39,989,046

26708356

14,752,141

Medical Scheme

2019

Frw
39,110,722

10,317,944
48.476,627
79,712,845

1,878,534
34,444,586

160,121,650

4545474

77328436

94,248

7.299,033

-5.388.475

12218341

2018
Frw
34871518

11,464,265
95,494,632
58,817,794

2,021.355.
29,426,983

211,131,094

4276874

90,000

‘188,080,812

1,373,988

39,989,046

2,670,856

14,752,141

CBHI

2019

Frw
91,003,737

23,645,289
111,068,229
182,663:239
1,304.974
78.935,509

367,409,449

10,416,711

177210999

215,985

16,717,784

13,494 421

28,001,512

2018

Frw
45,332,974
14,903,545
124,143,021
76,463,132
2,627,762
38255077

274470421

5,559,536
$17,000
244,505,056
1,786,184
52,020,650

3472113

19.177.784

Maternity Leave

2019

Frw
3,309,226

859,830
4,038,335
6,642,300

156,544
2870382

13,359,472

378,790

6.:444,037

7.854

607,919

490,706

1,018,237

2018

Frw

1,162,384

382,144
3,183,154
1.960,593

67,378
980,899

T.037,703

142 561

3,000

6,269,360

45,800

1,334,968

89,028

491,738

Tdtal
2019 2018
Frw Frw
165,461,340 116,238,394
42,991,435 38,214,219
201,963.979 318315439
332,125,480 196,050,313
7,830,225 6,737.850
143,519,108 98,089 942
667,805,544  703,785:312
18,939,475 14,256,245
- 300,000
322201817 626936,040
392,700 4,579,960
130,399,970 133,333,710
24,535,311 8:902,853
50,911,839 49:173 804
56.
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Cleaning costs
Local mission
expenses

Foreign mission
expenses

Entertainmeit
allowance

Parties and
receptions

Staff repiacement
fees

Sibscriptions

Adveftising and

publication

Rent for branch
offices

Other service costs
“Security services

Local mission
allowances

‘Postage and courier
expenses

Telephone ekpenses
Internet
Other service costs’

‘Reformy-and
Modérnisation costs

‘Professional fees

Casual wages

Bank. cliarges

Pension Scheme

2019
Frw

23,029,582

51,613,605

3,886,822

212,766

3:651,572.

932,00

33,723,785

27692379

62,028:504
42,890,908

2,513,426

25,312,787

57.458,699
103,396,764

198,887

110,749,842
7442075
56,028,329

2018
Frw
30,458,281

46,544,409
4,451,693
47430
22,230
4215:000

$34.240

60,341,594

39,380,596

33,850,528
63,319.910

4287717

30,411,546:
83,302,849
84,566,384
236,402
24,601,408
129,292,443
5,385,400
116,134,700:

Medical Scheme
2019 2018
TFrw Frw

29,089,999 30,458,281

65,196,133 46,544,409
1,909,670 4451693
268,758 47,430

- 22,230
2,612,512 4,215,000
1,177,379 534,240
42,598 465 60,341,594

14,679,847 39,380,596

78,351,530 33,850,528
54,177,989 65.319.910

3,174,854 4,287,717
31,974,047 30411,546

72,579,409 3,302,849

102,627,491 84,566,384
251,226 236,402
- 24601 408

139.894,600° 206,841,576

816,600 1:493,400
10,246,943 3269641

CRHI
2019
Frw
66,664,580

149 407,805
11.251,326

615903

10,570,340
2,698,159

97.621,482.

80,162,150

179,553,287
124,157,890

7.275,708

73,273,857
166,327.812
235,148,000

575,726

320,591,751

496,375
1,591.226

2018
Frw
39,595,765
60,507,732
5787201
51,659

28,899

5,479,500
64,512

78,444,072

51,194,775

44,005,687
$4,915,883,

5:574.032
39,535,010

108,293,704
109.936,299
307,322

31,981,831

168,086,176

1,941,420
2,020,585

Maternity Leave
2019 2018
Frw Frw

2424167 1015275

5433011 1551481

409,139 148.390-

22,396 1581

- 741
384,376 140,500
98,115 17,808

J3.549.871 2,071,385

2914988 1312,687

6529610 1,128,351
4514832 2177330

264,572, 142924
2664504 1,01 3.7 18
6,048,284 2,776,761
8552201 218,880
20,936 7879

- 820,047

11,657,883 4,309,748
14,050 49,780
550,232 207,442

Total
2019
Frw

121,208,328

271,650,554

20,456,957

1,119,823,

19:218.800.
4,905,744
177:493,603
145,749,364,

326,462,931
225,741,619

13,228,560
133225195

302,414,304

- 449.764,546

1,046,775

582,894,166
8,773,100
68,416,730

2018
Frw

101,527,602

155,148,031
14,838,977
158,100
74,100

14,050,000

1,780,800

201,138,645

131,268,654

112,835,094
217,733,033

14,292 380

101:371,820

277,676,163
281,887,947

788,005

82,004,694

508,523,943

8.870,000
121,632,668,




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD )
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Maternity Leave Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 3018 2019 2013 2019 2018

Frw Frw Frw Fry Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Wm% COMMISSIh- 13978914 45,931,687 17,661,575 45,931,687 40465276 59,711,193 1471464 1531,057 73577229 153,105,624
meum%mza_% 68,785:941 65447022 68785941 65,447,022 . - 26204168 24932098 163776050 135826242
Dok charges - . - 2.600 S 7ILI98555 64918585 - - 771201155 64918585
SACCOs ; - - 1460725, 428,183,003 - . 1460725 428,183,003
Commission Fees:
Other purchases of: 312,537 986,982 394771 986,982 904 684 1,283,077. 32898 32,899 1,644,880 3:289.940
external services ’ ’ ; ; ; :
Total 1077609593 1570226:809 1245809754  1531,003.883  3447,140495 2205316877 123949419  T1299572 5894509261  5,467.847.141

19. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Pension Scheme: Medical Scheme - CBII Materaity Leave Total

3019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Buildings 33907515 33932282 733,166,878, 734:636,150 - - - - 767074393 768568432
Motor vehicles 1761713, 29575566 11,761,712 26,894,448 26,728,164 27,182,141 . . 50251589 83,652,155
Office equipment 2910717 5475813 3044491 5475811 4,081,419 3,533,610 93,510 1,376,298 10,230,137 15.861,529.
Fumiture and fitings 57,961,803 107,078,540 76,850,636  127.634,130 81,694,549 33,714,224 2969308 1453,214 219476296 289,850,108
Computers 36,741,444 46065472 46410245  46,065472 108278340 59967416 3867517 44955 195297346 152143316
Kitchen equipment - - = 2,118,629 - - - - - 2.118.629
Sub fotal 143,283,192 222,127,672 871333962 942,824,640  220,782472 144,397,392 6930335 2874465 1,242,329961  1,312,224;168
Computer software 52429038 49490571 58441623 49490571 71995363 64.928,054. 2,405,035 1,059374 185271059 164.968,571
Sub total 52420038 49490571 58441623 49,490,571 71995363  G4.928,084 2405035 1,059,374 IB52TI059  164:968,571
“Total 195,712,230 271618243, 929,775,585 992315211 292,777,835 209325446 9,333,370 3,933,839 1427601020 1477,192,73%




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

20.  Other expenses

- Pension.s¢heme - Medical scheme CBHI scheme Maternity I¢ave scheme Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 12019 2018

Frw Frw Frw Frw- Frw ‘Fiw Frw. Frw Frw Fiw
Fire insurance 34,190416 39,571,350 43,187,893 39,571,350 9897225 51442754 3598991 1319044 179,949,556, 131,904,498
Vehicle insurance 4,857,353 4,288,059 6,133,604 4,288,059 14,060,759 5574477 511300 142,935 35,565.016 14,293,530
Comprehensive 161,534 . 204,043 - 467,599 - 17,004 . 850,180 .
all risks. '
Board allowances - - 10,357,205 5,100,000 - - - - 10,357,205 5,106,000
Fees-of the cons, . o . . L . . . . L
aduiin, and 990,066 1,611,435, 1250:610 1611435 2,865,981 2,094 865 104,218 53714 5210875 5,371.449.
cominissions ) )
mw_ﬂmhm_“mw[ soclal 50313617 42,778.048 ‘18,996,148 078048 43532839 55611462 1583013 1425934 79,150,617 142,593,492
Contributions to. _ _ . o _ _
ECASSA and 2,580,677 10,429,990 3250 802 10,429,890 7470381 13:558.987 271,650 347,666 13,582,510 34,766,633
others.
Soctal assistance - S231857381 2112431278 : - - - 2321557581 20112431278
Foreign-gxchange : . e 531 g4
o : 1,621,840  308,490,680: - 20443327 - - . - 1,621,840 328,934,007
Legaland. 4.877.823 4,168,500 3,644,791 4,168,500 8,436,646 5,419,050 306,787 138,950 17,266,047 13,895,000
litigation: costs : : B i : RS k -
mm_”mw w_wma.ma 27621189 20,468,726 34,889,923 20468726 79,956,073 26609344 2807494 632,290 143374681 63,229,086
_mwnasmza.ca fon 199,524 4,168,372 252,541 4,168,372 578,741, 5418884 21,045 138,946 1052256 13,894,574
Miscellaneous o e ) . :
charges and 776.002.532. - 227,453,329 « {1104T1,943) - {5450,600) - 887,593,218 .
losses - )
Total B6R.141.976 435975160 2670189370 2265459085 145920334 165729823 3870902  4.240470 3689131582 2871413847
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD |
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

21. Property and equipment

As at 30 June 2019 Asat.30 June 2018
Cost Accumulated .qu._.uwcr Cost >nnu5m_m»um Net book value
Scheme Sub-Note depreciation value depreciation
A B C=A-B A B C=A-B
Pension Scheme 21.1 3,941,279,509 2,830,432,286  1,110,847.,223  4,089,756,713 2,743,805,425 1,345,951,288
Medical Scheme 212 18,560,247,650 8,600,333,792  9,959,913,858  18,606,953,592 7,150,450,544 10,856,503,048
CBHI Schéme 213 812,437,719. 501,887,849 310,549,870 583,841,208 223,903,469 359,937,739
Maternity Scheme 214 23,957,082 14,080,577 9,876,505 11,139,701 3,575,123 7,564,578
Total 23,337,921,960 11,946,734,504  11,391,187,456  23,291,691,214 10,721,734,561 12,569,956,653
21.1, Property and equipment- Pension scheme
Lard and Motor vehicle Office equipment Furniture, fixtures Computers Total
Buildings & Fittings.
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Cost
At 1 July 2017 1,242,210,680 123,577,792 472,036,464 1,306,867,531 954,096,515 4,098,788,982
Adjustment o opening balancé 8,429,000 - - - - 8,429,000
Additions . - - 212,400 118,513,908 80,217,714 198,944,022
Disposals. - (16.000,000) (31,749.310) (31,949,786)  (136,706,196) (216,405,291)
At 30 June 2018 1,250,639,680 167,577,792 440,499,554 1,393,431,654 897,608,033 4,089,756,713
Adjistment to.opening balance - - (2,013,880) (64,619.697) (55,903,082) (122;536,659)
Additions . - - 2,240,100 13,115,750 8,582,170 23,938,020
Disposals (44,962.000) - - (4,916,565) - (49,878,5653)
At 30 June 2019 1,205,677,680 107,577,792 440,725,774 1,337,011,142 850,287,121 3,941,279,509
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2017 147,162,762 62,924,647 460,902,934 1,154,978,185 897,880,416 2,723,788,944
Charge for the year 33,932,282 29,575,566 5,475,812 107,078,540 46,065,472 222,127,672
Disposal - (2,681,118) (31,714,720) (31,100,378)  (136,614,975). (202,111,191}
At 30 June 2018 181,035,044 89,819,095 434,664,026 1,230,956,347 807,330,913 2,743,805,425
Adjustment to opening balance - - {643.259) {15,881,585) (22,801,472) (39,326,316)
Charge forthe year 33,907,515 11,761,713 2,910,717 57,961,803 36,741,444 143,283,192
Disposal (12,413 ,450) - - (4.916,565) - (17.330,015)
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Land and Motor vehicle Office equipment Furniture, .m..ﬁ: res Compaters Total
Buildings & Fittings-
Frw Fiw Frw Firw Frw Frw
At30 June 2019 202,529,109 101,580,808 436,931,484 1,268,120,000 821,270,885 2,830,432,286.
Net book value (Cost less Accumulated depreciatioii)
At 30 June 2018 1,069,604,636 17,758,697 5,835,528 162,475,307 90,277,120 1,345,951,288-
At 30 June 2019 1,003,148,571 5,996,984 3,794,290 68,891,142 29,016,236 1,110,847.223
21.2. Property and équipment- Medical scheme
Land and Moator vehicle Fuiniture, Computers Office  Labo ratory Kitchen Total
-Buildings fixtures & equipment  equipment eguipment
Fittings .
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Cost
At1 July 2017 14,935;063,000 209,090,290 1,886,715,660 445,620,479  371,565463 523,782,532 106,662,000  18,478,499,424
Additions . - 118,513,908  80217,714 212,400 - - 198,944,022
Disposals - (19266,713) (16477,682) (33,342210)  (1,403,250) - - (70,489.854)
At 30 June 2018. 14,935,063,060 189,823,577  1,988,751,887 492,495,983 370,374,613 523,782,532 106,662,000  18,606,953,592
Adjustment for . . . . -
reapportionment of
commaoi -assets.
among schemes - - (35247,108) (30,492,590)  (1,098,480) (66,838,178)
Additions - - 6,462,000 10,840,636 2,829,600 - - 20,132,236
At 30 June 2019 14,935,063,000 189,823,577 1,959.966,77% 472,844,029 372,105,733 523,782,532 106,662,000  18,560,247,650
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1July 2017 3,673,203,222 164,437,145 1,662,028,075 389,404,379 360,431,931 523,782,532 104,543371  6,877,836,655
Adjustment to . o
opening balance (22,473) (22,473)
Charge for the year 734,636,150 26,894,448 127,634,130 46,065,472 5,475,811 - 2,118,629 942,824,640
Disposal - {19,266,713)  (16,295915) (33,250,989) (1,368,661)- - - (70,182,278)
At 30 June 2018 4,407,816,899 172,064,880 1,773,366,291 402,718,862 364,539,081 523,782,532 106,662,000  7,750,450,544
Adjustment to
opening balance 2 {8,662,682) (12,437,166) (350.868) (21,450,714)
Charge for the year 733,166,878 11,761,712 76,850,636 46,410,745 3,144,49) - - 871,333,962
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Land and Motor vehicle. Furniture, Computers Office  Laboratory Kitchen Total
Buildings fixtures & equipment  :eéquipment equipment
Fittings
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
At 30 June 2019 5,140,983,779. 183,826,592  1,841,554,245 436,191,941 367,332,704 523,782,532 106,662,000  8,600,333,792
Net book value (Cost less Accumulated depreciation)
At 30 June 2018 10,527,246,101 17,758,697 215,385,596 90,277,122 5,835,532 - - 10,856,503,048.
At 30-June 2019 9,794,079,221 5996985 118,412,534 36,652,089 4,773,029 - - 9,959,013.858
21.3. Property and equipment- CBHI scheme.
Motor vehicle Furniture,  Computers Office Total
fixiuies & equipment
Fittings
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Cost
At 1 July 20617 50,101,056 75,192,832 130,291,207 13,495,200 269,080,295
Additions 58,926,400 154,068,080 104,283,028 276,120 317,553,628
Disposals (1,814,600) - (978,115) - (219715
At:30 June 2018 107,212,856  220.260,012  233,596,120- 13,771,320 583,841,208
Adjustment for reappestionment of coinmon assets among schemes - 93,992,285 81,313,573 2,929,280 178,235,138
Additions - 14808750 29,068,123 6,484,500 50,361,373
At 30 June 2019 107,212,856 338,061,947 343,977,816 23,185,100 812,437,719
Accumulaied depreciation
At July 2017 17,157,897 2,680,954 57,127,976 3,777,856 80,744,683
Charge for the year 27,182,141 53,714,224 59,967,416 3,533,610 144,397,392
Disposal . (379,077) - (859,528) - (1,238,605)
At 30 June 2018 43,960,961 56,395,178 116,235,864 1311466 223,903,469
Adjustment for reapportionment of coinmon asséts: among schemes £y 23,100,486 33,165,775 935,648 '57,201,908.
Charge for the year 26,728,164 81,694,549 108,278,340  4,081419 220,782,472
At 30 Jurnie 2019 70,689,124  161,190213 257,679,979 12,328,533 501,887,849
Net book value (Cost less Accumulated depreciation)
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Motor vehicle.  Farniture, Computers Office Total
fixtures & equipment.
Fiftings
Frw Fiw Frw. Frw Frw
At 30.June 2018 63,251,895 172,865,734 117,360,256 6,459,854 359,937,739
At 30 June 2019 36,523,732 176,871,734 86,297,837 10,856,567 310,549,870
21.4. Property and equipment- Maternity leave scheme
Furniture, Computers Office Total
fixtures & equipment
Fittings.
Frw Frw Frw. Frw
Cost.
At 1 July 2017 1,924,054 .muaum...w.qa . 176,000 4,522,930
Additions 3,950,465 2,673,926 7,080 6,631,471
Disposals - (14,700) - (14,700)
At 30 June 2018 5,874,519 5,082,102 183,080 11,139,781
Adjustment for eeapportionment of common assets among schemes 5:874,517 5,082,098 183,080 11,139,695
Additions 538,500 903,386 235,800 1,677,686
At 30 June 2019 12,287,536 11,067,586 601,960  23.957,082
Accumulated depreciation
At July 2017 67,484 $©31,308 13,523 2,315
Chatge for the year 1,376,296- 1,453,214 44,955 2,874,465
Disposal - (11,657) - (11,657)
At 30 June 2018 1,443,786 2,072,864 m.w...&qm 3,575,123
Adjustmerit for reapportionment of common assets among schemes 1,443,780 2,072,861 58,478 3,575,119
Charge for the year 2,969,308 3,867,517 93,510 6,930,335
At 30 June 2019 . 5,856,868 8,013,242 218,466 14,086,577
Net book value
At 30 June 2018 4,430,739 3,009,237 _.ua.mau. 7,564,578
At.30 June 2019 6,430,668 3,054,344 391,494 9,876,505
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21.5. Land without titles — pension scheme

.—u.ow.o_..m.w:a: n_ammmmnﬁ.m.a: Loecation Date of Acquisition Amount

LAND FOR FORMER NYAGATARE BRANCH Property, plant and equipment NYAGATARE 30/06/2016 6,295,000

TOTAL 6,295,000
o4




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

22. Intangible assets
30 June 2019

Cost.
At start 'of year

Adjustient to opening balances
Additions.

Amortization

At start of vear
Adjustment to opening balances

‘Charge for the year

Net book value

30 June 2018

Cost
At start of year
Additions-

Amortization

At start of year

Charge for the Mm.m_.
Total

‘Closing net book value

Pension Scheme  Medical Scheme CBHI “Total
Frw Fiw Frw Frw Frw
302,941,141 531,826,983 177,291,631 2,243,714 1,014,303 468
(24,680,861) (13,462,289) 35,899,436 2.243,714 -
297,734,329 303,878,952 67,590,857 2,457,852 671,661,990
575,994,609 822,243,646 -280,781,924. 6,945,280 1,685,965,458
.Amﬂ.,umm.lwwu (500,242;279) (£36,084,417) (1,337,998} (909,021,135)
14,717,965 8,027,979 (21,407,949) (1.337,998) )
(52,429,038) (58,441,623) (71,995,363) (2,405,035) (185.271,059)
(309,067,512) (550,655,923)  (229,487,729) (5.081,031)  (1,094,292,197)
266,927,096 271,587,722 51,294,195 1,864,248 591,673,261
Pension Scheme  Medical Scheme CBHI  Maternity Leave Total
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
Frw  Frw - Frw _ Bwo Frw
289,209,819 518,095,661 159,440,913 1,786,003 968,532,396
13,731,322 13,731,322 17,850,718 457,711 am.hﬁ.qu
302,941,141 531,826,983 177,291,631 2,243,714 1,014,303,468
(221,865,869) (450,751,710) {71,156,362). (278,623) (744,052,564)
(49,490,571) (49,490,571} (64,928,054); (1,059,374)  (164,968,571)
(271,356,440) (500,242,281)  (136,084,416) 1,337,997y (509,021,135)
31,584,700 31,584,701 41,207,215 905,716 105,282,333
Intangible assets relate to computer software licenses. It also includes any cost that is:used to upgrade the compuiter software.
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23. Investment properties

‘Scheme Sub-Note Carrying values
2019 2018
Frw Frw
Pension Scheme 23.1 112,578,688.247  96,920,218,856
‘Medical Scheme. 23,2 13,217,570,260  12,149,876,048
Total 125,796,258,507 109,070,094,904

RSSB’s investinent properties were valued at 30 June 2012 by independent professional qualified valuation experts, who had recent €xperience in
the. location and category of the respective investment properties. Valuations were based on the depreciated replacément costs of the properties.

RSSB leases its. investment properties under short term operating leases and the rental income is earned from investment properties. Medical
Scheme's Twin Tower (Tower IT) was commissioned and moved from. investments in the process of construction to investment properties A new
valuation exercise of investment property is being finalised and management intends. fo incorporate fair values in its books of accounts and
finandial statements for the year ending 3¢ June 2020.

23.1. Reconciliation of movemeént in Investinent properties during the year - Pension Scheme

At 30 June 2019
m...ccmﬂsw description Asat 1 July 2018 Adjastments to Additions. Disposals As:at 30 June
opening balance 2019
) ) Frw Frw’ Frw Fiw ~ Frw
Kacyiru Executive Apartments 6.573.765.344 _ - - 6,573,765,344
Grand Pension Plazza 71 ,_mqofmo._w..m.ou_ - -. - 21,679.608,293:
Musanze Peision Plazza 4486548121 - - - 4.486,548,121
Rwamagana Pension Plazza 4322,799312 - - - 4322799312
Nyafiza Pension Plazza 4558234331 : - 4,558,234,331
Karorigi Pension Plazza 4.463.433.054 - - - 4,463,433.054
Residential House Kiyovu ..mocw._ ua.wm.ma” - - - 200,129,824
.Z%wmmﬂm_d\.. Houses 60,087,032 - - - mo“cwubmu
Fixtures.and fittings in Ihvestinent properties 290,451,054 - - - 290,451,054
Land For Tnvestment Properties m_b P 5 _.w,..c oo - - - 349,512,000
‘'Land For [nsurance Plazzas ,__.m_u.c.w._ .weo - - - 797,991,000
Farmier CECFR Plot. 781442440 - - - 781,442,440
Gaculiro-Vision City Land 32°167.070,888 - 799.344.830 - 22,966,415.718
CBDI -Rugenge Land 133,320,000 493,020,000, - - '626.340,000
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.Hwoﬁnlw description

Kinyinya Land

Biitsinda Patcel

Batsinda Pipeline:

Kacyiru Land’

Nyagatare Land

Rwamaggna Paicel [ & 11

Nyanza. Plot

Rubavy Plot

Land from GP'P

Batsinda ipeline [nvestment

‘Gisozi Plot

Kigali Golf Club Land

Rusoraro Plofs

Nyarugenge I'lots

Bquipment ~ Residential bouses
Equipment - Katyiru Executive Apartmiefits
Generators — Kacyiru Executive Apartinents
Elevators — Kacyiru Executive Apartments
Crystal Plaza Building

Furnitore #nd fhtings:— Residential houses
Fumniture and .m.E:.m.m - Kacyiru Executive Apartments
Electrical equipment For-all Plazas

Asat 1 July 2018 djustments to V..EE.:E Disposals As at 30 June
‘gpening balance 2019
Frw Frw Frw Frw "Frw
11,542,134.016 . - (908.952,064) 10,633,181,952
1,047,540,57) - - {44,765,219) 1.002,775,352
246,500,000 - - - 246,300,000
178.691,250 - . - 178,691,250
135,068,872 - - - 135,068,872
52,815,000 - = - 52.815.000
2,066,449,740. - - . 2.066,449,740
18,590,000 - - - 18.590,000
627.142,621 - . - 627,142,621
5.641.961,216 - - - 5,641.961,216
" - 14,055,559,229: - 14,055,599,229
- - 1.264.222,615. - 1.264.222.615
1,353,800 - - - 1,353,800
224251568 - - - 224,251,568
169,596,836° - - - 169,596,836
198,220,000 - - 198,220,000
1,160.000,000 - . - 1,160.000,000
4,134,500 - - - 4,134,500
576,292,839 - - - 576,292,839
2.165,083,334. - . - -2,165,083.334
96,920,218,856 493,020,000 16,119,166,674 -953,717283  112,578,688.247
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At 30 June 2018

Property description

Kacyiru Executive Apartments
(KEA)

‘Grand pension plaza
Musanze pension plaza.
Rwamagana pension plaza
Nyanza pension plaza
Karongi pension plaza
Residential house Kiyovu:
Nyagatare houses .
Fixtures and fittings in
Investment properties

Land for investmient properties
Land for insurance plazas
Former CECFR plot.
Gaculiro vision city land
CBDi-Rugenge land
Kinyinya land

‘Batsinda parcel.

Batsinda pipeline

Kacyirni land

Nyagatare land

Rwamagana parcel | & 11
Nyanza plot

Rubavu plot

Land from GPP

Batsinda pipeline investment
Gisozi plot

At July 2617

Frw
6.573,765,344
21,679,608,293
4,486,548.121

4,322,799.312.

-4,558:234,331

4,463:433,054

200,129,824

60;087,032.
290,451,054.

349.512,600

797,991,000

781,442.440

21351,97.317

133,320,000

11,575:988.756

1,047,540,57)

1.068.,000,000

246,500,000
162,350,000
129,710,000,
52.815.000
2,066,449.740

18.590.000

Adjustnients to
.opening balance

Frew

1,202,620,318

(33,854,740}

16.341,250
5,358,872

‘Transfers
from
Investment
property
inder
constrection

Frw

159,938,874

Additions.

Frw

79,737,000

627,142,621

Disposals

Frw

(627.142,621)

(1,068,000,000)

“Fransfer to
investment
property
under
construction

Frw

r

[

At30 June
2018

Frw
6.573.765.344

121,679,608,293
4,486,548;121
4.322,799.312.
4,558,234,331
4,463.433,054.
200;529,824.
60,087,032
290,451,054

349,512,000
797,091,000
781,442,440,

22.167,070,888
133;320,000

11,542,134,016
1,047.540,571
246,500,000
178,691,250
135.068.872
52,815,000
2,066,449,740
18,590,000
627,142,621
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Property description

Kigali golfclub land
Residential house equipment
Fixtures and fittings - KEA
Electric generators - KEA
Elevators- KEA

Crystal plaza building
Mutara enterprise show réom
.W%Eon:m— household furniture
and fittings

Furniture - KEA

Electtical equipment for all
plazag

At 1 July 2017 Adjustments to Transfers  Additions- Disposals Transfer to At 38 June:
_opening balince from . investment: 2018

Investment property

property under’

under construction

construction
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw ‘Frw
- 5,641,961,216 - 5,641,961,216
2.375,700 1,021.900¢) 1,353,800
227,114,568 (2,863,000) 224,251,568
169,596,836 - - - - 169,596,836
198,220,000 - - - 198,220,000
1,160,000,000 - - - - 1.160,000,000
840,000,000 (840,000,000) -
_m,m.um...o 17 (12,538.117) 4,134,500:
576,495,379 {202.540) 376,292,839
2,165,083,334 . - - - 2,165,083334
91,772,741,623 1,1 wokmm....qec 5.801.900,690 706,872,621 (1,711,768,178)  (840,000,000)  96,920,218,856
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23.2. Reconciliation of movement in Investment properties during the year - Medical Scheme:

As at 30 June 2019

Property description At 1 July 2018 Additions. At 30 June 2019
Frw Frw ~ Frw

Land for investment property 511,913,100 - 511,913,100

Twin Tawer 2 11,498,182,133  1,067,694,212  12,565.876,335

Twin Tower Equipment's 139,780,825 - 139,780,825

12,149,876,048  1,067,694,212.  13,217,570,260

There was no movement investment property in the prior financial year ended 30 Jung 2018.

24. Investment properties in the process of construction — Pension scheme

30 June 2019
Property descriptien At 1 July 2018 Additions At 30 June. 2019
Frw Frw Frw
Batsinda Housing project —Phase Il S 63,540,000 4;403,438;580 4,466,978,580
Investment in CATCHUP INVESTMENTS LIMITED o -
building project 340,000,000 - 840,000,000
203,540,000 4,403,438,580 5,3006,978,580
30 June 2018
Property description AT July Additions: Transfer Weite.  Transfers  At30 Jane
' 2017 _ from ‘offs to 2018
Investment Invesiment
_ properties _ properties
Frw: Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Batsinda Housing project — Phase 11 52,950,000 10,390,600 - LT - 63,540,000
o (22,6282
Legal fee for land dispute - 22.628.298 - 98) B -
o o (123,923,87
Construction ofretaining wall-at Gacurilo - 123,923,874 - - 4 -
} o (5,641,961,
Expropriation of Golf - 5,641,961,216 - - 216) -
S (36,015,000
Land from expropriation - 36,015,000 - i ) -
Tnvestment in CATCHUP Investments.
Litnited o _ _
Building project - 840,000,000 - - 840,000,000
(22,6282 (5,801,900,
Tatal 52,950,000 5,835,118,388 840,000,000 98) 094} 903,540,000.
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25, Assets held for sale

Opening 4t 1 July
Disposals
Closing at 30 June

RSSB’s assets held for sale comprise centre socio-recréatif at Kacyiru estate,

2019 2018

Frw Frw.

454,499,522 457,051,652

- (2;552,130)

454,499,522 454,499,522
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26, Equity investments

o

Scheme Sub-Note Carrying values Carrying values
2019 2018
. Frw Frw
Pension Scheme 36.1 '373,977.475,.219 313,952,893,422.
Medical Schéme 26.2 42,029,126,658 39,717,317,345
Total 416,006,601,877 353,670,210,767
26.1. Equity investments — Pension
. . L Carrying Val i ring. Value
Equity Investes Type of equity Yeage ege Numberof  Number of Basis of - e M_uﬂ..m. canming ..h.m“_.”
uity. Tavests instrument helding ‘holding shares held  shares held mdéasuerement 30 ;.._.E...L.u 30 ).u._..a“—.m”.
201¢ 2018 2019 2018 Frw Frw
Subsidiaries
(Control evidenced by ownership of 30% or more of ordiiary sharés with voting rights and board representation)
_m__wﬁwnﬁ_n%wmooamg Ordinaryshares ~ 100.00% 100.00% 9,915 7,091,380 Fair value 95,653,232,565 97,999,969,065
%ﬂmﬂa GameLodge ¢ oo chares  100.00% 100.00% 4042100 3030000 Fair valoe 8,260,543,371 3,972,410,000
SONARWALife Ordinary shares” 100.00% 60.73% 494005 300,000 Fai valuo 0 0
Rwdinda Foreign .
%MMW.HMM& Ordinary sharcs 65.95% 65.95% 6,675.000 9,564,000 Fair-value 1,112,287,958" 1,094,700.000
(RFHIC)
Edge HostelS Ordinary shares’ 80.96% £0.96% ¥741,380 5,741,380 Fair value 0,752,949.499 6,424,604,219
W:W””bﬁmé> General O.—..&:m—.% shares 19.20% “79.70% wmm,mmmm.wu uww;mumm.,mw : Fair value .m.,..m.uw.u._w._.”.wc.m. m.ﬂwm,q m.._hwo.u
Wﬂm ITERAMBERE Fund units 74.16% 56.37% 18,994.814. 7,343,677 Fair valye 2.481.905,691 822.491.824
Joint Venture
(Joint cantrol evidenced with 50% of ordinary shares (considering both pension and medical schemes) with voting rights and board
representation) .
BMI (Ruliba Clays
Linted and Bast Ordinary:sharés  50.00% 50.00% 8,000 8,000 Fair value 5.467,246,000 5.672.992,000
Inidustrics V.
72



Ly

-,.

RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

. . . . Carrying Value

el Typeof equity Yhage Yoage Numberof  Number of Basis of. : as at
Equity Investee instrument holding haolding sharcésheld  shares held medsurement 30-Fun-19
2019 2018 2019 2018 Frw

Assuociates

{Significant influence evidence with ownership (considering hoth pension and medical schemes).0f.20% or more of ordinary shares with voting
rights and-board representation)

RWANDA
DEVELOPMENT
.w..?ZW.AwWU.V.
ULTIMATE
CONCEPT LT
INYANGE

JINDUSTRIES LTD

BANK OF KIGALI

{BKj

CRYTSTAL
TELECOM.
HORIZON SOPYRWA
LTD

RWANDA:
ENTERPISE
INVESTMENT
COMPANY LIMITED
(REIC)

CIMERWA Lid
EASTERN
PROVINCE
INVESTMENT
CORPORATION
(EPIC)

b,_..._...nﬁ 5::%
investments

Ordinary shares

‘Ordinagy shares

O&.imQ shares

-Ordinary shares

Oidinary shares

‘Ordinary shares

‘Ordinary shiarcs

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

44.98%

43.57%
40:00%
33.78%
30.00%

30.00%

26.52%

10.12%

13.59%

30.76%

43.37%.

40.00%

31.54%

u O .OO@\:

30:00%

2652%

10.12%

26.36%

17,585,960
2,316

3.280,000

-302,966;10.

0

81,053,000

1,262

2,652

3,557,652

25,000

17,782.164

2,316

1,630,000

210,505,00
o

81,053,000

1,262,

2,652

3,557.652.

25.000

-Fair vaiue

Fair valug.

‘Fair value.

Fair valug
Fair value

Fair value

Fair value

Fair value

Fair value

{No:ciontrol orsignificant influcnece evidenced by ._us,nﬁ.m_:..u of less than 20% of an:mQ.me.nm.._i:n é::w rights)

RWANDA
INVESTMENT
GROUP LIMITED
(RIG)

PRIME ECONOMIC
ZONES COMPANY
LIMITED

NEW FOREST
COMPANY

Ordinary shares.

Ordinary shares.

Ordinary shares

17.39%

14.40%

10.00%

17.39%

14.40%

10.00%

2,400

164,748

100,000

2,400

164,748

H00.000

.
© r——

Fait valua

Fair valug

Fair value

25,488.4035,240

0
11,904,575,598
83.012,711,400

1,457,915,000

9,504,469.972

10,835,276
5,629,182.776

5.360,254,099

3,247.893.662

3,278:605,101

2,528,397,000

Carrying Value
as at
30-Jun-18

Frw

27.267,794,240

0
10.945,360,000
60,204;430,000

4,295,809.000

9,452,426,694-

3.788.299.804.

N.”mwa..wuabc:

3,122.604,000

2,731,027:596

2,395,300,000
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Equity Investee

RWANDA (NFCR)
RWANDA STOCK
EXCHANGE.(RSEY
EASTERN AND
SOURTHERN
AFRICA TRADE
DEVELOPMENT
BANK (FORMERLY
PTA BANK)}
Brasserie Et
Limonaderie Du
Rwanda (BRALIRWA)
&M RWANDA
NEW FORESTS
COMPANY

HOLDINGS LIMITED.

(UK)
AFREXIMBANK
SAFARICOM
LEAY
PHARMACEUTICAL
S LIMITED*
WORLD
VUSATELITES
LIMITED*
AKAGERA
MEDICINES INC
NEW.FOREST
COMPANY
RWANDA {NFCR}

Type of equity
instrument

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
_Q._,&sm@..m:mﬂm
Oq&:nQ..m_Enm

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
.m.a.mnﬁ:nn
shares
Preference
shares

%age

holding

2019.

10.00%

1.62%

1.59%-

1.94%
0.87

0.10%
0:04%

N/A

N/A.

%age
holding
2018

10.00%:

1.66%

1.99%

1.94%
0.87%

0.10%
0.04%

N/A

- Numbei of

shares held

2019

10

1,690

20,418,800

9,813,600
110,372

121
17,153,550

349

4,000,000

160,000

Numbeér of
shares held

2018

10

1,644

20,418,800

9.813.600
110,372

121
17,153,550

100,000

Basis of
measurement

Fair-value

Fair value.

Fair value
Fair value
Eair value

Fair value
Fair value

Cost
Cost
Amortised cost

Amottiged. cost

Carrying Value Carrying Value
as at- as at

30-Jun-19 30-Jun-18

Frw Frw

41,729,355 40,731,910
18.347,982,296 15,915,473,639
3.001,563,600 3.062,820,000
883,224,000 942,105,600
394,615 354 434,534,564
2,314,079,768 1.901,440,222
4,393,660,895 4,477,076,550
28,594,139,138 15,105,389,000
32,267,938,400 21,389.960,000
3,628,000,000 ¢
420,000,000 420,000,060
373,977,475,219 313,952,893,422

*Equity m:<nmﬁ_=n=”m_m:.rnmm pharmaceuticals. m:a..,. .f.o..& Vu Satellites have been maintained at historical cost as RSSB was not able to.obtain
information-on the investments to-enable the reliable determination.of fair values.
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26.1.1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under pension scheme during the year

a) Sunimary reconciliation

Asat'1 July

Additional .m:,..mw.ﬁs._asﬂ.m..acznm the year

Disposals during the year

Write back/(offs)

Fair valuation gain/(loss} during the year

As at 30 June

b) Detailed reconciliation per eguity investee

Financial year ended 30 June 2019

Equity investee

Bubsidiaries

Ultimate Developers limited (LIDL}
Akagera Game Lodger (AGL)

SONARWA Life Assurance

Edge Hostels Limited
SONARWA General Insurance

Rwanda Foreign Investment :n._.&sm.noiﬁm:q.r...iwﬂ_ {RFIHC})

RNIT lterambere Fund
Joint ventare

BMI (RULIBA and EAG)

Associates

Ultimate Concept Limited

Carryingvalue as
at 1 July 2018

Frw

97.999.969,065
3.972,410,000

6:424,604,21%

5,738.793,495
1.094.700.000

822:491,824.

5.672,992,000

. Additional
capitalinjection
during the year

Firw

4,573,703,483

1,503,652,348

300,000,000

2019 2018
Frw. Frw
313,952,893,422 243,359,550,020
62,792,951,980 52,457,795,244
0 (4:430,826.016)
(58) 11 u..o...m.u 8,694
(2,768,370,125) 11,435,735,480
373,977.475,219 313,952,893.422
“Write- Fair valuatien  Carrying value as
back/{off) gain/(loss) at 30.Jupe 2019
Frw Frw Frw
w (2,346.736,500) 95,653,232,565
. (285,570,112 8,260,543371
1 328,345,279 6.752.949,499
- {199,662,190) 5,539,131,305
- 17,387.958 1,112,287.958
- 155,761,519 2,481,905,691
- {305,746,000) 5,467,246.000
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Equity investee

Inyange Industries Limited

Rwanda Development Bank (BRD}

Bank'of Kigali (BK)

Crystal Telecom

Harizon SOPYRWA Limitgd

Rwaida Enterprise. Investment Company Limited {REIC)
CIMERWA Limited

Eastern Province lnvestment Catporation ( EPIC)
Other equity investments

Rwanda Investment Gréup Limited .:w_Qv.

Prime Bconemic Zones Company Limited,

New Forest Company Rwanda (NFCR)

Rwanda Stock Exchange (RSE)

Eastern And Sourthem Africa Trads Development Bank
Brasserie Et Limonaderie Du Rwanda (BRALIRWA)
18:M Rwanda

New Forests Company Holdings (UK) Limited
AFREXIM Bank

Safaricom

Leaf Pharmaceuticals Limited

World Vu Satellites Limited

Akagera Medicines Ine

New Forest n.aavms% Rwanda Emnf

Total

Carrying value as o .Wma.m.mnmm_. Write Fair valiation - Carrying:value as
at 1-July 2018 aw.___”w_w _”__ﬁﬁ“__,. back/(off) gainf(loss)  at 30 June 2019
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
10,945,360,000 - - 959,215,598 11,904,575,598
27.267,794.240 - . (1,779,389,000) 25,488,405,240
60,204,430,000  24,964.497,000 - (2,156,215,600) 83.012,741,400
4,295,809,000 - - 162,106,000 4,457.915,000
9,452,426.694 . 52,043,278 9,504.469.972
- - - 10,835,276 10,835,276
5,788,299.804 - - (159,117,028) 5,629,182,776
2,334:350,000 3,025,903,099 - - 5.360.254,099:
3,122:604,000 - . 125,289,662 3,247.893,662.
2,731.027,596 - - 547,577,505 3.278,605,101
2,395,300,000 - - 133,097,900 2.528:397,900
40,731,910 - 997,445 41,729,355
15,915,473,639 430,466,512 (39) 2,002,042,204 18,347.982,296
3,062,820,000 . - (61,256,400) 3,001,563,600
942,105,600 - - (58,881,600) 883,224,000
434,334,564 - - (39.919,210) 394,615,354
1,901,440,222 . - 412,639,546 2,314,079.768
4,477,076,550 . - (83,415,655) 4,393,660,895
15.105,389,000.  13.488,750,138 - - 28.594,139,138-
21,389,960,000 [0.877.978.400- - - 32,267,938,400
- 3,628,000,000 . 3,628,600,000
420.000,000 - - - 420,000,000
313.952,893422°  62,792,951,980. (58) (2,768,370,125). 373.977.475.219
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‘Financial year ended 30 June 2018

Equity Invesiee

ATFREXIM Bank:
Akagera-Game Lodger (AGL)
Bank of Kigali (BK)

BMI (Ruliba Clays Limited and East A ffica
Granite Industries)

Biasserie Et Limonadérie Du Rwanda
(BRALIRWA)

CIMERWA Ltd

.O.amn.m._._..ﬂm_.w.noﬂ
mmﬂn_.:...vaﬁsnn.:énﬁamc_ Corporation
(Epic)

Edge Hostels

Horizonr Sopyrwa Ltd

L& M Rwanda

Inyange [ndustries:Ltd

KCB

Leiif Pharmaiceuticals Limited

New Forest Company Rwanda {Nfet)

New Forests Compaiy Holdings Limited
(k)

New Forest Company Rwanda (Nfer}

Rwanda Free Trade Zone Limited
(Formerly Primé Economic Zong Limited)y

Eastern Aud Sourthern AfricaTrade
Development Bank (Formerly Pta Banké:

Rnit Iterambere Fund

Ewanda Development Bank {BRD)

Carrying value

as at LJuly 2017

Frw

1,726,657,423

3,206,224;250:

51,573,725,000

4,672.065,500.

2,756,538%,000

5,508,709.462

6,078.975,000

1.474,135,533

3,754,146 443

'9.532,126,581%
932,292,000
9.826,762,800

4.430,826,016

-4,229,264.000
2,245,603.900
372,386,742

470,000,000
2,347,132,642

13.458,916,948

750,000,000
18,923,816,830

_Additional
capital injection
during the year

Frw

1,612,100,000.

1,000,000,600

1,000,000,000

1,641,380,000.

-10,876,125,000.

287,290,244

15,000,000.,000

Disposals during

the year

Frw

-4,.430,826.016

Fair valuation
gainf(loss)

Frw
174,782,799
(245,914,250)
8,630,705,000
926,500

306,282,000

189,590,342
(1,783,166,000)
(139,785,533

(101,560918)
(79,699,887)
9,813,600
1,118,597.200
0

0
149,696,100
(137,852,178)

0
383,894,954

2,169,266,447

72,491,824
16,656,022,590)

Write back

Frw

1,130,638,694

Carrying value
as at 30:June.
2018

Frw
1,901,440,222.
3.972410,000

60,204:430,000
5,672.992.000

.3,062,820,000

5,788,209,804
4,295,809,000.
2,334,350,000

6:424,604,219.
9.452,426:694
942,105,600
10,945,360,000°

15:105,389,000
2:395,300,000.
434,534,564

420,000,000
2.731,027,596

15,915,473,63%
$22,491.824

27.267,794.240
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Eguity Favestec,

Ws_mna.m Enterprise. Investment Company
Limitéd (REIC}

Rwanda Foreign Holdings Investment
Company Limited (RFHIC)

Rwanda Investment Group E.Ewnm (RIG)
Rwanda Stock Exchange (RSE)
Safaricom

SONARWA General Insurance
SONARWA Life Assurance

Uttimate Concept Ltd (UCL)

Uliimate Developers Limited (UBL)
Warld Vu Satellites Limited

Total

¢) Significant fair valuation gain during the year ended 30 June 2019
Eastern and Southern Africa Trade Development Bank — Fiw 2 billion

The fair value gain is consistent with the financial performance of the Bank. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the bank made a _S,&. it:of

Carrying value Additional Dispgsals during Fairvaluation Write back: Carrying value
as-at 1 Jily 2017 capital injection the year gain/(loss} as'at 30.June
during the year . 2018

Erw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw.

6,806,358 - (6,806,358) - -
2:507.084,751 - . (1.412:384,751) - 1.094,700,000
3,160,128,591. - - (37,524:591) - 3;122,604,000
46,989 842 - . (6.257.932) - 40,731,930
3287,277.161 - . 1,189,799,389 - 4,477,076,550
5.013,717.682 - - 725,075,813 - 5,738,793.495:

- '3,000,000,000 - {3,000,000,000) - .
68,078,180,565 10,000,000;000 - 9:921,788,500 10,000,000,000 97,999,969,065
12.745,060,000 8,640,900,000 - - - 21,389.960,000.
243,359,550.,020 52.457,795,244 (4,430,826,016) 11,433,735,480 11,130,638,694 313,952,893,422.

USD 129.3 million, which is an- improvement in finangial performance when compared to the previous year - 2017 @83 of USD 111.8 miillion).

d) Sigeificant fair valuation losses during the year ended 30 June 2019

Ultimate Developers Limited (UDL) - Frw 2.3 billion

Thie fair valudtion loss is consistent with the performance of the company for the year ended 31 December2018. The comparny made 4 loss for the
year of Rwf 1.5 billion for the year énded 31 December 2018. This was mainly driven by a gross loss on the sale.of houses of Frw 2.6 billion after

a price discount was offered on some of the houses leading to.an inventory write down of Rwf 5.2 biltion during the year. The: fair value loss is
also mxv_m_:oa by the write off formerly capital ised costs for the development of Gacurilo master plan amounting to Frw 773 miltion against the

share capital of the company.
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Bank of Kigali (BK) — Frw 2.1 billion

The fair value loss is consistent with the movement in shate price which fell from Frw 286 per share as at 30 June 2018 to Frw 274 pershare as at
30 June 2019. This is mainly atributable to a rights issue by Bank of Kigali in November 2018 of Frw 270 per- share which diluted the market

price for the shares.

Rwanda Development Bank (BRD) — Frw 1.7 biltion.

The fair value loss is mainly attributable to the significant write-off of non-performing loans by BRD as at 30 June 2019.
26.2. Equity investments — Medical

Eqaity Investee:

mav.mm&mn%

Rivanda Foreign Invegtment Holding
Company Limited (RFIHC)

Associate’

Bank of Kigali (BK)

COGEBANQUE Sa

CIMERWA Ltd

Othier'equity investments

Rwanda Investment Group Limited (RIG)

Eastern And Southern Africa Trade:
Development Bank

Bragserie Et Limonaderic Du Rwanda
(BRALIRWA)

KT Rwanda Limited

26.2.1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under medical scheme during the year

a) Summary reconciliation

.Hu_—.m...am
equity

instrument:

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary..
shares

Ordinary
shares
Ordjnary
shares
Ordinary
;shares
Preference
_sharcs

Yoage
holding

2019

28.55%

0.86%
30.91%

10.12%

5.22%
1.32%
0.82%

NiA

Yoage

holding

2018

30.20%

1.20%
30.90%

10.10%

5.00%
1.30%
0.30%

NA

Noamber of Number-of

shares
held
2019

2,889,606

7.723.900
21,592

3,557,651

720
1,376
8,404,200

10,775.087

shares
held

2018
2,889,606
7,723,500

21,592

3.557,651

720
1,339

8,404,200

12,406,793

Basis of

measurement

Fair value-

Fair value
Fair vajue

Fair value

Fair value:
Fair valueé’

Fair vatue:.

Amortised
cost

S

Carrying Value as Carrying Valuc.as
at 38 June 2019 at 30 June 2018
Frw Frw
481,509,207 473.895.384
2,116,348,600 2,209,035,400
8,768.989.167 7.784,952,416
5,629,181,194 5.788.298.177
974,368.099 936,781.200.
14,938,948,000 12,962.785,355.
1.235.417,400 1,260,630,000
8,384.364,091 8,300,939,413
42,029,126,658 39,717:317,345
2019 2018
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Asat ] July

Additional investments.during the year
‘Interest on wqmwmwnznm dividends

Fair valuation gain/(loss}during the year.
As at-30 Jiane

b) Detailed reconciliation per equity investee

Financial year ended 30 Juse 2019

Equity Investee:

Sibsidiary

Rwanda Foreign Holdings Investment Comipany
Limited HWEIQV

Associate

Bank of Kigali (BK)

Coge banque SA

CIMERWA Limited

Other equity investments

Rwanda Invéstment Group.Limited (RIG)
Eastern and Southern Africa Trade Development
Bank (Formerly PTA Bank)

‘Brasserie [t Limonaderie Du Rwanda .A.ww>?:~..$~.>v.
KT Rwanda Limited

Financial year ended 30 June 2018.

Frw Frw

-39,717,317,345 36,188,170,406

346,244,803 238,040,439

83,424,678. 82,594,602

1,882,139,832 3,208,511,898

42,029,126,658 39,717,317,345

ns._.anuw value as %n&:o:s_. Iaterest on hu.:..&...:».:a... Carrying value as
at  capital injection preférence gain/(loss) at

1-Jul-18 during the year dividends 30-Jun-19

Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
473,895:384 - - 7,613,823 481,509,207
'2,209,035,400 - - (92,686,800) 2,116,348,600
7,784,952 416 - - 484,036,751 $,268,989,167
5,788,298,177 - - (159,116,983) 5,629,181,194
936,781,200 - - .uﬁumm,mwo. 974,368,009
12,962,785,355 346,244,803 - 1,629;918,742 14,938,948,900
1,260,630,000 - - (25,212,600) 1,235,41 uhoc.
-8,300,939,413 - 83,424,679 0 8,384,364,091
39,717,317,345 . 346,244,803 83,424,679 1,882,139,832 42,029,126,658 .

80
- I o I I r e [




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Equity Investee

BANK.OF KIGALLI (BK)

BRALIRWA

CIMERWA LIMITED

COGEBANQUE SA

EASTERN AND SOURTHERN AFRICA TRADE
DEVELOPMENT BANK (FORMERLY PTABANK)
RWANDA FOREIGN HOLDINGS INVESTMENT COMPANY
LIMITED (RFHIC) | o o

RWANDA INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (RIG)

KT RWANDA LIMITED

Carrying value Additional Interest on Fair  Carrying value
- asat capital preference. valuation as at
1 July 2017 injection -dividends gainfloss 30 June 208
during the

year .
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
1,892,355,500 - - 316679900  '2,209,035,400
1,134,567.000 - - 126,063,000  1,260,630,000
5,598,709,461 - - 189,588,716 5,788,298,177
6,351,945,54] - - 1,433,006,875  7,784,952416
10,958,893,090 -238,040,439 - 1,765,851;826 G.qwmmuq@m«wmu.
1,085,316,426 - - {611,421,041) 473,895,384
948,038,577 - {11,257.377) 936,781,200
8,218,344,811 - 82,594,602 - 8,300,939413
36,188,170,406. 238,040,439 82,594,602 3,208,511,898 39,717,317,345

¢) Significant fair valuation gains during the year ended 30 June 2019

Eastern and Southern Africa Trade Development Bank — Frw 1.6 billion

The fair value gain is. consistent with the financial performance of the Bank. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the bank made a profit of
USD 129.3 million, which is.an improvement in finaricial petformance when compared to the previous year - 2017 (profit of USD 111.8 million).

31




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

27. Government bond

The Government bond had been fiilly séttled by the year end as shown below:

Description of Boad 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Trw Frw
2014 Government Bond - 2.401,008,014
Total - 2,401,098,014
Reconciliation of Government bond
Particular 2019 2018
Frw Frw
Opening batance 1 July 2,401,098,014 7.027,168,876
Interest income earned during the year 394,182,224 214,489,614
Repayment received (2,795,280,238) '(4,840,560,476)
Closing 30 Jurie 2,401,098,014

O 25% October 2013, RSSB entered into an agreement with the Government of Rwanda through Ministry of
Finance and Economic Planning (MINECOFIN) for the sale of three (3) RSSB properties to the Government of
Rwanda (GoR). The properties include;

- Kacyiru Building (former CSR headquarter) focated at plot No.3135 dt Kacyiru sector, Gasabo District

- Kicukiro Pension Plaza located at plot No.14162 at Kicukiro sector, Kicukiro District

- Nyarugenge Plaza located at plot-'No.10040 at Muhima sector, Nyarugenge District

The agreed purchase consideration for these properties was Frw 26,297,638,528 (exclusive of taxes) This
consideration was to be paid in form of down payment of Frw 5;000,000,000 and a Governmetit Bond of Frw
21,297,638,528. This Government Bond was to be repaid ona quarterly basis for-a 5 year period at-an annual
interest rate-of 5% per annum. '

As at 30 June 2019, the Government bond. has. been fully settled by the Ministry of Finatice and: Economie
Planning.

28, Corporate bonds
The corporate bond had been fully settled by the year end as shown below:

Sub-Nofe Bal_ance as a_t_ Balancg' asat3)

30 June 2019 June 2018

Frw: Frw

Iniernational Finance Corporation (IFC) Bond - '2,536,177.884
Total - -2,536,177,884
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Reconciliation of IFC Bond

Particular 2019 2018

Frw Frw
Opeiiing balance 1 July 3,536,177,884 2,536,177,884
I_ntérest‘i'ncome garned during the year 270,072,116 306,250,000
Repayment teceived _(2',806,250,0.0.0_)' '(306 :250,000)
Closing 30 June - 2,536,177,884

‘On 22 May 2014, RSSB invested Frw 2,500,000,000 in a corporate Bond issued by the Intematlonal Financial
Corporation through the Natmnal Bank of Rwanda (BNR) with an interest rate- of 12:25% and tenure of 5 yeats
ending on 21 May 2019. As at 30 June 2019, this corporate bond had been fully settled by the International

Financial Corporation (IFC).

29. Treasury bonds

The treasury bonds held by RSSB as at the end of the year per scheme were as follows:

Description

Trea_sﬂr-y bonds - Pension scheme
Treasury bonds - Medical scheme

Sub-Note

29.1
292
TFotal

Classification of Treasury bonds (Non-current Vs Curfent)

Non-current
Treasury bonds - Pension scheme
Treasury bonds.- Medical scheme

Current
Treasury bonds - Pensicnischeme
Treasuty bonds - Medical scheme

29.1. Treasury bonds — Pension scheme

Particular

Opeiling balance 1 July

Invéestment during the year

Interest income earned during the year
Receipts during the year

Closing 30 June

Sub-total (1)

Sub-total (2)

‘Grand total (1+2)

Balznce as at

Balance as at

30-Jun-19 30-Jun-18-
Frw Frw
81,739,355,258 44,778,824,665
6,702,661,429 9,736,699,892
88,442,016,687 54,515,524,557
2019 2018

Frw Frw

75,200,750,240

40,733,439,629

6.702,661,429 7,714,007,584
81,903,411,669  48,447,447,213
6,538,605,018 4,045,385,036
0 2,022,692,308
6,538,605,018 6,068,077,344
88,442,016,687  54,515,524,557
2019 2018
Frw Frw
44,778,824,665. 40,381,716,403
39,510,330,217 7,899,094,296
6,941,522,610 5,125,428,010
(9,491,322,234) (8,627,414,044)
81,739,355,258.

44,778,824,665
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The amortized cost of the. governiment securities closely approximates their fair value.

29:2. Treasury bonds — Medical scheme

2019 2018

Frw Frw

Opening batance 1 Tuly 9,736,699,892 12,327,326,816
Intérest income eatned during the yéar 951,152,048 1,360,189,501
Receipts during the year ' (3.985,190,511Y (3,950,816,425)
Closing 30 June 6,702,661,429 9,736,699,892

The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value,
30. Treasury bills

Balance asat

Balance asat

Sub-Note .
Sub-Nate 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-18.
Frw Frw
Treasury bills - Pension scheme , 30.1 76,108,492,910 41,357,127.468
Treasuty bills - Medical scheme 30.2 .40,286,278,145 23,966,624,601
Treasury bills — Matemity leave scheme 303 3,828,868,134 0
Taotal 120,223,639,189 65,323,752,069
30.1. Treasury bills — Pension scheme
2019 2018
Frw. Frw
Opening balance. I July 41,357,127,468 34,075,150,939
. Purchases 153,955,695;443 101,639,581,895
Interest accriied 4,088,869,999 2,254,394,634
Maturities {123,293,200,000) {96,612,000,000)
Clesing 30 June 76,108,492,910 41,357,127,468
The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value.
30.2. Treasury bills— Medical scheme
Particular 2019 2018
Frw Frw
Opening balance 1 July 23,966,624,601 14,048,855,230
Purchasés 65;944,679,987 35,267,679,780
Interest accrued. 2,346,773,557 1,172,489,591
Matutities (51,971,800,000) (26,522,400,000)
Closing 30 June. 40,286,278,145 23,966,624,601
The amortized cost of the government 's_ccurit_i"e_s-'cl_'osely approximates their fair-value,
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30.3. Treasury bills - Maternity leave scheme
Particular
Purchases during the year

Interest accrued
Closing 30 June

The amoitized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value.

31. Commereial papers

During the year, RSSB invested in commercial papers as foliows:

Company issaing commercial paper

Horizon Group

Crystal Ventures Limited
NPD Limited

Total

Details of the ¢conmercial papers are ‘as follows:

31.1. Commercial paper issued by Horizoh Group

Opening balance 1 July
Purchages during the year
Interest accrued during the year
Maturities

Closing 30 June

~Sub-Note

31.1

312
31.3

On 22 February 2019, Commercial papers with Horizon Group Limited were renewed attracting-an annual

interest of 11% with a term of 364 -days from purchase.

31.2. 'Commerecial paper issued by Crystal Ventures Limited

Opening batance 1 July

Purchases. during the year

Interest accrued during the year
Maturities

Conversion to investment property {(swap)-
‘Closing 30 June:

Commercial papers with Crystal ventures were fully settled during the year.

2019

Frw

3,652,000,000

176,868,134

3,828,868,134
2019 2018
Frw Fiw
2,755,636,500 2,766,593,408
- 10,245,475,396
13,389.377:467 13.429.720,279

16,145,013,966: 26,441,789,083

2019 2018
Frw Frw
2,766,593,408 -
2,640,000,000. 2:640,000,000
349,043,002 126,593,408
(3,000,000,000) .
2,755,636,500 2,766,593,408
2019 2018

Frw Frw
10,245,475,396 .
21,988,057.500- 9,772,470,000
1,079,070, 147 473,005,396
(21,988,057,500) .

(11,325,445,543)

- 10,245,475,396
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31.3. Commercial papers issued by NPD Limited

Opening balance 1 July
‘Purchases during the year

Interest acctued during the year

‘Maturities

Closing 30 June

2019 2018
Frw, Frw
13,429,720,279 -
13.200,000,000 13,200,000,000
1,759,657,188 229,720,279

_ (15,000,000,000) -
13.389,377,467. 13,429,720,279

On 15 May 2019; Commercial paper with NPD Limited was renewed attracting an annual interest of 10%.with

term of 364 days.

32. Loans and Advances to third parties

Persion Medieal Tatal
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Sub- Frw "Frw Frw’ Frw: Frw Firw
note
Loanto City of Kigali 3271 1.576,247,281 876,247,281 1,576247.281 876,247.281
Loatis to MININFRA 322 4,359,358.701 3,762.716,369 - 43 5’9’»353’701 3.762,716,369
%gg‘ﬁ?ﬁf}ﬁfﬁgg;] 323 ; - 35323037943 12,000000,000 35323037943, 12,000,000:000
Total 5935605982 6,638963,650 35323037943  12,000,000,000  41,258,643,925  18,638.963,650
Classification of Loans and advances to third parties (Non-current Vs Current)
Pension Medical Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw: Frw Frw
Non-current
Loan to City of Kigali 1,276,247,281  876.247,281 - - 1,276,247,281 876,247,281
Loans to MININFRA - 2.555,041,697 - - 2,555,041,697
Loan to MINECOFIN - - 35323,037,943  12,000,000,000 35323,037,943  12,000,000,000
Sub:total (1) 1276247281  3,431,288978 35323,037.943  12,000,000,000° 36,599,285224  15.431,288,978
Ct;rrcnt _ '
Ldan to City of Kigali 300,000,000 - 0 0 300,000,000 -
Loans to:-MININFRA 4,359,358,701  3,207,674,672. 0 0 4359338701  3,207.674.672
Loan to-MINECOFIN - - - - - -
Sub-total (2) 4,659,358,701  3,207.674,672 < - 4,659,358,701  3,207.674,672
Grand total (1+2) 5935605982  6,638,963,650  35323,037,943  12,000,000,000 41,258,643,925  18,638,963,650
32.1. Loan to City of Kigali
2019 2018
Frw Frw
At 1 July 876,247,281 876,247,281
Receivable for Well Springs Acadeny land 830,000,000
Repayments {150,000,000) -
At 30 June 1,576,247,281 876,247,281
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The loan to City of Kigali is from the agreement for Klbagabaga Kinyinya road preject between City of Kigali,
RSSB and Horizon Group where City of Kigali was responsible of contribution foi the 60% of the total
expropriation cost evaluated for the branch connecting to RSSB and 50% forthe branch connecting to Horizon
Group LTD investment sites, contribution of 100% cost for the study of road and contract management of all
contracts related to this project. which is Toad study and supervision services, road construction works and the-
expropriation related services. On 21 March 2019, an agreemernt between RSSB and City of Ki gali to provide for
the modalities. of payment amounts due to RSSB by the City of Kigali was signed. The amounts covered under
the agreement are as follows:

Details: _ _ Amount (Frw)
Advance for the construction of Kibagabaga — Kinyinya road 876,247,281
Compensation for plot transferred to Well Spring Academy 850,000,000
Total 1,726,247.281

It was-agreed that payment would be made over a period of six (6) years from the financial year 2018/2019 to the

financial year 2023-2024. Payment was to be executed on a quarterly basis with a payment of Frw 75,000,000

per quarter. As at 30 June 2019, Frw 150,000,000 had: been settled by the City of Kigali.
32.2. Loan to MININFRA

2019 _ o 2018

Loan for Loan for Total Loan for CBD1 Loan for Total

CBD1  Partitioning Infrastructure Partitioning

Infrastructure.  of Kicukiro of Kicukiro

pension ‘pension

plaza plaza
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
At 1 July 5.,613.430,676° 149,285,693 5.762,716,369 6415349344 149285693  6,564.635,037
Repayments (1,403,357.668) -__(1,403.357.668) _ (801.918.668) - (801:918.668)
At 30 June 4,210,073.008 149285693 4.359.358.701 5613430676 149.285.693  5,762,716,369

'32.3. Loan to MINECOFIN

The Loan to MINECOFIN as at 30 June 2019 rélates to Frw [2,000_;000_,_000 which was advanced to Community
'Based Health Insurance (CBHI) Scheme during the year 2017 from RSSB Medical Scheme to fund their deficit.

Upon discussions between MINECOFIN, MoH arid RSSB, a repayment of Frw 8.3 billion was made in 2018 by

‘the Ministry of Health- (MoH). The Frw 8 3 billion was ence more advanced to the CBHI S¢heme during FY 18
hence the balance remained at Frw12 billionas at 30 June 2018 as per the movement shown below;

2019 2018
Frw Frw
At.1 July 12,000,000,000 12,000,000,000
Additions 26,246,578;573 8,3 82_,500,’681
Repayments {2:923,540,630) (8.382.500.681)
At 30'June (net) 35.323.037.943 12,000,600,000

During the year ended 30 June 2019, RSSB made an additional advance of Frw 26,246,578,573 to CBHI for the
year ended 30 June 2019. MINECOFIN settled Frw 2,923,540,630 diiring the year, therefore the outstanding

balance due from MINECOFIN is Frw 35,323,037,943.
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'33. Mortgages loans

At July:

Adjustment'td opening balance

Allocation of receipts on Mortgage loans — unallocated in prior year
Receipts during the year

Unallocated receipts of Mortgage loans

Balanceat the 30 June

Pension scheme.

2019 2018
Frw Firw
306,012,689 511,167,679
6,234,889 3,544,266
66,171,065 63,971,065
(139,195,832) {206;499,256)
(92,686:231) (66,171,065)
146,536,580 306,012,689
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34. Inventory

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI gm?numq leave Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rwf Rwf Rwf Rwf Rwf Rwf Rwf Rwf Rwi Rwf
Office suppliers 55,751,622 66,155,606 70,423,102 66,155,606 161,386,275 86,002,288 5,868,592 2,205,186 293429591 220,518,686
‘Puel inventory 461,270 242422 582,657 942422 1,335256 315,148 48,556, 8,080 2,427,739 808,072

56,212,892 66,398,028 71,005,759 66,398,028 162,721,531 86,317.436 5,917,148 2213,266 295,857,330 221,326,758

35. Advances to contractors

‘Contractor Pension Medical CEII Matérnity liave Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
CCECe 0 0 0 (23,000 0 0 0 0 0 (23.000)
Engincering Brigade  2.418,208,313  2,418,208.313 0 0 0 K] 0 0 2418208313 2418208313

Spacial Engineéring
& Construction:

Limited 0 (74,235:309) 0 ¢ 0 0 0. 0 0 (74235309)
Ecosulrap Sarl 0 (20.702,920) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 {20,702,920)
Afriprecast Ltd 6.774,507,;524  5,728.302,065 0 0 0 0 o 0 6,774,507,524  5,728,302,065
PECOB Lid 0 2,598,581 i 2,598,381 0 3,378,155 0. 86619 o 8,661,936
Broll Limited 0 (73.038,514) 0 73,038,514 0 0 0. 0 0 0
Other advances: 2,280,000 0 2,880,000 0 6,600,000 0 240,000 12,000,000 ¢

9,194,995,837  7.981,132.216 2,880,000 75,614,095 6,600,800 3,378,155 240,000 86,619 9204715837 8,060,211,085

The advances to Engineering Brigade and Afriprecast Limited are in respect to the ongoing contract for the Batsinda Housing project - Phase 2.

-36. Dividends receivable

Pension Medical CBHI “Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frv  Frw Frw’ Frw Frw
Dividerds réceivable 4,488,574,825 2,917,156,117 94,284,845 106,944,120 . - 4582.850,670°  3,024,100,237
Other income receivable* - 411,097,630 - 20,607,655 - 65,179 - 431,770,464
Total 4,488,574,825  3,328,253,747 94,284,845 127,551,775 0 65179  4,582.859,670 3,455,870,701

* For the year ended 30 June 2019, other income receivable was re-classified from dividend receivable to other assets.
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36 (a) Summary reconciliation of movement in dividend receivable for the year ended 30 Juné 2019

At 1 July

Dividends declared

Dividends received

U?mmm:n_m converted into share .nm_u."#m_.
At 30 June

Pension ‘Medical ‘Total

Frw Frw Frw
2,917,156,117 106,944,120 3,024,100,237
5,660,438,732 792,921,118 6,453,350,850
(3,658,553,512) (459,335,590) {4,117,889,102)
(430,466,512) (346,244,803) (776,711,315)
4,488,574,825 94,284,845 4,582,859,670

36 (b) Detailed reconciliation of movement in dividends receivable for the year ended 30 June 2019 per equity investee — Pension schemie

Local investmerits
Bank of Kigali Limited
Bralirwa Limited
Crystal Telecom L:td
Ruliba Clays Limited
1&M Bank

Inyangve Industries
Sub-tetal (I}

Foreign investmernts,
Safaricom Limited

Eastern-and Southern Africa Trade Development Bank
{ESATDB)

Afrexim Bank

Sub-total (2)

Grand total (1+2)

P I P e

At 1.July 2018 Dividend Bividend Dividend At 30 June 2019
declared received  econverted into
‘share ca .._..m..u_
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
2.914,624,985  3,698,275,711  (2,914,624,985) - 3,698,275,711
- 112,303:400  (112,303,400) - .
- 366,299,114 - - 366,299,114
- 22,232,486 (22,232,436) -
2,531,132 58,007,120 (60,538,252) - .
- 760,000,000  (336,000,000) - 424,000,000
2,917,156,117  5,017,117,831  (3,445,699,123) - 4,488,574,825
- 160,267,951 (160,267,951) - -
- 438,994,490 (8.527.978)  (430,466,512) -
- 44,058,460 (44,058,460) - -
- 643,320,901 (212,854,389)  (430,466,512) -
2,917,156,117  5,660,438,732. (3,658,553,512)  (430,466,512) 4,488,574,825

36 (c) Detailed reconciliation of movement in dividends receivable for the year ended 30 June 2019 per equity investee — Medical scheme
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Local investments

Bank of Kigali Limited
Bralirwa Limited
Cogebanque

Rwanda Investment Grovp
Sub-total (1)

Foreign investments

Eastern.and Southern Africa Trade Development Beank

(ESATDB)
Sub-total (2)

Grand fotal (1+2)

37. Other assets

Pentsion

2019 2018

Frw Frw
StaiT Joans - 1
Loans to &x- 62,057,481 67,786,207
staff
Cther 1,803,000 1,805,000
deposits and )
deposits paid
afier more
than one-year
Rent (8,751 540) (11,053,571
receivable’ .
from other.
tenants
Kicukiro, 28,234,201 26,147,933
pension plaza

Medicat
2019
Frw

49,131,994

224,991

£206,400)

At1 July Dividend Dividend Dividend  At30 June 2019

2018 declared received -converted

into share

capital
Frw. Frw Frw Frw Frw
106,944,120 94,284,845 (106,944,120) - 94,284,845
- 46,223,100 (46,223,100) - 0
- 306,168,370 (306,168,370) 0
- 13 - - 0
106,944,120 446,676,315 (459,335,590) 94,284,845
X 346,244,803 - {346,244,803) -
] 346,244,803 = (346,244,863) 0
166,944,120 792,921,118  (459,335,590) (346,244,803) 94,284,845

CBHI Muternity leave Total
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 26018
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
(0 - - - - - -
54.476.931 14,076,009 17414309 180,155 199,344 125 445,639 139,876,791
224,991 - - p - 2.020.9H 2029991
(162,000 (473,000) (210,600) (17.200) {5,400) 9,448,140y (11.431571)
- - - - - 28234201 26,147.933
91
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Pénsion. Medical CRHI Nateraity leave Total
2619 2618 2019 018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2619 2018
Frw. Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw. Frw Frw
temants
Grand (220,438,357 206,696,760 (8,496,000} (8.496.000) . . - - (228,934357) 198,200,760
pension plaza ) ) . o
ienants
Nyaniza (15,193,165) (2.529,565) - - - - - - (15193,165) (2,529,365}
pension plaza
tenants
Musanze 9,082,163 13,879,182 . . - - K 9,082,163 13,879,182
pension plaza
tenants
Karongi 71.308.16! 64,530,121 - - . - - - 71,308,161 64,530,121
pension plaza
.‘,.nz.md__.w
Rwamagana {17.596.:894) {9,803,192) - - - - - - {17;596;894) (9,803,192)
pension plaza ’
tenants
Doctors! plaza’ - - (17,163,540 42,161,021y - - - - (17,163,540) (2,161,021)
tenants
Crystal plaza 343,317,859 336,533,677 - - - - - - 343,317,259 336,533,677
Mutara 18,083,893 18,083,895 - - - - - - 18,083,895 18,083:395
cnterprise’
building
Tower 2 - - 43,185,964 107,952,223 . - - - 43,185,964 107,952,223
tenants ’ .
Staff 239:213,710 204,913,570 85,534,803 (4,647,916} 3,835,600 392,208 526,226,424 376,107,153
advandes and
deposiis
Arounts dué 6,235,085 6,091,175 (6477315} (6,658,175) 736,450 326,100 14,780 100, 509,000 {241.000)
10 third party
Group (92.959) Y473 (65,34%) (9.473) 139,680 {9,312) 18,624 4,312 - -
insurance - )
SONARWA.
Solidarity 1,552,120 374,600 1,697,020 523,600 2,080,500 574570 {1,640) (39,770) .5.328,000 1,433,000
contribution
fshema rydct 3,985,202 3,985,202 3,985,202 3.985.202 5,313,604 3,313,604 - - 3,284 008 13.284,008
Other coststo i - g - 22 - 2 - 40 -
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recover from,
salary

Advancés not
yet accounted
for

Qttier debtors
KCC debt-

Diye from
sales of”
Batsinda
House -
Withholding
{ax retained
Loan to Ejo
Heza
Inter-scheme
debtors *
[nter-scheme

loan
réceivable *

Olher
receivables**

Prepaid
expenses

Pension Medical CBHI Maternity leave. Total
2019 2018 2819 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw m..;.é. Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
(16.416,626) (8,001,531) 1957177 1.654 879 62,382,520 52.831,105 693,710. 243,554 48616781 467261007
882,380,764 442208321 58,972 678 12,041,136 2751,869.919  $34,183.538 662,296 907 3,693885657  1,288,533,802
437,323,080 437,323,080 - - - . - 457,323,080 437,333,080
(16,656,187) {16.656;187} - - - - - - (16,656,187 (16,656,187
32,328,650 32,145,573 23,662,643 24,683,887 - N (1) 17,064 35,991,292 56,846,523
425,011,085 - - - - - - - 425,011,085 -
58,362,725 58362725 4254870164  4.254.870,164 4,866,612 4866612 - - 4,318,099501 4,318,099,501
2588676472 2175239649 3307967.506 2218109409 38559794 94114,637 195859790 2278724370 6,131,063,571  6.766,188,065
318,642,233 - 1,489,090 - - - - . 320,131,323 -
3.092.351 26.112.015 3.506,000 26.102,015 8,851,251 33,945:620 325.498- 870,400 16,275,000 87,040,050
5193975817 4,044,719,734  7957855.548  6.892,161,337 2974038064 1038702266 201,571,623 2,280,411,88% 16327440352 14255995226

* Other assets include inter-scheme balances amounting to Frw 10.4 billion which mwm_uwomazﬁna.m%mqmﬁ@ in-assets and liabilities however these
assets do'not have anil impact on the net assets at the end of the year.

4% For the year ended 30 Juné 2019, other income receivable was re-classified from the note on dividend receivable to other assets,
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38. Deposits with Financial Institutions

Leng term deposits

Rwanda Development, Bank

AB Bank.

Barik of Kigali )

Bank Populaire du Rwanda (Atlas

Maray

Cominercial Bank of Africa

{Rwanda)

NHMmEm.me

‘Sub-total (1} 381
‘Short term deposits

AB BANK Rwanila Limited

Bank of Africa

Bank ow, Kigali r.:.::nn

Bank Populaire du Rwanda (Atlas

Mara},

CogeBangue-

ECORANK. Rwanda Limited

Equity Bank Rwandz Limited

1& Bank Rwanda Li mited

Kenya Commeércial Bank

LETSHEGO Bank -

Unguka Bank

Zigama Css
_Sub-total (2) 38.2
:Céll deposit - KCB

Sub-total {3) 38.3
-Grand total {1+2+3)

Pension Medical Taiak
2019 2018 2619 018 2019 2018
Frw I'rw Frw Frw. Frw Frw
23,141,943 598 21,154,195 432 26,772,746 000 24,449,996,347 49,914,689.998 45,584,191,779
L075.945.205 - . . 1,075,945 205 -
3,049,602,740 -. - - 3,049,602, 740 -

1,035,191,781 . : . 1,055,191.781
1,083,808.219 - - . 1,083,808,219 -
°6,133.301,370 - - - 6,133,301,370 -
35,539,793 313 21,134,195,432 26,772,746,000. 24,449,996,547 62;312,539,313 45,584,191,779
787746575 1,052.815,067 - 787,746,575 1.052,815,067
3.233.013,701 3233876714 21063,561,643 5,296,375,344 3,233 876714
29,103.287,694 37.224:698,219 16,541,095,920 15,573,449,990 45,644,383,614 52.798,148,200
7,222,465 814 13,694,150.684- 11,590,027.431 16;815,547,943 18:812,493 245 30,509/698 627
16.333,150,757 21 859:851,309 9,128.493.170. J1.351,534,244 25,461,643,927 33,211,385,353
3,199,356,166 547,750,822 2,132.904,108: 2,176,054,792 5,332,260.274 7647835614
7.292,579.529 837.260 9,256,544:497 3,206,859.542 16,549,124,026 3.207,696,502
< . 8.214,794,521 - $,214,794.521 -
10,755,372;584 74,084,866,690 11,583,967,105° 10;880,145,203. 22.339,339,689 24.965,011,893
. 2,059,235 410 - - - 2,059,235,410
. . t,890.410 3,138,410,961 1,490:410 3,138,410,961
589,945,203 10,795,342,460 4,245,178 078 5447123284 9,535,123281: 16,242 465,744
§3216,918,023 109,477,454,635 74,758,456,883. 68,589,125,059 157,975,374,906 178,066,580,594
11.013,659.452 9.932.752.370 - : 11.013.659.452 9.932.752:370
11,013,659:452 9,932,752,370: . - 11.013.659:452 9.932,752,370
129,770,370,758 140,544,402 437 161,531,202,883 93.03%,122.306 231,301,573,671 :233,583.524,743
94
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Qummmmnmaos cn..._ deposits with financial institetions (Non-current Vs Cn .._.a_..c.

Pension Medical Total )
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Frw’ Frw Frw Frw
Non-current 35,539,793,313 19,624,610,044 26,772,746,000 22,703,568,037 62,3 _.m.,.mww,w.mm. &m...uu.me.um...cwo
Curreni 94,231,577.475 120,919,792 393 74,758.,456,883 70,335,554,269 168,989,034:358 191.255/346,662
129,770,370,788 140,544,402,437 101,531,202,883 93,039,122,306 231,301,573,671 233,583,524,743
38.1. Reconciliation of movement in long term deposit during the year
2019 2018
Pension Medieal Total Pension Medical Total
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Opening 1 July 21,134,195,432  24,449,996,347  45.584,191,779 32,643,780,822  26,196,424,658  58,840,205,480
Placements 12,000,000,000 - 12.000,000,000 . - -
Interest accrued during the year- 2,405,597,881  2,322,749,653 4,728,347,534 2.651,912,877  2:357.678.219 .5,009,591,006:
Conversion to Equity - - - (10,000,000,000) - (10,000,000,000).
Receipts during the year - - (4,161,498,267)  (4,104,106,530)  (8,265,604,797)
Closing 30 June 35,539,793,313  26,772,746,000  62,312,539,313 21,134,195,432  24,449,996,347  45,584,191,779
38.2. Reconciliation of movement in short term deposits in financial institutions during the year
Pension Medical Total Pénsion Medical Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Frw ~ Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Opening 1 July 109,477.454,635  68,589,125,959  178,066,580,594 108,569,794,473  71,831,973,413  180,401,767.886
Placement during the year 83,750,000,000  79,000,000,000  162,750,000,000 108,000,000,000  69,000,000,000  177,000,000,000
Interest accrued dufing the year 8,923,095,275 6.132,139,156 15,055,234,431 11,782,393,041 7,954,050,834 19,736,443,874
Maturities (118,933,631,887)  (78,962,808,232) (197.896,440,119) (118,874,732,879). (80,196,898,287) (199,071,631,1 66)
Closing 30 June 83,216,918,023  74,758,456,883%  157,975,374,906 109,477,454,635  68,589,125,939  178,066,580,594
95
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38.3. Reconciliation of movement in ¢all deposit dusing the year

2019 2019
Kshs Frw
Opening:balance - | July 1,123,832,967 9,932,752,370
Placements during the year 2,334,725,065 21,002,341,603
Interest accrued during the year - 603,791,000
Receipt of principal and interest (2,316,799,604)  (20,525,225,521)
Closing balance - 30 June 1,141,758,428 11,013,659,452
39. Cash and bank balances
Pension Medicak CBHI ‘Maternity leave Taotal
2619 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
BNR and o N _ N _ _ . _ A S
Commercial 378895355741 64877773,623  39.659.005257  46.659.350.915 5050072506  1611AS6861  9,990,690,414  6749260,699 82598413918  {19,897,881398
banks
Savings.and
Credit _ - - - - 223,680,040 311,404,843 - - 223,680,040 371,404,843
Societies
{SACCOs)
MORICASH - - - : 998,612,054 10,144 580 - - 998,612,054 10,144,580
Peity cash 3,092,355 6,580,017 3,905,602 6,588,392 8,945 780 8,362,322 325,296 ‘219,538 Mm.m.mmmbum 21,950,269
Transit 367,286,186 409,059,321 214,732,068 72,406,384 216,636,927 60,492,606 21121474 3,872:.957 §20,376,655 545,831,268
accounts
Tatal 38,250,934,282 65,293,412,961  29,877,732.927  46,738.354.691 m..lmbmpwaqhueq 2.002,091,212  10,012,737,184 a.qmwmmu 394 B4,657,351,700 126,787.212,258
40. Other payables
Penision Medieal CBH} _Materaity léave Total
ma—e 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018-
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw. Frw Frw Frw Firw
Suppliers of 671,546,997 196,666,226 336,843,342 759:632,166 525732,649 239863278 41,027,936 30,841,165 1,574,150,924 1,227,002;835
services: .
Suppliers — - - . - - - 11732798 99986273 117,327,198 99,986,273
Maternity leave.
scheme
9
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Supplicrs -
Medical scheme

Suppliérs -
CBHI,
Contributing -
employers

Volunfary
contributions

Unidentified
contributions

Assessed.
contribulions/co
niributions due
for recovery

Late payment
penaliy for
delaved

Coniributions:
and Tate payment
penalty
aytomnatically
charged
Medical
contributions
qmnm_.,qug.m
Medical
contributidns
payable
Coniributions
and late
paymenis
penalties
automatically
charged

Maternity leave
Contributors

Pension
2019 2018
Frw Frw
(48,192,651,179)  (45,304,212,130)
32,429,216 324845533
1,368,915,909° 1,426 333:331
(25,025.068,340)  (22:963,632,730)
247708409689 22,009 591,606
48476,909 414 46,226,368,72)

Medical
2019 2018
Frw Frw
304,936,636 266,313,398
7.891,043,083 7,212,712,385
(I1.268.380,692)  (10,592,884.208)
3,377,337,609. 3,380,171.,823
[ [ - [

CBHI
2019 2018,
Frw Frw
3.930,250,871.  2,556.431.i14

Maternity leave .

2y

Frw

802,859,838

487,549,887

Total
019 2018
Frw Frw
304,936,636 266,313:398.
3.930,250,871 2,556,431,114
(48,192/651,179)  (45,304,812,130)
32,429,216 32,484,533
1,368.915,909 1:426,233.331
(25025,068340)  {22.963.632,730)
24,708,409,689 22,009,591.606
48.476,909,414 46,226,368,721
7,.891,043,083 7,212,712,385°
(11,268 380,692)  (10,592,884,208)
3377337609 3,380,171,823
802,859,838 487,549,887
97
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Maferiity leave’
Unidentified

“contributions:

Maternity”
contribiiticn put
on Tecoyery
plan/ Forced

‘Maternity leave.

Tecovery.

Late payment
charges from
delayed

maternity

coniribulion

Statfsalary
pavable

Solidarity fund

Cantribulions ta

‘CESTRAR
"Toniing -CSR
Inidividual staff

contributions
for insurance
payable to -~

SONARWA

‘Withholding

SFAR

Insurance.
CORAR:

SPA
Individial staff

-contributions

for msurance.

~payable -

SORAS

W.anm:u

developmeni-

fund

m.a.n.mma:.

2012 2018
Frw Frw
1.3585.299 475,587
4,434,623 10,710,535
260 260
625,460y (404,498)
{4,400 -
252 274 252994
126,364 136,364
- (130,000
- 1,662,176
332665 331,335

. _— {

Medical
2619

Firw

5,000,923

#,042;648

260°

1104831

352,271

126,363

333,014

2018

Frw

1,688,103

11,295,247
260

1,223 310

253,903
126,363

150,000
1,662,176

331,334

CEHI
2019
Frw

{5,577.365Y-

(5:971,788)
(520%

(485.004)
6,000

17,157

1252:729)

(653:819)

2018

~... ™

(1,640,495).

(11,934,861

(520)

{818,800)

(400)

38094

(252,729)

2,160,829

(B57,669

Materaity leave

2019 2018
Frw Frw
784 -

(802,304,143)  (487.558,855)

(556,479) 8,968

(523,052) ¢185,304)

779.195 383,247

40,992 20,347

802 400

0 23

2 2

. 55,406

140 -
[ (

Total
2019
Frw
T84

(802,304,143)

(356,479)

345,805

7,284:678

35,359

541,704

12,000

98

2018

Frw

{487,558 855)

8,968

337,391

10,454,168

20,359

534,104

3,540,587

5,000
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Pension Medicil CBHI Maternity keave Total
2019 2018 019 2018 019 2018 2019 2018 3619 2018
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw. Frw

Prim life 14,609 14.600 14,612 14,600 (29.173) (29.200) 2 - 50 -
insurance’

Other costs fo) (4,466,937 {241,952) (5,200,384) 148,710 (12.365.176) (60,607). (449;641) {1:354) (22,482,138} (135403)
recover from

salary’

Public Treasury 69,714,179 (4.245811) 279,668,540 240831740 (290107987)  (290,902062)  (1,091387) (387,709) 57,183,345 (54.703.842)
Professional tax 52,588,565 64,537.937 62,501,782 64,537,937 115813,517 3,869,844 3,133,853 1,390,698 234,337,731 214,336,416
VAT (value 832,818,279 185,257,092 (282,832,145} (30.641,632)  (510.763,819)  (448,953,525) (6427738)  {2,749618) 32,794,577 {577.087,683)
added tax)

Pension benefiis 17,576,038 16,972,560 - - - - - - 17,576,034 18,972,360
payable .

Occupational 1,750,854 1,662,227 - - - - - - 1,750,854. 1,662,227
hazard henefit: .

payable
‘Bounged 11;255,403 11,255,403 - - - - - - 11,255,403 11,255,403
pension benefits

retumed unpaid
‘Qceupational {527.535) - - - - - - - (327539 -
hazard benefits

vefurned unpaid,

Dues under the 29464603 13,879,445 - - - - B - 28,464,603 13,879,445
CPGEL

framework

Repatriated 115,666,063 132,564,580 - - . . - - 115,666,963 132,564,580
contributions .

frarm former

Burundi staft

Electricity 1,089,623 - - - - - . . 1,089,623 .
advances-to

tenanis

Contributions 12,632,117 17.247,510. 15195747 17,035,639 31769328 20949505 1,110,201 505410 60,707,393 55,738,364
payable - Social ’ ]
Security

Rwanda

RAMA 16.824.361 23,485,969 21,166,524 23485968 47213686 29,559,653 1,736,905 772,072 86,941 576 77,303,662
contribitions . . . .
@wuﬁv_n
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Coniributioris
‘payable —
‘Maternity lzave:

C:&n::.m.nn
payments

Other

miscelianeois
creditors
Miscellaneous
credilors -
personnel

Arrears CBHI
Inater-scheme
créditors*
Inter-scheine
loan payables*

C(rther acerued
cxpenses

Pension Medieal CBHI ‘Maternity léave Total
2019 2018 2619 2018 2019 208’ 2019 2018 2019 2m8-
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
787,664 1,128,507 994,944 1,128,507 2,380,077 1,467 050 82910 37,619 4145595 3761693
403,635,416 409,880,415 (116,674) (116,674} - ; {12,034} - 403,506,708 409,763,741
'2,959,346,209 1,984,758 447 1.098,600,911 313,098,946 6944909820 3937415937 26,480,684 2,121,721 11,029,337.624 6.237.395.051
: i - 1 - @ - : . .
. - “ - 1296315677 760,369,008 . - 1,296,315,677 760,369,008
3,096,606,998 3,096,606.998 29.823,500° 29823500 1,191,669,003  1,191,669003 - - 4,318,099 501 4,318,099,501
2,109,524 461 3,796,481 322 497,160,527 407814127 3213.981,821 1,894,340069. 310396762  667:552,547 6,131,063,571 6,766,188.065
444 480,300 - - - - - - - 444,480,300 -
12,217,145 504 “11,387,149.560 2374005873 1.820836,719  16472,772:236  9.962,882824 4936137730 800342245 31,557,537,333 23,980,211,348
* Qther payables include inter-scheme ‘balances amounting to Frw 10.4 biltion which are presented separately in assets and liabilities however
these assets do not have.a material impact on the net assets at the end of the year.
100
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41, Capital

Pension Medical Total
At 1 July 2017 53,393,658 1,179,070,491 1,232,464,149
At 30 June 2018 53,393,658 1,179,070,491 1,232,464,149
At 1 July 2018 53,393,658 1,179,070,491 1,232:464,149
At 30 June 2019 | 53,393,658 1,179,070,491 1,232,464,149

Capital relates to initial capital injected by the government to facilitate Pension and Medical start-up

operations.
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42. Accumulated members funds and retained earnings

Retained mmE_smm relate to ngm:mom from the medical and pension division not converted to statutofy reserve. Accumulated members’ funds represent the surplus
on the otlier reserves of occupational Hazards. Movements in the reserve are shown on the statement of changes in equity.

AL July (A}
Adjustments to:

opening balances

(B)

Allotment of net
Jincome forthe
year'to reserves
Net income for
the year {1y
Allotment of net
income for the
yearfo statutory
‘reserves and fair
value reserve (2)
Net income for
year after
allotment
(C=142)

Government
subsidy (D)*
At30June
(D=A+B-+C+D)

‘Pension Medical CBHI Maternity leave Total
2019 2018 2009 2018. 2019 2018 2019 2018 2619 2018
Frw Frie Frw o Frw . Frw . Frw Frw . Frw N Trw
295353431757 266982,642.404  232.905792.344 205560903030  (22.693.362,304)  (13,405486.714)  B,081,135,890 2,878953.164  S13646,007,187  462,017,011,884
7 6 1 72 - (37) (15) 21 (6} 0
100212,161,973  114,017,318,222 30,777,918.298 30635995742 {19213,030,708)  (17,670376714)  5.192489.774 520,182,747  116969,539337  132,185,119.997
(69.038,394,588)  (85,646,528.875) (1.965.564,510) (3.291,106,500) . - - - (71,003,959:098)  (88,937,635,375)
31,173,767.385 28,370,789,347 28,812,353,788 27344389242 {19,213,030,708)  (17,670,376,714)  5,192.489.774  5202,(82,747 45,965,580,239 43247,484,622
- - - - 21,246,578,580 8,382,500,681 - - 21,246,578,580 8,382,500.681
326.527,199,150  205353.431.757  26L718,146,133 232905792344 (20,659814932)  (22.693,362.804) 13,373,625,649 S8081,135890  580,859,156,000  513,646997,187

* The Government subsidy for CBHI scheme is Frw 21,246,578,580 for prior financial years and Frw 5,000,000,000 for the current financial year ended 30 June.

2019.
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43, Revaluation reserve

The revaluation surplus represents ‘the surplus;on the revaluation of land and. buildings and is non-
distributable Movements in the reserve are shown on the statement of changes:in.equity

At 1 July 2017
At 30 June 2018

At 1 July 2018
At 30 June 2019

Pension Medical Total
Frw Frw Frw
253,735,415, 4.251,952,194 4,505,687,609
253,735,415 4,251,952,194 4,505,687,609
253,735,415 4,251,952,194 4,505,687,609
253,735,415 4,251,952,194 4,505,687,609

44. Fair value réserve

The fair value reserve represents the surplus on the revaluation of available-for-sale: ‘equity
investments and is non-distributablé Movements in the reserve are shown on the statement .of changes
in equity The revaluation has no deferred tax impact as RSSB is tax exempt by law.

Pension: Medical Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Frw Frw Trw Frw Frw Frw
AtLluly (4) 7292880330  (15273493844) 10410098379  7.118991879 17702078709  (8.154,501,965)
Allotment of 2.768370,125) 22566374174 L96S564510  3.291106500  (802.805,615)  25.857.480.674
riet income for
the year -
gain/(loss}
arising from
changes in fair
valies of quity
mvestments
A€30 Sune 4,524.510.205 7293880330 12375662889 10,410,098,379  16,000,173.094  17,702.978,709
(D=A+B+C) '

45. Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves are set out by decree law of 22 August 1974 concerning organisation of Social
Security. .Article 15 of the Law stipulates that the National Social Security Institutions provide the
following reserves for both the occupational hazards and pensions branches;

a) Pension. Working Capital reserve is equivalent to a quarter of the total expenses of the
pension’s branch previous year

b) Pension Technical reserve should not be lower than the total expensés of the branch for the
last three years

c) Occupational Hazards Technical reserve must be equal to twelve times the fotal amount of
occupational hazards paid during the year

d) Occupational Hazards Security resetve is équal to a qilarter of the expenses incurred during
the last three vears: '

e) Qccupational Hazards Working capital reserve should be equal to a quarter-of the expenses of

the previous vear.
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Statutory reserves as at the end of the year were as follows:

Sub note. 2019 2018
. Frw: Frw
Occipational hazard réserve -technical 43.1 47,280,849,684 35,051,796,252
Occupational hazard resérve =Security 45.2 6,376,539,153 5,879,544,998
Oceupational hazard reserve- Working capital 45.3 2,241,995,801 12,023,232,028
Sub-total (1) 55,899,384,638. 42,954,573,278
Pension reseive- technical 45.4 436,622,794,968 38-2?-926_,4'08;,798
Pension. reserve- working capital 45.5 24.064,036,472 18,898,469,289
Sub-total (2) 460,686,831,440 401,824,878,087
Grand total 516,586,216,078. 444,779,451,365 _
45.1. Occupational hazard reserve -technical
Sub note 2019 2018
Frw Frw
At July (A) 35,051,796,252 24,551,135,208
Allotment of net income for the year (B) 45.1 (a} 12,229,053,432 10,500,661,044
At 30 June {C=A+B) 47,280,849,684 35,051,796,252
45,1 (a) Recongciliation of allotment of net'income for the year to reserve
Allotment for the yeai ended 30 June 2019 Amount (Frw)
Occupationa) hazard benefit paid during the year (A) [See note 10.1] 1,0 _1:9.=0.37:786
Allocation of net income to Occ¢upational hazard technical reserve (Bx12) 12,229,053,432
Allotment for the year-ended 30 June 2018 Amount (Frw)
Occupational hazard benefit paid during the year [See note-10.1] 875,055,087
Allocation of net income to Occupational hazard technical reserve (Bx12) 10,500,661,044
45.2. Occupational hazard reserve -Security
‘Sub note 2019 2018
Frw Frw
At 1 July (A) 5879544998 5,475,503,136
Allotment of net income for the year (B) 45.2 (d) 496,994,155 404,041,862
At30 June (C=A+E) 6,376,539,153.  5,879,544,998
45,2 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve
‘Allotment for the yesr ended 30 June.2019: Amount (frw):
Total occupational hazard benefits éxpense 2016 488,988,617
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2017 623,932:914
‘Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2018 [see note 10. 11 875,035,087
Total oceupational hazards benefit expenses paid in the last three years (A) 1,987,976,618
Allocation of net income of pension scheme to reserve (C=Ax25%) 496,994,155

Allotment for the year ended 30 June 2018

Amount (frw)
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Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2013 503,245,916
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2016 488,988,617
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2017 [se¢ note 10.1]° 623,932,914
Total eccupational hazards benefit expenses paid in the last three years:(A) 1,616,167,447
Allocstion of net income of pension.scheme to reserve (C=Ax25%) 404,041,862
45.3. Occupational hazard reserve- Working capital
Sub-note 2019 2018
Frw Frw
At 1 July (A) 2,023,232,028 1,867,248,800
Allotment of net income during:the year (B) 45.3 (a) 218,763,773 155,983,228
At30 Juné (C=A+B) 2,341,995,801 2,023.232,028
453 (2) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reseive
Allotment for the year-ended 30 June 2019 Amount (Frw)
Total o¢cupationdl hazard benefits expense 2018 (Frw) (A)[see note 10.1] 875,055,087
Alilocation of net income of pension:scheme te reserve (Frw) (B=Ax25%) 218,763,773
Allotment for the year ended 30 June 2018 Amourit (Frw)
Total otcupational hazard berefits expense 2017 (Frw) (A). 623,932,914
Allocation of net income of pension scheme to reserve (Frw) (B=Ax25%) 155,983,228
45.4. Pension reserve- technical
Sub- note 20]9 ) 0]8
Frw - Frw
At.1 July (A) 382,926,408,798 335,289,629,213
Allotment of net income for the year (B) 454 () 53,696,386,170  _ 47,636,779,585
At 30 June (C=A+B) _436,622,794,968 _382,926.408,798
45.4 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year
Allotment of net income for the year ended 30 June 2019 Amount (Frw)
‘Total pension benefits paid 2016 15,503,361,515
Total pension benefits paid 2017 17,530,755,920
Total pension benefits paid 2018[seé note 10.1] 20,662,268,735
Total benefits expense for the fast three years (A) 53,696,386,170
A_Ilo_c_ati_'on of net income to pension technical reserve {B=A) £3,696,386,170
Allotment of net ingome.‘-fdr the year ended 30 June 2018 Amount (Frw)
Total pension benefits paid 2015 14,602,662,150
Total pension benefits paid 2016 15,503,361,515
Total pension benefits paid 2017[see note 10.1] 17,530,755,920
Total benefits expense for the-last three years (A) 47,636,779,585
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Allocation of net income to pension technical reserve (B=A) 47,636,779,585
45.5. Pension reserve- working capital
Sub- Note 2019 2018
Frw Frw
At 1 July (A) 18,898,469,289 14,515,780,308
Allotment of net income for the year (B) 454 (a) 5,165,567,183 4,382,688,981
At 30 June (C=A+B) 24,064,036,472 18,898,469,2589
45.5 (a) Reconciliation of allecation of net income for the year to reserve
Allotment of net income for the year ended 30 June 2019 Amount (Frw)
Benefits paid to pensioners in. 2018 (A) 20,662,268,735
Allocation of net income to Pension working capital reserve for the year (B=A*25% '5,165,567,183
Al[otment.af net income for the year ended 30 June 2018 -Amount (Frw)
‘Benefits paid to pensioners in2017 (&) [see note 10.1] 17,530,753,920
Allgcation of net incomie to Pension working capital reserve for the year (B=A*25% 4,382,688,981

46. Contingent liabilities

The. Board is a liti gant in various cases for breach of contract arising in the normal course of business.
The directors are of the view that the Board has high chances of success against the plaintiffs and.
none of the cases individually or in aggregate would have a significant impact on the Board’s-
operation The directors are confident that the Board shall receive favourable ruling from the
outstanding cases Information on these cases has.not been disclosed as the directors ‘consider that the.
disclosure-of the information could prejudice the Board®s position. The cases in which the Board is a.
litigant- majorly relate to alleged breach of contracts that the Board entered into and members suing
for their unsettled benefit claims.

Othier than the liability to pay futare pensions and other benefits, there were rio contingent liabilities
of the Board at 30 June 2019.

47. Related parties

The Rwanda Social Security Board- operates under the Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning

(MINECOFIN) In accordarice with Law: No 45 of 2010 establishing the Rwanda Social Security

Board and deterrnlmng its mission, .organization. and functioning, the Prime Minister appoints the:

directors to the Board of RSSB. RSSB censiders the Government of Rwanda (“GoR”) to be in a

position to exercise significant influence over it, and therefore regards GoR and-several of its bodies

as related parties for the purpose of the' disclosures reqmred by IAS 24 (2009) Related Parties

Diselosures

RSSB has elected to adopt the exemption available in paragraph 25 of IAS 24, and-therefore has not

provided detailed disclosure of its transactions with GoR -and its agencies..A summary of the Board’s

transactions with the GoR and its bodies is included below:

»  RSSB issued bonds to the Government of Rwanda {through the Ministry of Finance and
Economic- Planning) which as at 30 June 2019 had been. fully extinguished as reflected in note.
27 tothe financial statéments:

»  RSSB advanced amounts to the City of Kigali, Ministry of Infrastructure and Ministry of
Finance and Economic' Planning. Details of theése advances are reflected note 32 io ‘these
financial statements.

e RSSB in the normal course of its.investment and treasury operations during the year purchasés
treasury bonds and bills as reflected in notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements. RSSB also

ing-
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places term deposits and operates current bank accounts with the following institutions which

are related parties;

- National Bank of Rwanda (BNR) wilich is the central bank of Rwanda.

- Rwanda Development Bank (BRD) - RSSB held 44.98% of ordinary shares i BRD as at 30
June 2019.

- Bank of Kigali ~ RSSB held 33.78% of ordinary shares in BRI as at 30 June 2019.

- Zigama CSS ~ is a credit and savings bank under the Ministry of Defence (MINADEF).

Details of these are reflected:in notes 38 and 39 to these financial statements.

‘The transactions described above are both collectively and individuaily significant to-the financial
‘statements.

48. Actuarial valuation
a) Pension scheme
Background and purpose of the actuarial valuation

The purpose of an actuatial valuation isto review the long-term financial sustamablllty of a pension

sscheme, RSSB therefore commissioned Callund Consulting Limited of the UK (“CCL™), Ruparelia

Consultants Limited of Kenya (“RCL”) and Liaison Rwanda Limited of Rwanda (“Liaison™), ‘together
refeired to as CCL-RCL-Liaison to perform an actuatial valuation as at 30 June 2016 of the RSSB

pension:& occupational hazard schemes.

The actuarial valuation reviewed the following:

'« Membeiship profile and how this is likely to change over the next 50 years from the valuation

date, i.e. over the period 2016-2017 to 2065-2066; for

» Contribution Rate required to balance contribution income-and expenditure (khown as ‘Breakeven
Contribution Rate’)

» Fundin g position at the valuation date

Membership profile and how this is likely to change over the next 50 years

e Active members are those members who are currently confributirig

e Deferred members have contributed, but are not currently, and have not yét reached retirement
* Pensioner members have retired and are receiving benefit

As at 30 June 2016, there were a relatively small number of pensioner members (around 35 000)
compared to the number of active. members (around 450,000} at the valuation date and so there was a
low dependency ratio. This dependency ratio is set to change as more people retire, and so the
dependency ratio will start to increasé. and then- stabilize: at around .20% reflecting the Scheme
maturitig over the projection period.

The contribution rate required to balance contribution income and expenditure
The contributions fates as 4t 30 June 2016 were as follows:

- 2%:occupational hazard (payable by employer)

- 3%: pension branch (payable by employer)

- 3%: pension branch (payable by employee)

As at 30 June 2016, there was enough money to pay pens'ion beriefits from the contributions RSSB
receives. This is because there were proportionally few pensioners. However as more people retire the

contributions coming into RSSB will not be sufficient to pay benefits-and so assets will need fo be.
sold. Findings revealed that- after around 46 years, RSSB will need to-start selling assets in order to:

‘pay. benefits.
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The coniribution level of 6% to the pens;on branch as at 30 Jurie 2016 did not cover the benefits:
provided. It had been estimated that pension branch will become exhausted/insolvent by 2062 if the.
assumptions are born out in practice RSSB therefore must take measures fo ensure sustdinability of
the scheme.

The occupational hazard branch had been pro;ected to remain solvent through the 50-year projection
period. The:overall or combined fund remains solvent through the projection period..

Funding position at the valuation date

The fuiiding position provides a measure of the degree to which the current assets at the valuation date
can be expected to: be sufficientto meet the benefit liabilities of members present in the Scheme at the.
valuation date-and their service up to that date.

For the scheme to be fully funded where the funding position is 100%, additional contributions would
be required from employees, employers or government

Summary of scheme funding position at the valuation date:
& Pension branch stands at 41.1%

¢  Qccupational hazard branch stands at 1,100.9%

»  Scheme overall stands at 54.1%

A funding level of under 100% means that current pensioners are relying on future generations to pay
for their benefits above the pre-funded.level. These figures have been determined by dividing the net
assets by the present value of the benefits promised at the valuation date. The present value of benefits.
has been calculated by discounting projected expenditure in respect of accrued benefits over- the 50-
year projection period based on projected salaries.

The principal actuarial assumptions used wereas follows:

[Factor : :Prmclpal Assumption N
' 9.0% p.a. for the first year followmg the valuation date; 7.0% p.a. for the
|Price inflation isecond year; 5.0% p.a. for the third year; and remaining at 5.0% p.a. for the

remainder.of the projéction period,

110.0% p.a. for the first vear; 8.0% p.a. for the second year 6. 0% p.a. for the
third year; and remaining at 6.0% p.a. for the remainder of the projection
-perlod This is equivalent to.the price inflation-assumption plus a 1.0% p.a.
margin.

{Earnings inflation

11.0% p.a. for the first year; 9 0% p.a. . for the second year; 7.0% p.a. for the
[Investment Ithird year;-and remaining at 7.0% p.a. for the remainder of the projection
return/Discount rate. period. This is equivalent to the price inflation assumption plus 4 2.0% p.a.
margin.

~ IIncrease at 10.0% in the first year reducmg to-a long-term assumptlon of
Labour Market 2.5% p-a, over a 10-year period; and continuing at 2.5% p.a. for the
remainder of the projection:period.

Based on the ‘Rwanda Mortality Table; 2012-2016° with an allowance: for
future-annual improvements of 1.25% for males and 1 .5% for females.

Mortality Assumptions

Pe‘nsion in_cre.ase's_ No allowance
' ' TTo be incurred ata rate of 10% of contribution income during the projection
period-assumed to be finded. in future each year

Expenses

Valuation methodology and assumptions

The future financial status of the Board was determined basing on many demographic, economic and
program specific factors Assumptions were developed for the specific demographic and economic
factors based on analysis of historical and projected data obtained from various credible sources such
as the National Institute of Stafistics Rwanda, The International Monetary fund, the World Health
orgariization and the Board’s department of Planning, Research and Statistics.
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Demographic assumptions made covered the following; mortality rates, disability rates, future new
members to the Board and members’ composition i.e. male — female, dependency ratios, age etc.

Economic assumptions made considered inflation rates, salary increments, and investment return
rates. The program specific assumptions included; retitement rates, minimum monthfy pensions and
temporal and permanent disability rates. The above assumptions were fed into the valuation model to
calculate the short and long term.estimates.

Recognition of the actuarial results

The board runs a state plan as defined in Intémational Accounting. Standard (IAS) 19, ie. it is
established by legislation to cover all entities and is operated by national or local government or by
another body, The Board is sponsored by the Government of Rwanda. through the Ministry of
Finance and Economic Planning (MINECOFIN). The Government of Rwanda then would make

good any deficits that the board would have at any point in time Accordiing to 1AS 19, results of the

actuarial valnation of such. entities should only be recognised in the records of the sponisoring-

organisation only and this is why the results liave not been recognised in the financial statements of

the board.
b) Medical scheme

The purpose of the actuarial valuation was to review the short term financial sustainability of a
medical scheme. RSSB therefore commissioned Muhanna & co Actuaries & consultants to perform
an actuarial valuation as at 30: June 2016 of its Medical Benefit Insurance Scheme.

The scope of work of the study was as follows:

. Produce a comprehensive actuarial valuation report including 1AS 26 disclosures of the medical
benefit insurance scheme.

' Examine the feasibility of health care provision to pensien retirees who eithet receive a pension
from RSSB, or who received a lump sum payment on retirement.

. Provide advice on improving/increasing medical benefit coverage within Rwanda whilst
protecting the scheme from anti-selection.

- Provide.advice on how to deal with increasing medical benefits costs,

Based on data provided and assumptions made for the base scenario, the study was:carried out and the.
demographic and cash flows projection of the fund for the next 75 years, i.e. until the. fiscal year

2090-91.

The financial position of the fund was examined using different conttibution rates, -as defined by the
following methods of funding:

»  Pay-as-you-go method
® General average premium method (GAP)

Under the Pay-as-you-go (PAYG) method, the. contribution. income in €ach year exa&:tly-(.or almost

exactly) equals.benefit expenditure iri same yedr-and the contribution rate varies each year.

Under the general average premium (GAP) method;. the contribution rate is equal to the present value

of the benefit expenditure (minus the Net Assets of the Fund as .at the Valuation Date) over the

present value of future contributory salaries. This method results in. a stable contribution rate, if

‘assumptions are borne out in practice.
The results of the base scenario: were also tested under alternative: scenarios that involve. the
‘provisions of the Scheme.

These scenarios concerned mainly extending the coverage to include all RSSB pensioners and lump

suim benefiting retirees, and covering medical treatment abroad for procedures which are not available
in Rwanda as follows:

s Extension of post-retirement medical coverage
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The feasibility of providing healthcare provision to all RSSB’s pension retirees as well as RSSB’s
retirees who received a lump sum payment upon retirement was examined. The result showed that it is
not a viable option for the scheme to extend the medical coverage to include all RSSB pensioners and
retiring members who benefited from lump sums.

e Maedical treatment abroad

The feasibility of providing medical treatment abroad was not ¢overed in the report dué to lack of data-
at the time. |

+ Privatization of the RSSB’s Pharmacies

The policy to privatize RSSB’s pharmacies would have an impact on the net pharmacy sales which
were the net of the revénues from. pharmacy sales and the pharmaceutlcal inventory expensed. The net
pharmacy sales were considered as an additional source of inceme (to-the contribution. income) and
in case of prlvatlzatlon they were expected to decrease gradually across the years.

¢ Scheme’s Current Contribution Rates

The Scheme’s contribution rates-amounted to 15% of the employee’s basic monthly salary while the
base scenario showed that if ‘we project for a period of 75 years, the contribution rate required under
the GAP funding methiod would be 16.31% (Active members-and their dependents 10.48%, Retirees
and their spouses 5.83%)

This indicated that the benefits package should not be further enhanced but instead there was a need to
implement structural chariges and reforms in order to improve the financial sustainability of the. fund.
The most prominent strategy is to implement mechanisms for controlling costs.

As part of the valuation report, the actuarial valuation experts provided a number of
recommendations-to: RSSB as follows:

= Enhancementsin data structure of Medical scheme

The data received from RSSB contained some gaps and problems. A list'of few recommendations and
general measures was provided in order improve the-quality of its medical Insurance Benefits schemie
data.

» Splitting Fund into two/Creating two Sub-Funds

The: RSSB medical benefit insurance fund should be'. spht into .two: a fund: earmarked for active
members and their dependents and another fund earmarked for the retirees and their spouses.

= Freezing RSSB’s benefits for three years

Since the ¢laims experience of RSSB’s Medical scheme: is relatively very short (Claims data extend

from April till June 2012), it was recommended that RSSB freeze all its medical benefits for at least.3
years, so-that the next _ac_tuarl_al 'valuation can compare the results then-on the same basis.

* ‘Minimum Contribution Salary of Private Sector: Employees-

RSSB currently requires that émployees joining from private sector institutions ¢ontribute a minimuim
of FRW 2,000 per month for each beneficiary registered under their membership (including the
member him/herself) Howéver, by asking the private sector employees to pay a minimum’
contribution on behalf of each beneficiary registered urider their membership would incite these
employees to declare the lowest possible number of dependents, but even worse to only declare about.
dependerits with high healtlicare risks This would cause an adverse selection in the dependents of
private sector employees

As an alternative fo the minimum contribution per beneficiary we suggest setting a ‘minimum
contributory salary for private sector employees. The. analysis showed that the minimum contributory:
salary should be FRW- 3,000 per month for each beneficiary.

The minimum contributory salary that we suggest to set for members from private institutions
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should be FRW.65,000 per month. This represents 50% of the average basic salary of the Scheme

49. Events afterthe reporting period

Subsequent to the year end of 30 June 2019, the following events have occirred;

New CBHI funding sources

On 13" February 2020, Prime minister’s order- N° 034/01 related to CBHI subsidies was enacted. The
law lays.out new sources of funding required towards closing the CBHI funding gap. The new sources
are as follows:

A. Goveramerit subsidies in form of:

1.

10.
11.

12,

13.

ol e N

Six billion Rwandan francs (FRW 6,000,000,000) as annual budget allocation paid by the
Ministry in charge of finance; '

Three thousand Rwandan francs (FRW 3,000) per annum for each ne_edy._pers_'on in category one
of Ubudehe paid-by the Ministry in charge of finance;

Fifty percent (50%) of registration fees. for pharmaceutical products and medical devices paid by
the Ministry. in charge of health;

One hundred percent (100%) of thie amourit collected as medical research fees paid by the
Ministry in charge of health;

Ten percent (10%) of fees charged on. setvices offered to: gaming companies paid by the Ministry

/in.charge of trade;-

Fifty percent {50%) of fees collected for motor vehiclé mechanical inspection paid by Rwanda
National Police;

Ten percent (10%) of fees collected from road traffic fines paid by Rwanda ‘National Police;

A hundred percent (100%) of the amount collected as-penaliies for trade of substandard products

paid by the public institution in charge of standards;

Orte hundred Rwandan Francs (FRW100) from parking fee levied on vehicles for each hour of

parking, paid by the City of Kigali;
Zero point five percent (0.5%) of the net salary of the employee, paid by the-employer;

Tenpercent (10%) of tourism revenues shared to benefi iciary Districts; paid by Rwanda
Development Board (RDB);

Twenty thousand Rwandan francs (FRW 20,000) levied for transfer of ownership on cars and ten
thousand Rwandan Francs (FRW 10,000) levied for transfer of ownership on motorcycles, paid

'by Rwanda Revenue Authority;

Four thousand Rwandan Francs (FRW 4,000) per hectare of marshland, five thousands Rwandan

‘Franes (FRW 5,000) per hectare of hillside and two thousands Rwandan francs (FRW 2,000) per

hectare of radical terraces, paid by beneficiary District.
Subsidies from health insiurance entities in form of}

5% of annual contributions collected in the health insurance category and;

-Foréntities that are subsidiaries Ofpublic institutions 10% of annual coiitributions collected.

Subsidies from telecommunication companies in form of}

2.5% of annual turnover for the first and second year after publication of the PM’s order in the

Official Gazette of the Republic of Rwanda and,

3% of annual turnover in the third-and subsequent years after publication of the PM’s.order in the:

Official Gazette of the Republic of Rwanda.

Subsidies from fuel trade companies in form of twenty Rwarnidan francs (FRW 20) per liter
sold.

11



RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

'50. Finaacial risk management

The Board has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

o Market risk,

o Liquidity risk,

o Creditrisk, and

«  Capital management risk
Included below is information about the Board’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Board’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing the risks and the Board’s management
of capital.

‘Risk management framework

The Board’s Board-of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Board’s risk management framework. The Board has established an Audit and Risk Committee, and
the Risk Department; which are responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management
policies in their specified areas. All Board committees have non-executive members and report.
regularly to the Board of Directors on their activities.

The Board’s risk management pollcles are establistied to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Board, to set.appropriate risk limits and controls, ‘and to monitor risks afid adherence to limits, Risk
management pol|01es and systems -are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Board through its training and. management standards. and
procedures, aims to--develop a ‘disciplined and constructive control environment, in whlch all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board’s Audit and Risk- Committe¢ is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Board’s
risk management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management'
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Board. The Audit and Risk Committee is assisted in
these functions by Internal Audit and Risk funetions.

Internal Audit undertakes both regular and. ad hoc reviews of risk management controls- and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee-

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as investment prices, interest rates and
foreign exchange rates will affect the Board’s iricome or the value of its. holdings of financial
instruments: The objective of market risk management is to manage arid control market risk exposures
within the acceptable parameters, while optimising the return-on investment.

Management of market risks

Market risk arises from a decrease in the market value of a portfolio of financial instruments caused
by adverse-movements in the market variables such as equity, bonds. and property prices, currency
exchange rates and interestrates,

The Board grants authority to take on market risk exposure to the Management Investrhent Committee:
(MIC). This committeec manages this risk through the guidelines 'set out in-the Board’s investment
leIG}_{_

Equity pfi’ce risk

The Board ‘is exposed to equity securities price risk through its investments in quoted and unquoted
shares. The Board’s Investment committee diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is:
done in accordance with the guidelines set.out in the Board’s investment policy. All'shares held by the
Board are either quoted on Rwanda Stock Exchangg and Nairobi Securities Exchanges or unquoted.
The table below shows the effect of share price- sensitivity on the- surplus. for the year based o the
share price volatility-as at 30 June 2019;

i1z
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Financial asset description. Change in Effect on Effect on

share price % surpius surplus

Pension Medical

2019 201¢%

Frw Frw

Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss +-8% 7,857,736,700 268,141,280

2018 2018

Frw Erw

Equity investments at fair value through profit or 1oss +/-8% 25,116,231,474  3,177,385,388
Property price risk

The Board is exposed to property price risk through its investments in real estate properties. The
Board’s Investment. committee: diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in
accordance with the guidelines set .out in the. Board’s investment policy. The Board has not
undertaken a valuation of its investment property and therefore the effect of the property ptice risk
cannot be. reliably determined as at 30 June 2019. The Tast valuation of the Board’s investment:
property was undertaken in 2012, In addition, there is no active market for majority -of the Board’s
investment properties.

Currency risk:

The Board is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies. The Board
transactional exposures give rise to foreign currency gains and losses that are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income. In respect of monetary assets and liabilities in forei gn currencies;
the Board ensures that its net exposure is kept to an accepiable leve] by matching foreign currency.
assets to liabilities Wheii considered appropriate. Monitoring of foreign currency fluctuations is done
through the Investment Comimittee.

The Board -operates wholly within Rwanda and its -assets and liabilities- are reportéd in Rwanda
Francs, although it maintains some of its assets and trades with banks in foreign currencies.
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Currency risk

The Board had the following currency positions as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018.

30-Jun-12

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Deposits with financfal
institutions

Treasury bonds
Treasury .w:_m
Commercial papers
Mortgage foans

Loans and advances to
third parties:

Dividend receivabie
Advances to confractors
Other assets

Equity investments
Total financial assets {A)

Financial liabilities
Retentions o construction.
contracts

Medical and maternity
leave benefits payable
‘Other payables:

Total financial lizbilities

B)

Net financial assets (A-B)

Pension Medical Pension Pension Medical CBHI Maternity Totsgl
: B Leave .
Usb Kshs. Frw Frw: Frw Frw Frw
5.006,102:284  7,510,514.712 48,949 33,253,783.049 22367218215 6,506.947.307  10,012,737,184 84,657.351,700
. - 11,003,659:452  118,756,711,336  101,531,202,883 - - 231,301,573,671
- - - 81,739,355,258 6,702.661,429 - - 88,442,016,687
: - - 76,108.492,910 40,286,278,145 - 3828868134  120,223,639,189
- - - 16,145,013,966 ; = - 16,145,013,966
. - - 146,536,580. - - - 146,536,580
- - . 5935605982 35,323,037.943 - . 41,258,643.925
- - - 4,488,574,825 94,284,845 - - 4,582.859,670
- - - '9,194,995,837 2,380,000 6:600:000 240,000 9.204,715.837
- - - 5,193,975,017 7.957,855,548 2,974,038,164 201,571,623 16,327:440,352
85.546.754.956  14,938,948,900  4,393,660,895.  284,037,059368  27,090,177,758 - - 416,006,601,877
90,552,857,240  22,449,463,612  15407,369,296  635,003,993,547  241,355,596,766 9,487.585471  14,043,416,941  1,028,296,393;454
- - - 572,284,214 59,183,315 - - 631.467,529
- - - - 5.367.117,082 14,199,193,773 293,835,463 19.860,146,318
- - - 12,217,145,504 2,374,005.873 16:472,772,226 493,613,730 31,557,537.333
0 0 0 12,789,429,718 7,800,306,270  30,671,965,999 787,449,193 52,049,151,180
90,552,857,240  22,449,463,612  15407,369,296  622,259,150.523  233,555,200,496  (21,184,380.528)  13,255.967.748  976,222,399.912.
g ¢ ¢ - 5 [ ¢ P _ P . P
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Pension Medical ‘Pension Pension Medical CBHI Maternity Total
. . Leave
Usp USD Kshs Frw Frw Frw Frw Erw

30-Jun-19
Foreign currency 90552857240 22449463612 15407369206 - - - - 128409.690,148
exposure at 30 June 2019 s ; .

Pénsion Medical Pension Penision Medical CBHL  Maternity Leave “Total
30-Jun-18 usp UsD Kshs Frw Frw Frw Frw : Frw
E:n.:&m_.uwmna .
Cash and bank balances  19,153.438,685 7.050,569,279 - 46,139,974,276 39,687.785,412 2.002,091,212, 6,733.353,394  120,787.212,258
Deposits with ; - 9932752370 130,611.650.067  93.039.122.306 ] . 033,583,524.743
commercial hanks * o .
Equity investments 34,746,797.425  12,962,785,355 - 259,206,095,997 26,754,531,9%0 - - 353,670.210.767
Total financial assets 73.900,236,110  20,013,384,634 9932752370  435957,720,340  159,481,439,708  2,002,091,212 6,753.353,394  708,040.947,768
Foreign currency o - . ) o
exposure at 30 June 73,900,236,110  20,013,354,634 9.932,752,370 - - - - 103,846,343,114

2018

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Board had significant exposure at 30 June on its non-trading monetary assets and liabilities and its
forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the efféct of a reasonably possible: movement of the currency rate against the Rwanda Francs, with all other
variables held constant, on the statement of comprehensive income (due to the fair value of currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities), A
negative amount in the table reflécts a voﬁ:.:m_ net reduction in the statement of comprehensive income and equity, while a _uom;:ﬁ amount reflects a net
potential increase. An equivalent decrease:in each of the below currencies against the Rwanda Francs would have resulted in an, equivalent but. opposite

impact.
______________ _Pension Medical
C Change in ¢urrency rate Effect on net | Change in curvency Efféct oi net income
Hrrency ’ : : Y . . - N . b
. in % income for the year ratein % for the year:
_________ 2019 2019 2019 2019
..... . i FTW . Friv
Usb +/-8% 7,244,228,579 8% 1,795,957,089.
| KES 8% 1,232,589,544 +/-8% -
1t5
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Pension

Medical

Currency

Change in currency rate
in %

Effect on net

incoiie for the year

Changéin currency ;| Effect on net income

rate.in %

for the year

2018

2018

2018

Frw {

2018
Frw

+-8%

5,912,018,889

. .,Irwﬁ..v\o

1,601,068371

+-8% -

794,620,190

+-8%

The-following-exchange rates applied during the year:

Avera

e rate

Reporting date spot rate .

3018

2019 2018

Ncuw
JFrw

Frw .

Frw .. Frw

UsD

879 :

w8 s

KES

8.7 | 8.2 |

9.1 9
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dnterest rate risk

In broad terms, interest rate risk is the risk that concerns the. mmzm:_SQ of the: Board’s financial performance to changes in interest rates, The Board’s
operations are mze._onﬁ to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities mature or re- -price at
different times or in &m.n_._zm amounts. m_mw management activities are m:dmm at optimizing net interest income, given market interest rates levels consistent

with the Board’s business:strategies.

The Board does not account for any fixed rate or variable rate financial assets at-fair-value through profit or loss, Therefore a change in interest rate at the
statement of financial position date will not affect the Board’s surplus.or deficit but would change the future tn..mo::mzna of the Board. In addition, theére aré.
iio firiancial assets held at'variable interest rates.

The ‘tables below summarizes the exposure to interest rate risk per scheme. Included in the table are the Board’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorized by the earlier of contractual re- -pricing dates and the maturity dates. All balances are in Frw.

Pension scheme

Non-Interést.

Average rate Matared <3 months 3-12 months’ > 1 year beating "Total
Frw ‘Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
2019
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 5% - 38,256,841,927 - - 3,092,355  38,259,934,282.
Deposits with commercial banks 10% - 17,303,177.880 76,927,399,595 35,539,793,313 - 129,770,370,788
Treasury bonds 12% - 6,538,605,018 _ - 75,200,750,240, - 81,739,355,258
,_,_Rmm.c...w bills 7% - 12,333,264,628  63,775,228.282 - - 76,108,492,910
.Cominercial papers 11%. - - 16,145,013,966. - - 16,145013,966
Morigage Joans 12% - - - 146,536,580 - 146,536,580
Loans and advances to third parties 0% - - - - 5,935,605,982 m_,.wwm.“mo.m..bmm.
Dividend receivable 0% - - - - 9,194,995 837 9,194,995.837
Advances to contractors 0% - - - - 4,488,574.825  4,488,574,825
Other financial assets 0% s B - - 5193875017  5,193.975,017
Total financial assets (A) - 74,431,889,453 . 156,847,641,843 110,887,080,133 24,816,244,016 366,982,855,445
Retentions on construction contracts 0% - - - - 572,284,214 572,284,214
Medical and maternity léave benefits. 0% - - - - - _ -
117
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“payable
QOther payables
Total financial liabilities (B)

Net financial assets (A-B)

_:ﬁn_..mw..a rate exposure as at.30 June
2019

2018

Financial assets

Cash-and bank balances
Deposits with commercial banks
Government of Rwanda Development
bond

Corporate bonds

“Freasury bonds,

Treasury bills

Commercial papéers

Mortgage loans

Total

Interest rate exposure as at 30 June:
2018

Non-Enterest

Average rate Matured <3 months 3-12 months >1 year e Tatal
. bearing
Frw Frw Frw. Frw Frw Frw
0% - - - - _12,217,145,504  12,217,145,504
- - - 12,789,429,718  12,789,429,718
- 74431,889.453  156,847,641,843 110,887,080,133 12,026,814,298 354,193,425,727
- 74,431,889,453 156,847,641,843 110,887,080,133 -~ 342,166,611,420.
Average rate Matured <3 months :3-12 months >1 year .Zoul._z.,.m.w.ﬁn. Total
bearing

Frw Fiw Frw Frw Frw Frw
5% 64,968,671,741 415,630,938  65,384,302,679
10% 109,477,454,635  31,066,947,802 140,544,402,437
5% 2,401,098,014 2,401,098,014
11% 2,536,177,884 2,536,177,884.
12% 44,778,824,665 44,778,824,665
9% 6,581,526,662  34,775,600,813 41,357,127,475
11% 26,441,789,083 26,441,789,083
12% 306,012,689 306,012,689
- 71,550,198,403  170,694,844,531 81,089,061,054 415,630,938 323,749,734,926
- 71,550,198,403  170,694,844,531 81,089,061,054 - 323,334,103,988

[18
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Medical Schemie

Average rate

Assets

2019

Financial assets

‘Cashi and bank balances 5%
Deposits with commercial banks 10%
Treasury bonds 12%
Treasury bills %
Loans and advances to third parties 0%
Drividend receivable %%
Advances to contractors 0%
Other financial assets 0%
Total financial assets

Retentions on construction contracts, 0%
Medical and maternity leave benefits payable 0%
Other payables 0%

Total financial liabilities (B)

‘Net financial assets/(liabilities) (A-B)

Exposure to interest rate risk-as at 30 June.
2019

Non-Interest

Matured <3 months 3-12 moitths >1 yeéar et Total
: bearing

Frw Frw Frw Frw Frv Frew
- 29,873,827,325 - - 3,905,602 29,877,732,927

- 14,203,136,987 60.555,319,896  26,772,746.000 - 101,531,202,883

- - . 6,702.661,420 - 6.702,661,429

- 6,823,067,653  33,463,210,492 - - 40,286,278,145

- - - - 35323,037.943 35.323,037.943

- - - - 94,284,845 94,284,845

- - - - 2,880,000 2,880,000

- - - - 7.957,855,548 7.957,855,548

0 50,900,031.965  94,018530,388  33475407,429  43381963,938  221,775933,720

- - - - 59,183,315 59,183,315

- - - - 5367117082 5,367.117.082

- - » - 2,374,005.873 2,374.005:873

0 0 0 0 7,800,306,270 7,800,306,270

0 50,900,031,965 94,018,530,388 33475407429  35581,657,668  213,975,627,450

0 50,900,031,965  94,018,530,388 33475407429 - 178,393,969,782
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- - [ _ - — =




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2018

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances:
Deposits with commiercial banks
Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Total

Exposure to-interest rate risk as at-30

June 2018
CBHI scheme
2019

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Advances to confractors
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Medical and maternity leave
benefits payable

Other payables:

Total financial liabilities

Net financial assets/(liabilities)
Exposure-to interest rafe risk as
at 30 June 2019

Non-Interest

Average rate Matured <3 months 3-12 months >1 year beari Total
: earing

Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
5% 46,664,641,097 78,986,376  46,743,627473
10% - - 68,589,125,959  24,449,996,347 - 93,039,122,306
12% - - - 9,736,699,892 - 9,736,699,892
9% - - 23,966,624,602 - 23,966,624,602
- 46,664,641,007  92,555.750,561  34,186,696,239 78,986,376  173,486,074,273
- 46,664,641,097  92,555,750,561  34,186.696,239 - 173,407,087,897

o : o . 312 N ZcuLﬁ.nn@% .
Averagerate  Matured <3 months months =1 year bearing Total
Frw Frw Erw Frw Frw Fiw
5% - 6498,001,527 - - 8,945,780 6,506.947,307
0% - - - - 6,600,000 6,600,000
0%. - - - - 2,974,038,164 2,974,038,164
0 6,498,001,527 0 ] 2,989,583.944 9,487,585,471

- - - - 199,193,773 14,199,193,7
0% 14,199.193,77 199,193,773
0% - - - - 16,472,772,226 16:472,772,226
1] 0 0 ¢ 30,671,965,999 30,671,965,999
0 6498001527 0 0 (27,682,382,053)  (21,i84,380,528)
0 6498,001,527 0 L] - 6,498,001,527
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Maternity leave scheme

2019

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Treasury bills

Advances to contractors
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Medical and maternity leave benefits
payable

Other-payables.

Total financial liabilities

‘Net financial assets/(Jiabilities)

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30
June 2019

b)  Liquidity risk

Average rate

5%
9%
0%
0%

0%
0%

Non-Interest

Matured. <3 months 3-12 moniths >1 year: o Total
bearing

Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw. Frw
- 10,012,411,888 = < 325,296 10,012,737,184

- - 3,828,868,134 - - 3,828,868,134

- - - - 240,000 240,000

- - - - 201,571,623 201,571,623

0 10,012411,888  3,828,868,134 0 202,136,919 14,043,416,941

- - - - 293.835463 293,835,463

- - - - 493,613,730 493,613,730.

0 0 0 0 787,449,193 787,449,193

o 10,012,411,888  3,828,868,134 0 (585,312,274) 13,255,967,748
0 10,012,411,888  3,828,868,134 0 - 13,841,280,022.

..EQE&Q risk is the risk that the Board will éncounter difficulty in meeting obligations on its financial liabilities, It includes both the risk of being unable to
fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates-and the risk of'being unable to liquidate an'asset.at a reasonable price and-in an appropriate time frame.

Management of liquidity risk

The Board has access to a diverse funding base. Funds are raised mainly from members™ contributions and reserves. The Board continually assesses liquidity
risk-by identifying and monitoring changes in funding required.in meeting business goals and targets set in terms of the overall Board strategy. In addition,.
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the Board has a .stm.mﬂsai Investment Committee that meets on a regnlar basis to monitor- liquidity risk, review and approve liquidity .wo:nmom and

procedures.

Exposure to fiquidity risk

The table below analyses ..m.:.&._omm_m assets and financial liabilities into relevant maturity- groupings based on the remaining period. at 30 June 2019 to the
contractual maturity date. All balances are-in Frws.

Pension scheme

At 30 June 2019

Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5 years Total
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Firtancial assets,
Cash and bank-balances 3,092,355 38,256,841,927 - - - 38,259,934,282
Deposits with commercial banks. - 17,303,177.880 76,927,399,595 4,264,547.945 31,275,245,368 Eon.m_qo‘u qohmm..
Treasury bonds . 6,538,605,018 - 37,007,179,102  38,193,571,139 81,739,355,258.
Treasury bills - 12,333,264,628 63,775,228,282 - - 76,108,492,910
Commercial papers - - 16,145,013 ,966 - - 16,145,013,966
Mortgage loans - - - 146,536,580 - 146,536,580
._Lom.: and advances to third parties - - - 5,935,605,982 - .m“ww.m,.aombww.
Advances-to contraétors - - 9,194,995,837 - - 9,194,995,837
Dividend receivable - 4,488,574,825 - - - 4,488,574,825.
Othér asséts ; - 5,193,975,017 - - 5,193,975,017
Total financial assets 3,002,355 78,920,464,278 171,236,612,697 47,353,869,609 69,468,816,506 366,982,855,445
Financial liabilities
Amounts retained on construction contracts - - (572,284,214) - - (572,284,214)
Medical and maternity benefits payable: - - . - - - . -
Other payables - (12,217,145,504) - - - (12,217,145,504)
Financial liabilities = (12,217,145,504) (572,284,214) , - (12,789.429,718)
Liquidity surplus as at 30 June 2019 3,092,355 66,703,318,774 170,664,328,483 47,353,869,609 69,468,816,506 354,193,425,727.
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At 30 June 2018

Financial assets

-Cash and bank-balances:

Deposits with commercial barks.
Government of Rwanda Development bond
Corporate bonds

Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Mortgage loans

Loan-and advances to third parties

Other assets

Total financial assets

Finanéial liabilities

Amounts retained on construction contracts
Other payables:

Financial liabilities

Liquidity surphus as at 30 June 2018

Medical schieme

-At-30 June 219

Financial assets

Cash and bank balarices
Depaosits with commetcial banks
Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Matared <3 months 3-12 months: 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
415,630,938  64,968,671,741 - - - 65,384,302,679
- - 109,477,454,635 - 31,066,947,802  140,544,402,437
. - - 2,401,098,014. - 2,401,098,014

- - - 2,536,177,884 - 2,536,177,884

- - - 22,358,682,772 22,420,141,893  44,778,824,665

- 6581526662  34,775,600,813 - - 41,357,127475

- - - - 306,012,689 306,012,689

- - - 6,638,963,650 - 6,638,963,650

- - 15,456,512,560 - 15,456,512,560.
415,630,938 71,550,198,403  159,709,568,008  33,934,922,320  53,793,102,384 319,403,422,053
- - - (206,958,279) - (206,958,279)

. - (11,387,149,560) - - (11,387,149,560)

- - (11,387,149,560)  (206,958,279) - (11,594,107,839)
415,630,938  71,550,198,403  148,322,418,448  33,727,964,041  53,793,102,384 307,809,314,214
Matured <3 mouths 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
3,905,602 29,873,827,325. - - - 29,877,732,927
- 14,203,136,987 60,555,319,896  26,772,746,000 - 101,531,202,883

- - - 6,702,661,429 - 6,702,661,429

- 6,823,067,653 33,463,210,492 - - 40,286,278,145
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At30 June 2019

Loan and advances to third parties
Advances to contractors.
Dividend receivable

Other asgeéfs

Totl financial assets

Financial liabilities

Atnounts retained on construction contracts
Medical benefits payable

Other payables

Total financial liabilities

Liquidity surplus as at:30 June 2019
At 30 June 2018

Financial assets

Cash and bank balatices.

Deposits with coinmercial banks
Treasury bonds
Treasury bills
Loan and advances.io third parties
Other assets-
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Amounts retained on construction contracts

Matured <3 mosths 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years “Fotal

Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw

" - - 35.323,037,943 - 35,323,037,943

- - 2,880,000 - 2,880,000

. 94,384,845 - - - 94,284,845

- - 7,957,855,548 - - 7,957,855,548
3,905,602 50,994,316,810 101,979,265,936  68,798,445,372 - 221775933720

- (59,183,315) - - (59,183,315)

- (5,367,117,082) - - - (5,367,117,082)

- (2,374,005,.873) - : - {2,374,005,873)

- (7,741,122,955) (59,183,315) - - (7,800,306,270)

3,905,602 43,253,193,855 101,920,082,621  68,798,445,372 213,975,627,450°

Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total

Frw Frw Frw Firw Frw Frw

78.986,376  46,664,641,097 - - 46,743,627.473.

B - 68,589,125,959 - 24,449,996,347. 93,039,122,306

- e - 9,736,699,892 - 9,736,699,892

- - 23,966.624,602 - . 23,966,624,602.

- - - 12;000,000,000 - 12,000,000,000

- - 7,085,817,687 - - 7,085,817,687

78,986,376  46,664,641,097 99,641,568,248  21,736,699,892  24,449,996,347  192,571,891,960

- - - (485,406,376) - (485,406,376)
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At 30 June 2018 Matured <3 months -3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Medical benefits payable - (4,335,704,616) - - - (4,335,704,616)
Other payables - - (1,829.836,719) - - (1,829,836,719)
Total financial liabilities - (4,335,704,616) (1,829,836,719) (485,406,376) - {6,650,947,711)
Liguidity surplus as at 30 June 2018 qw.owaqu 42,328,936,481 97.811,731,529 21,251,293,516 24,449,996,347 185.920,944,249
CBHI Scheme
At30]1 une 2019 Matored <3 months’ 3-12 months -1-5 years > & years Total
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances’ m».om.mhwo ohomwccrmu\w. - - - 6,506,947,307
Adiances to contractors - “ 6,600,000 - - 6,600,000
Other assets - - 2,974,038,164 - - 2,974,038,164
“Total financial asseis 8,945,780 6,498,001,527 2,580,638,164 - “ 9,487,585,471
Financial liabilities
‘Medical benefits payable - (14,199,193,773) - - - (14,199,193;773)
Other payables = (16,472,772,226) - - - (16,472,772,226)
Financial liabilities - (30,671,965,999) : - T (30,671,965,999)
Liquidity surplus/(gap) as at-30.June 2019 8,945,780 (24,173,964,472) 2,980,638,164 - - (21,184,380,528)
At 30'June 2018 Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5ycars > 5 years Total
Frw Frw "Frw Frw Frw Frw
Financial assets
LCash-and bank balances 79,215,888 1,938,599,389 - - - 2,017,815,277
Other assels . - - - 1,029,783,230 - 1,029,783,230
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At-30 June 2018
Tuatal financial assets

Financial liabilities
‘Medical benefits payable
Other payables
Financial liabilities.

Liquidity surplus{(gap) 4s at 30 June 2018

.g.ﬁn_.::% scheme

At 30 June 2019

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Tieasury bills
.>a<m:om.m to contractors
Other assets

Total financial.assets

‘Financial liabilities
‘Maternity leave benefits payable
Other payables

Financial liabilities

‘Liquidity surplus/(gap) as at 30 June 2019

Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5years:  >5years Total
Frw Frw Frw. Frw Frw Frw
79,215,888 1,938,599,389 - 1,029,783,230 - 3,047,598,507
- (16,262,179,181) - - - (16,262,179,181)

- - (9,962,882,824) - - (9,962,882,824)

- (16,262,179,181) 9,962,882.824) - (26,225,062,005)
79,215,888 (14,323,579,792) (9,962,882,824) 1,029,783,230 - (23,177,463,498)
Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5years: Total
Frw Frw Frw Frw  Frw Frw
325,296 10,012,411,888 - - - 10,012,737,184

- - 3,828,868,134 - - 3,828,868,134

- - 240,000 - - 240,000

- - 201,571,623 - - 201,571,623

325,296 10,012,411,888 4,030,679,757 0 0 14,043,416,941

- (293,835,463) - - - (293,835,463)

- (493,613,730) - - - {493,613,730)
0 (787,449,193) 0 0 ¢ (787,449,193)

325,296 9,224,962,695 4,030,679,757 0 0 13,255,967,748
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At 30 June 2018

E.:»:nm.m_ ‘assefs
Cash and bank balances
‘(Other assets

Tatal financial assets

Financial liabilities
Medical benefits payable
‘Other payables
Financial liakilities

Liqu .::.Q surplus as at 30 June 2018

Matured <3 months 3-12 months. 1-5 years > & years. Total
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
4,092,915 6,749,379,850 - - -~ 6,753,472,765
i} . 2,280,181,529 - - 2,280,181,529
4,092,915 6,749,379,850 2,280,181,529 - - 9,033,654,294
- (163,057,326) - = - (163,057,326)
- - (800.,342,245) - - (800,342,245)
- (163,057,326) (800,342,245) - - (963,399,571)
4,092,915 6,586,322,524 1,479,839,284 - - w.cqeq.nm.a,qwu
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c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Board if a customer or counteiparty to a financial insttument
fails to-meet its: contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Board’s loans and advances; ttade and
other receivables, deposits with-commercial banks and investments in government and corporate bonds. For
risk management reporting purposes, the Board considers all elements of eredit risk exposure such as
individual obligator default risk, country and sector risk.

For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on trading securities is managed independently, but
reported as a component of market risk exposure.

Management of credit risk

The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for thé-management of credit risk to its Management

[nvestiment Committee. The Investments Department is responsible for oversight of the Board’s credit risk,
including:

e  Formulating credit policies, covering collateral requiréments and eredit assessments, risk grading and
reportmg Documentary, legal procedures. and compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements
is done in consultation with the Board’s Legal arid Compliance Departient.

‘s Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities. Authorisation
limits -are allocated to the Management Investment Committee. Larger facilities require approval by
the Board of Directors as appropriate..

e Reviewing compliance of investment mix with agreed exposure limits, inchiding those for selected
iridustries, country risk and product types. The Board’s Investment Committee is responsible for
moniforing the credit quality of investments and ensuring that appropriate corrective action is taken

and providing -advice, guidance: and spec1ahst skills to business units to promote best practice
throughout the Board in.the management of credit risk.

The Investment department is required to' implement the Board’s credit policies and procedures, with credit
approval authorities delegated from the Board’s Board of Directors. The Investment department is responsible
for the quality and performance of the Board’s investment portfolio -and for monitoring and controlling all
credit risks in the Board’s portfolio, including those subject to Board approval. Regular audits of the
Investmént- department and the Board’s credit processes are undertaken by the Internal ‘Audit department.
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Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represerits the maximum credit exposure. The maximum ¢redit exposure a3 at the statement of financial position date

was:

Bank balances.

Govemment
bonds
Corporate
bonds
Treusury
bonds
Treasury bills
Loans.and
advances 0.
third parties,
Deposits due-
from banks
Dividends and
other income
receivable
Commercial
papers-
Morigage
loans.

Other assels

Total
financial
asscls

‘Notes

39

28
29:

30
32
38
36
3

33
37

_uanwmm:”.wnrm.ﬁ_m Eamnw_._. Scheme CBHI ...ma__a..:o Mateenity Scheme

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 209 18 2018

Firw' Frw Few Frwv Frw: Few Frw Frw Frw
38250034282 65203412961 29877732927 46738354691 6306947307 2002090212 10012737,184 6753353394 120,787,212,258
- 2.401,098,014 - - - " ) - - 2,401,098.014

- 2.536,177,884 ) 2 ) B T B 536,177,884
B1739,355258.  44,778.824.655 6,702,661,429 9,736,699.892 . - : T BBA420I6687 54515524557
76,108492.010 41357127468, 40286278.145-  23.966,624,601 - - 3,828,868.134 - 12022363989 65,323,752.069.
15,935,605,982- 6638963650  35,323,037.943 12,000,000,000 © 41258643925 18.638,963,650
129770370788 140544402437  101,531,202,883  93,039,122,306 . - - T 231301573671 23358352473
4,488,574 825 2917,156,117 94.384.845 105,944,120 . 4,582,859,670 3,024,100237
16,145013,966 26,441,759.083. " ) ) ) ) T 16145013966 26441 789,083

146,536,580 306,012,689 ) - - v - - 146,536,580 306,012,689

5,193,975,017 4.455,817,364 7,957,855,548 6.912,768992 2974038164 (038767445 201,571,623 2280411889 16327440352 '14,687,765,690

357,787.859,608  337,670,782332  ¥I1,773,053,7200  192,500,514,602  9,480,985471  3,040,858,657 14,043,176,941  9,033.765,283  603.083.075,740 542295920874 .
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d)  Capital risk management

The primary source of capital used by the Board is member contributions and income from investments. For
regulatory purposes, the Medical division’s capital includes both Capital and retained earnings. By the nature of

its establishment, the medical division does not pay dividends. Its equity is managed to safeguard its ability to pay
members medical benefits. Other objectives when managing its capital are:

»  to comply with the capital requirement'sas: set out in the Insurance Regulations;

o tocomply with regulatory solvency requirements as set out in the Insurance Regulations; and

e  to safeguard the medical scheme’s ability to continue'in operational continuity, so that it can continue to
pay benefits to its members,

Tn 2008, Law No. 52/2008 governing the organisation of insurance business in Rwanda (“the Insurance Law”)

‘was promulgated. The Insurance Law requires entities providing short-term insurance to-hold a minimum

level of paid up capital of Frw 1 billion. It also sets regulatory solvency. thresholds for insurance-companies,
based on prescribed admissibility criteria for assets and \iabilities. The regulatory solvency requirements were.

effective in 2011.

The pension fund considers its reserves comprising of statutory reserves and accumulated members funds as’
its ‘equity’. The primary objective in managing those reserves is to ensure that adequate’ solvency is’
maintained for purposes of future benefit payments to members. The:level of statutory reserves is legislated as
set out under Note 45. Other than for those reserves, the fund is'not required to ineet any other external capital
requirements. The fund carries out periodical actuarial assessments to-assess its actuarial solvency.
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